
Successor Agency Special Agenda               June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

1 

 
    

 
AGENDA 

MONDAY, JUNE 22, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Matt Beekman 
 
ROLL CALL:  Chair Matt Beekman 

Board Member Jeramy Young 
Board Member Jill Silva 
Board Member George Carr 
Board Member Harold Hill 

 
 

 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken) 
 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the 
Agenda, and within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Successor Agency to the 
Hughson Redevelopment Agency. Individual comments will be limited to a maximum of 
5 minutes per person and each person may speak once during this time.  Time cannot 
be yielded to another person.  Under State Law, matters presented under this item 
cannot be discussed or acted upon at this time by the Successor Agency.  The public 
will be invited to make comments on Agenda items when the item comes up for 
consideration. For record purposes, you must step up to the podium, state your name, 
and speak into the microphone when addressing the Successor Agency to the Hughson 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
 
2. NEW BUSINESS:  
 

2.1: Approval of the Minutes of the Successor Agency Special Meeting held on 
March 23, 2015. 

 
2.2: Adopt Resolution No. 2015-02, authorizing the execution and delivery of an 

Official Statement for the Successor Agency’s Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, 
approving the Forms of a Bond Purchase Agreement, a Continuing Disclosure 

 
 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Hall Council Chambers 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



Successor Agency Special Agenda               June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

2 

Agreement, and an Escrow Agreement in Connection therewith, and authorizing 
certain related actions. 

 
 
 
4. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 

 

 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
DATE:      June 18, 2015 TIME:             5:00 pm 

NAME:      Marilyn Castaneda  TITLE:            Management Intern 
                             

 
Notice Regarding Non-English Speakers:  

 
Pursuant to California Constitution Article III, Section IV, establishing English as the official language for 
the State of California, and in accordance with California Code of Civil Procedures Section 185, which 
requires proceedings before any State Court to be in English, notice is hereby given that all proceedings 
before the Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the City of Hughson Redevelopment Agency shall 
be in English and anyone wishing to address the Board is required to have a translator present who will 
take an oath to make an accurate translation from any language not English into the English language. 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT/CALIFORNIA BROWN ACT 
NOTIFICATION FOR THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

 
This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability; as required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code 
Section 54954.2).    
 
Disabled or Special needs Accommodation:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons requesting a 
disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting and/or if  you need assistance to attend or 
participate in a City Council meeting, please contact  the City Clerk’s office at (209) 883-4054. Notification at least 48-hours prior 
to the meeting will assist the City Clerk in assuring that reasonable accommodations are made to provide accessibility to the 
meeting.  

WAIVER WARNING 
 
If you challenge a decision/direction of the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public 
hearing(s) described in this Agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City of Hughson at 
or prior to, the public hearing(s).           

RULES FOR ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL 
 
Members of the audience who wish to address the City Council are requested to complete one of the 
forms located on the table at the entrance of the Council Chambers and submit it to the City Clerk. 
Filling out the card is voluntary.  



Successor Agency Special Agenda               June 22, 2015 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

3 

 
 
 
 
General Information: The Oversight Board of the Successor Agency to the City of 

Hughson Redevelopment Agency meets quarterly (February, 
May, August, and November) in the Council Chambers on the 
fourth Wednesday at 6:00 p.m., unless otherwise noticed.  

 
Agendas:   This Agenda is now available for public review at the City’s 

website at www.hughson.org and City Clerk's Office, 7018 Pine 
Street, Hughson, California on the Friday, prior to the scheduled 
meeting. Copies and/or subscriptions can be purchased for a 
nominal fee through the City Clerk’s Office.   

 
Questions:             Contact the City Clerk at (209) 883-4054. 
  
 
 

 

http://www.hughson.org/


Successor Agency Special Minutes            March 23, 2013 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

1 

 
    

MINUTES  
MONDAY, MARCH 23, 2013 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chair Matt Beekman – 7:04 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL:   
 

Present:  Chair Matt Beekman 
    Board Member Jeramy Young 
    Board Member Jill Silva 
    Board Member George Carr 
    Board Member Harold Hill  

 
Absent:  Chair Matt Beekman 

 
Staff Present: Thom Clark, Community Development Director 
   Daniel J. Schroeder, City Attorney  
   Darin Gharat, Chief of Police 
   Dominique Spinale, Management Analyst/Deputy City Clerk  
   Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
   Sam Rush, Public Works Superintendent    

 
 
1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken) 
 
No Public Comments.  
 
 
2. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 2.1: Approval of the Minutes of the Successor Agency Special Meeting   
  held on Febuary 25, 2015.  
 
SILVA/HILL 4-0 (BEEKMAN-ABSENT) motion passes to approve the Minutes of 
the Febuary 25, 2015 Special Meeting. 

 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Hall Council Chambers 
7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA 

 



Successor Agency Special Minutes            March 23, 2013 
 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
Agenda will be made available at the City Clerk’s counter at City Hall located at 7018 Pine Street, Hughson, CA. 

2 

2.2: Adopt Resolution No. 2015-01, approving the insurance of Tax Allocation 
Refunding Bonds, Approving the form of an Indenture of Trust, and 
authorizing Certain Related Actions. 

 
 
Dan Anderson from Urban Futures reviewed the background on Item 2.2. 
 
 
YOUNG/SILVA 4-0 (BEEKMAN- ABSENT) motion passes to  Adopt Resolution No. 
2015-01, approving the insurance of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Approving 
the form of an Indenture of Trust, and authorizing Certain Related Actions. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   
 
BEEKMAN/CARR motion passes to adjourn the meeting at 7:58 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
MATT BEEKMAN, CHAIR  

 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
DOMINIQUE SPINALE ROMO, City Clerk  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
Meeting Date:         June 22, 2015 
Subject:  Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
                         Hughson Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation  
   Refunding Bonds, Issue of 2015 (the “2015 Bonds”) 
Presented By:  Shannon Esenwein, Director of Finance 

Lisa Whiteside, Finance Manager 
 
Approved By:         _______________________________ 

 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-02, authorizing the execution and delivery of an Official 
Statement for the Successor Agency’s Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, approving the 
Forms of a Bond Purchase Agreement, a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and an 
Escrow Agreement in Connection therewith, and authorizing certain related actions. 

Background and Overview: 
 
The Hughson Redevelopment Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in 2006 (the “2006 
Bonds”) in the amount of $3,200,000, of which $2,610,000 is currently outstanding. 

Per AB 1484, the Successor Agency may refund the 2006 Bonds for debt service savings, 
with the approval of its Oversight Board and the State Department of Finance (“DOF”).  At 
the March 23, 2015 meeting, the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment 
Agency authorized the issuance of its 2015 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds (the “2015 
Bonds”).  On March 25, 2015, the Oversight Board to the Successor Agency (the 
“Oversight Board”) authorized the issuance of the 2015 Bonds by the Successor Agency.  
On May 18, 2015, DOF issued its approval of the issuance of the 2015 Bonds by the 
Successor Agency. 

Based on current market interest rates, the Agency can generate an estimated 
total debt service savings of approximately $485,000 by issuing the proposed 2015 
Bonds, which will refund (repay) all outstanding 2006 Bonds.  The 2006 Bonds 
currently have an interest rate on the longest term bonds of 5.10%.  It is 
anticipated that the proposed 2015 Bonds would have an interest rate of 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 AGENDA ITEM NO. 2.2 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF REPORT 

 
    



approximately 3.50% on the longest term bonds.  The term of the new 2015 Bonds 
would not be extended, and would match the current final maturity date of the 2006 
Bonds (October 1, 2036). 
 

Discussion: 
 
Based on receipt of the required approvals from the Oversight Board and DOF, the 
Successor Agency may now move forward with the sale and closing of the 2015 Bonds.  
Listed below is a summary of the documents necessary to finalize the sale of the 2015 
Bonds.  

1. Preliminary Official Statement – This is the offering document that will be 
presented to potential investors in the 2015 Bonds, and includes information about 
the Agency, the Project Area, and the Tax Revenues of the Project Area, as well 
as a Summary of the Terms and Payment Obligations of the Agency for the 2015 
Bonds.  Final interest rates and terms will be inserted into the final Official 
Statement after the pricing of the 2015 Bonds. 

 

2. Bond Purchase Contract - This document provides the terms and conditions by 
which the Underwriter, Jefferies, will purchase the 2015 Bonds.  Final interest rates 
and terms will be inserted after the pricing of the 2015 Bonds. 

 

3. Continuing Disclosure Agreement - The Disclosure Agreement defines the 
Agency's obligation to provide annual updates of information related to the Project 
Area and the Tax Increment Revenues, for the benefit of the Bondholders and 
other interested parties, pursuant to federal regulations.  

 

4. Escrow Agreements – This document defines the terms and conditions necessary 
to redeem the outstanding 2006 Bonds from the net proceeds of the 2015 Bonds, 
with MUFG Union Bank, N.A. acting as the Escrow Bank.   

 

The form of the documents are on file with the City Clerk.  It is anticipated that the 2015 
Bonds can be sold and closed in July of 2015, with the proceeds then deposited into a 
refunding escrow to repay the 2006 Bonds on October 1, 2015 (their first available call 
date). 

Fiscal Impact:  
 
The repayment of principal and interest on the 2015 Bonds is payable solely from Pledged 
Tax Revenues, which is tax increment revenues from the Project Area deposited into the 
Agency’s Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (“RPTTF”), and available after 
satisfying certain administrative costs of the County and pass through obligations to 
affected taxing entities.  



The 2015 Bonds will not be a debt of the City’s general fund or the State, or any of its 
political subdivisions (except the Agency). 

 
 
 
 



 -1-  
12917-0002\1845479v1.doc 

CITY OF HUGHSON 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF THE  

CITY OF HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-02 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUGHSON, CALIFORNIA, 

ACTING AS THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY OF AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S TAX 
ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS, APPROVING THE FORMS OF A BOND 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT, A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT, AND AN 
ESCROW AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AND AUTHORIZING 

CERTAIN RELATED ACTIONS 

WHEREAS, the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Prior Agency”) was a 
public body, corporate and politic, duly created, established and authorized to transact 
business and exercise its powers under and pursuant to the provisions of the 
Community Redevelopment Law (Part 1 of Division 24 (commencing with Section 
33000) of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California (the “Health and Safety 
Code”)) (the “Redevelopment Law”), and the powers of the Prior Agency included the 
power to issue bonds for any of its corporate purposes;  

WHEREAS, a Redevelopment Plan for the Hughson Redevelopment Project 
Area (the “Hughson Redevelopment Project”), in the City of Hughson (the “City”), was 
adopted and approved by Ordinance No. 02-08, adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Hughson on July 8, 2002, and subsequently amended in compliance with all 
requirements of the Redevelopment Law (as in effect on the respective dates thereof); 

WHEREAS, the Prior Agency has previously issued its Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2006 (Hughson Redevelopment Project) (the “2006 Bonds”);  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 1.85 
(commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code (as 
heretofore amended, the “Dissolution Act”), enacted by AB X1 26 in June 2011, and the 
California Supreme Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. 
Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (2011), the Prior Agency was dissolved as of 
February 1, 2012; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the Successor Agency to the 
Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was constituted as a 
separate public entity from the City; and 

WHEREAS, Section 34177.5(a)(1) of the Dissolution Act specifically authorizes 
the issuance of refunding bonds by the Successor Agency to refund outstanding bonds 
for the purpose of reducing debt service and providing savings to the Successor 
Agency; and 



 -2-  
12917-0002\1845479v1.doc 

WHEREAS, to refund the 2006 Bonds, or such portion thereof as the Successor 
Agency may determine in its discretion in consultation with its financial advisor 
(collectively, the “Refunded Bonds”), for the purpose of reducing debt service and 
providing savings to the Successor Agency, the Successor Agency wishes at this time 
to issue bonds in the approximate aggregate principal amount of Three Million Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,200,000) (the “2015 Bonds”), secured by a pledge of 
property tax revenues authorized by Sections 34177.5(a) and (g) of the Health and 
Safety Code, all pursuant to the provisions of Article 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of 
Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Bond Law”); and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has previously approved and adopted its 
Resolution No. 2015-01, approving the issuance of the 2015 Bonds as a single issue, or 
in separate series, as determined by the Successor Agency in consultation with Bond 
Counsel to comply with federal tax laws, and the form of an Indenture of Trust, at its 
meeting on March 23, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of Resolution No. 
2015-01, the Successor Agency desires at this time to approve the form of a Bond 
Purchase Agreement, as well as the forms of certain other documents required in 
connection with the issuance of the 2015 Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the forms of a Bond Purchase Agreement, a Preliminary Official 
Statement, a Continuing Disclosure Agreement and an Escrow Agreement are on file 
with the City Clerk of the City, as Successor Agency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Each of the foregoing recitals is true and correct and is a substantive 
part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 
proposed to be entered into by and between the Successor Agency and Jeffries LLC 
(the “Underwriter”), in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and made a part 
hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved.  Each of the Chair (or in his 
absence, the Chair Pro Tem) and the Executive Director (each, an “Authorized Officer”) 
is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor 
Agency, to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement in the form presented at 
this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by the 
Authorized Officer executing the same in consultation with Bond Counsel, said 
execution being conclusive evidence of such approval; provided, however, that the 
Bond Purchase Agreement shall be signed only if the terms of the agreement are such 
that (i) the total interest cost to maturity on the 2015 Bonds plus the principal amount of 
the 2015 Bonds will not exceed the total remaining interest cost to maturity on the 
Refunded Bonds plus the remaining principal of the Refunded Bonds, and (ii) the 
principal amount of the 2015 Bonds will not exceed the amount required to defease the 



 -3-  
12917-0002\1845479v1.doc 

Refunded Bonds, to establish a customary debt service reserve fund, and to pay related 
costs of issuance. 

Section 3. The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the 2015 Bonds (the 
“Preliminary Official Statement”), in substantially the form presented and on file with the 
City Clerk, is hereby approved.  Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to 
cause the Preliminary Official Statement in substantially said form, with such additions 
or changes therein as such Authorized Officer may approve, to be deemed final for the 
purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (“Rule 15c2-12”).  
The Underwriter is hereby authorized to distribute the Preliminary Official Statement to 
prospective purchasers of the 2015 Bonds in substantially the form hereby approved, 
together with such additions thereto and changes therein as are determined necessary 
by any one of the Authorized Officers to make the Preliminary Official Statement final as 
of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12, including, but not limited to, such additions and 
changes as are necessary to make all information set forth therein accurate and not 
misleading. 

Section 4. The preparation and delivery of an Official Statement, and its use by 
the Successor Agency and the Underwriter, in connection with the offering and sale of 
the 2015 Bonds, is hereby authorized and approved.  The Official Statement shall be in 
substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement with such changes, 
insertions and omissions as may be requested by Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, 
or the Underwriter and approved by any one of the Authorized Officers, such approval 
to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof by such Authorized 
Officer.  Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute the final Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, for and 
in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, and thereupon to cause the final 
Official Statement and any such amendment or supplement to be delivered to the 
Underwriter.  The Underwriter is further authorized to distribute the final Official 
Statement for the 2015 Bonds and any amendment or supplement thereto to the 
purchasers of the 2015 Bonds upon its execution on behalf of the Successor Agency as 
described above. 

Section 5. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the form 
attached hereto is hereby approved.  Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to 
execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Agreement in the form presented at this 
meeting with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by such 
Authorized Officer in consultation with Disclosure Counsel, said execution being 
conclusive evidence of such approval.  

Section 6. The Escrow Agreement relating to the 2006 Bonds (the “2006 Bonds 
Escrow Agreement”), in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and made a 
part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved.  Each Authorized 
Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on 
behalf of the Successor Agency, to execute and deliver the 2006 Bonds Escrow 



 -4-  
12917-0002\1845479v1.doc 

Agreement in the form presented at this meeting with such changes, insertions and 
omissions as may be requested by Bond Counsel and approved by such Authorized 
Officer, said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

Section 7. The Authorized Officers, the Finance Director, and all other officers of 
the Successor Agency, are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to 
execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments, relating to the 2015 Bonds, 
and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things (including, but not limited to, 
obtaining a reserve fund surety bond, a bond insurance policy or other types of credit 
enhancement), which they may deem necessary or proper to effectuate the purposes of 
this Resolution, and any such actions previously taken by such officers are hereby 
ratified and confirmed. 

Section 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Resolution is adopted and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Hughson as Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment 
Agency this 22nd day of June, 2015. 

 

       
 Matt Beekman, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

  
 Dominique Spinale Romo, City Clerk 

 



PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED ___, 2015 
 

  
  

Th
is

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

t. 
 T

he
se

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
so

ld
 n

or
 m

ay
 o

ffe
rs

 to
 b

uy
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
da

te
d 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t i

n 
its

 fi
na

l f
or

m
.  

U
nd

er
 n

o 
ci

rc
um

sta
nc

es
 s

ha
ll 

th
is

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t c

on
st

itu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r t
o 

se
ll 

or
 a

 s
ol

ic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y 
no

r s
ha

ll 
th

er
e 

be
 a

ny
 s

al
e 

of
 th

es
e 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
in

 a
ny

 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 su

ch
 o

ffe
r, 

so
lic

ita
tio

n 
or

 sa
le

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

la
w

fu
l. 

 
NEW ISSUE – BOOK ENTRY ONLY RATING: 

Standard & Poor’s:  “___-” 
 (See “CONCLUDING INFORMATION -- Rating” herein) 

In the opinion of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Bond Counsel, under existing law (i) 
assuming continuing compliance with certain covenants and the accuracy of certain representations, interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for 
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, and (ii) interest on the 
Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxes.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any other 
tax consequences regarding the Bonds.  For a more complete discussion of the tax aspects, see “CONCLUDING 
INFORMATION – Tax Exemption” herein. 

$[principal amount]*  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) 

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2015 

Dated:  Delivery Date Due:  October 1, as shown on inside cover 
The above-captioned bonds (the “Bonds”) are being issued by the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the 

“Agency”) pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Agency and MUFG Union Bank, 
N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to: (i) refinance the Hughson Redevelopment Agency’s previously issued 
$3,200,000 aggregate principal amount of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 (Hughson Redevelopment Project), currently 
outstanding in the amount of $2,680,000; (ii) fund a reserve account; and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

The Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and will be available to ultimate purchasers (“Beneficial Owners”) in the denomination of $5,000 
or any integral multiple thereof, under the book-entry system maintained by DTC. Beneficial Owners will not be entitled to receive delivery of 
bond certificates representing their ownership interest in the Bonds. The principal of, premium if any, and semiannual interest (due May 1 and 
October 1 of each year, commencing October 1, 2015) on the Bonds will be payable by the Trustee to DTC for subsequent disbursement to 
DTC participants, so long as DTC or its nominee remains the registered owner of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS—Book-Entry System” 
herein.   

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption* prior to maturity as described herein.  
See “THE BONDS – Redemption and Purchase of Bonds” herein. 

The Bonds are payable from and equally and ratably secured by a first pledge of Pledged Tax Revenues (as defined herein) to be derived 
from the Hughson Redevelopment Project Area (the “Project Area”).  Taxes levied on the property within the Project Area on that portion of 
the taxable valuation over and above the taxable valuation of the base year property tax roll to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax Revenues, 
shall be deposited in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, and administered by the Agency and the Trustee in accordance with the 
Indenture.   

This cover page of the Official Statement contains information for quick reference only.  It is not a complete summary of the 
Bonds.  Investors should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment 
decision.  Attention is hereby directed to certain risk factors more fully described herein.  See “RISK FACTORS.” 

The Bonds are not a debt of the City of Hughson, the State of California (the “State”) or any of its political subdivisions (except the 
Agency) and neither said City, said State or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency) is liable therefor.  The principal of and interest 
on the Bonds are payable solely from the Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Agency from the Project Area (all as defined herein and in the 
Indenture) and other funds as set forth in the Indenture.  The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional 
or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

 The Bonds are offered, when, as and if issued, subject to the approval of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional 
Corporation, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Agency by Richards, 
Watson & Gershon, as Disclosure Counsel. It is anticipated that the Bonds will be available for delivery to DTC in New 
York, New York, on or about ____, 2015. 

. 

[JEFFRIES LOGO] 
Dated: ____ ___, 2015 

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

   
 

$[principal amount]*  
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) 

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2015 

 
 

MATURITY SCHEDULE 

 

Maturity        CUSIP† 
Date  Principal  Interest    Suffix 

(October 1)  Amount  Rate  Yield  (Base ___) 
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________ 
*  Preliminary, subject to change. 

†  CUSIP® Copyright 2015, CUSIP Global Services, and a registered trademark of American Bankers 
Association.  CUSIP® data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, which is managed on behalf of 
American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ.  Neither the Agency, the City nor the Underwriter 
guarantees the accuracy of the CUSIP® data. 



 

   
 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

HUGHSON, CALIFORNIA  

Board of Directors 

Matt Beekman, Chair 
Jeramy Young, Vice-Chair 

George Carr, Director 
Jill Silva, Director 

Harold Hill, Director 
 

Agency/City Staff 

Raul Mendez, City Manager and Executive Director of the Agency 
Shannon Esenwein, Finance Director 

Daniel Schroeder, City Attorney and Agency Counsel 
Dominique Spinale Romo, City Clerk and Agency Secretary 

 
 

SPECIAL SERVICES 

Bond Counsel 

Richards, Watson & Gershon  
A Professional Corporation  

Los Angeles, California 

Disclosure Counsel 

Richards, Watson & Gershon  
A Professional Corporation  

Los Angeles, California 

Trustee and Escrow Agent 

MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 
Los Angeles, California 

Financial Advisor/Dissemination Agent 

Urban Futures, Inc. 
Orange, California 

Verification Agent 

Grant Thornton 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 



 

   
 

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

No Offering May Be Made Except by this Official Statement.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or other 
person has been authorized by the Agency to give any information or to make any representations with respect to 
the Bonds other than as contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or 
representation must not be relied upon as having been given or authorized by the Agency or the Underwriter. 

Use of Official Statement.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds 
described in this Official Statement and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  
This Official Statement does not constitute a contract between any Bond owner and the Agency or the 
Underwriter. 

Preparation of this Official Statement.  The information contained in this Official Statement has been 
obtained from sources that are believed to be reliable, but this information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or 
completeness.  The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

Estimates and Forecasts.  When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure made by 
the Agency, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” 
“estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “expect,” “intend” and similar expressions identify “forward looking statements” 
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such statements are subject to risks 
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-
looking statements.  Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop 
the forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, there are 
likely to be differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may be material.  

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information and expressions of opinion 
contained in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice.  Neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale of the Bonds will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no 
change in the affairs of the Agency or the other parties described in this Official Statement, since the date of this 
Official Statement. 

Document Summaries.  All summaries of the Indenture or other documents contained in this Official 
Statement are made subject to the provisions of such documents and do not purport to be complete statements of 
any or all such provisions.  All references in this Official Statement to the Indenture and such other documents are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, which are on file with the Agency.   

No Unlawful Offers or Solicitations.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a 
solicitation of an offer to buy in any state in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the 
person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make 
such offer or solicitation.   

No Registration with the SEC.  The issuance and sale of the Bonds have not been registered under the 
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended, in reliance upon exemptions 
provided thereunder by Sections 3(a)(2) and 3(a)(12), respectively, for the issuance and sale of municipal 
securities. 

Public Offering Prices. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and dealer banks 
and banks acting as agent at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the inside cover page of this 
Official Statement, and the Underwriter may change those public offering prices from time to time. 

Web Page. The City of Hughson maintains a website. However, the information maintained on the 
website is not a part of this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision 
with respect to the Bonds. 



 

 i  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

PAGE NO. 

INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 1 
Authority and Purpose .................................................................................................................. 1 
The City and the Agency .............................................................................................................. 1 
Project Area .................................................................................................................................. 2 
Tax Allocation Financing ............................................................................................................. 2 
Security for the Bonds .................................................................................................................. 3 
Reserve Account ........................................................................................................................... 4 
Further Information ....................................................................................................................... 4 

PLAN OF REFUNDING ........................................................................................................................... 4 
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ......................................................................................................... 5 
THE BONDS ............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Authority for Issuance................................................................................................................... 5 
Description of the Bonds .............................................................................................................. 5 
Book-Entry System ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Redemption and Purchase of Bonds ............................................................................................. 6 
Notice of Redemption ................................................................................................................... 7 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ................................................................................................................ 7 
Tax Increment Financing .............................................................................................................. 9 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ................................................................................. 10 
Reserve Account ......................................................................................................................... 13 
Additional Parity Bonds .............................................................................................................. 13 
Bonds Not a Debt of the City of Hughson or the State of California ......................................... 15 

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ....................... 15 
Members and Officers................................................................................................................. 16 
Agency Powers ........................................................................................................................... 16 

RISK FACTORS ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
Reduction in Taxable Value ........................................................................................................ 17 
Risks to Real Estate Market ........................................................................................................ 18 
Reduction in Inflationary Rate .................................................................................................... 18 
Development Risks ..................................................................................................................... 18 
Levy and Collection of Taxes ..................................................................................................... 19 
State Budget Issues ..................................................................................................................... 19 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ................................................................................. 22 
AB 1484 Penalty for Failure to Remit Unencumbered Funds .................................................... 24 
Bankruptcy and Foreclosure ....................................................................................................... 25 
Estimated Revenues .................................................................................................................... 25 
Hazardous Substances ................................................................................................................. 25 
Seismic Factors ........................................................................................................................... 26 
Risk of Floods ............................................................................................................................. 26 
Urban Fire Hazards ..................................................................................................................... 26 
Changes in the Law ..................................................................................................................... 26 
Investment Risk .......................................................................................................................... 26 
Additional Obligations ................................................................................................................ 27 
Secondary Market ....................................................................................................................... 27 
No Validation Proceeding Undertaken ....................................................................................... 27 
Loss of Tax-Exemption............................................................................................................... 28 



 

 ii  
 

PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA ......................................................................................... 28 
Property Tax Collection Procedures ........................................................................................... 28 
Unitary Property ......................................................................................................................... 30 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution ....................................................................................... 30 
Appropriations Limitation - Article XIIIB .................................................................................. 31 
Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State Constitution .................................................................... 32 
Proposition 87 ............................................................................................................................. 32 
Appeals of Assessed Values ....................................................................................................... 32 
Proposition 8 ............................................................................................................................... 32 
Propositions 218 and 26 .............................................................................................................. 33 
Future Initiatives ......................................................................................................................... 33 

PROJECT AREA ..................................................................................................................................... 33 
Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plan ........................................................ 34 
Statutory Pass-Throughs ............................................................................................................. 34 
Land Uses ................................................................................................................................... 36 
Largest Taxpayers ....................................................................................................................... 36 
Appeals ....................................................................................................................................... 37 

PLEDGED REVENUES ......................................................................................................................... 37 
Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues ............................................................................ 37 
Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues........................................................... 38 
Annual Debt Service ................................................................................................................... 39 
Debt Service Coverage ............................................................................................................... 40 

CONCLUDING INFORMATION .......................................................................................................... 41 
Underwriting ............................................................................................................................... 41 
Legal Opinions ............................................................................................................................ 42 
Tax Exemption ............................................................................................................................ 42 
Verification ................................................................................................................................. 44 
No Litigation ............................................................................................................................... 45 
Legality for Investment in California ......................................................................................... 45 
Rating 45 
Continuing Disclosure ................................................................................................................ 45 
Miscellaneous ............................................................................................................................. 47 

APPENDIX A – GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY OF HUGHSON ................. A-1 
APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE ............................................................................ B-1 
APPENDIX C – FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION ..................................................................... C-1 
APPENDIX D – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM ................................................................................ D-1 
APPENDIX E – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT ......................................... E-1 
APPENDIX F – COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2014  .............................................................................................................. F-1 
APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT ........................................................................... G-1 



 

 1  
 

$[principal amount]* 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) 

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2015 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the body of this 
Official Statement, appendices and the documents referred to herein for more complete information with 
respect to matters concerning the Bonds (as defined herein).  Potential investors are encouraged to read 
the entire Official Statement.  Definitions of certain terms used in this Official Statement are set forth in 
“APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Authority and Purpose 

This Official Statement, including the cover page, is provided to furnish information in 
connection with the sale by the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the 
“Agency”) of its $[principal amount]* (Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Bonds”).  

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the 
“State”), including Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of 
Title 5 of the Government Code (the “Bond Law”) and the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 
34177.5, and an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), by and between the 
Agency and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”) approved by Resolution No. 2015-01 
adopted by the Agency on March 23, 2015 (the “Successor Agency Resolution”), and by Resolution No. 
2015-02 adopted by the Oversight Board for the Agency on March 25, 2015 (the “Oversight Board 
Resolution”).  Written notice of the Oversight Board Resolution was provided to the State Department of 
Finance pursuant to the Dissolution Act (as defined herein) on March 26, 2015, and the State Department 
of Finance requested review within five business days of such written notice.  On May 18, 2015, the State 
Department of Finance provided a letter to the Agency stating that based on such department’s review and 
application of the law, the Oversight Board Resolution approving the issuance of the Bonds to refund the 
Refunded Bonds (as defined below) is approved by the State Department of Finance (the “DOF 
Determination Letter”).   

The Bonds are being issued to refinance for savings the Hughson Redevelopment Agency’s 
$3,200,000 aggregate principal amount of Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 (Hughson 
Redevelopment Project), currently outstanding in the amount of $2,680,000 (the “2006 Bonds” or the 
“Refunded Bonds”). See “PLAN OF REFUNDING” and “SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.” 

The City and the Agency 

The City of Hughson (the “City”) encompasses approximately 1.42 square miles, and its 
population was estimated by the State Department of Finance as of January 1, 2015 at 7,222.  The City is 
located in Stanislaus County (the “County”) in the Central Valley, approximately 99 miles east of the City 
of San Francisco.  The City was incorporated in 1972 as a general law city.  It has a council-manager 

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 2  
 

form of government with the Council Members elected at large for four-year terms and the Mayor elected 
for a two-year term. 

The Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Prior Agency”) was established on January 14, 2002 
by the City Council of the City with the adoption of Ordinance No. 01-11, pursuant to the Community 
Redevelopment Law (Part 1, Division 24, commencing with Section 33000 of the Health and Safety Code 
of the State) (the “Redevelopment Law”).  On June 29, 2011, Assembly Bill No. 26 (“AB X1 26”) was 
enacted as Chapter 5, Statutes of 2011, together with a companion bill, Assembly Bill No. 27 (“AB X1 
27”).  A lawsuit was brought in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment Association, et 
al., v. Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. 2011), challenging the constitutionality of AB X1 26 and 
AB X1 27.  In its December 29, 2011 decision, the California Supreme Court largely upheld AB X1 26, 
invalidated AB X1 27, and held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and enforced 
independently.  As a result of AB X1 26 and the decision of the California Supreme Court in the 
California Redevelopment Association case, as of February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies in the 
State were dissolved, including the Prior Agency, and successor agencies were designated as successor 
entities to the former redevelopment agencies to expeditiously wind down the affairs of the former 
redevelopment agencies.   

The primary provisions enacted by AB X1 26 relating to the dissolution and wind down of former 
redevelopment agency affairs are Part 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and Part 1.85 (commencing 
with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the State, as amended on June 27, 
2012 by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (“AB 1484”), enacted as Chapter 26, Statutes of 2012 (as amended from 
time to time, the “Dissolution Act”). 

On January 9, 2012, pursuant to Resolution No. 2012-04 and Section 34173 of the Dissolution 
Act, the City Council of the City elected to serve as successor agency to the Prior Agency.  Subdivision 
(g) of Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Agency is a 
separate public entity from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and that the liabilities of the 
Prior Agency will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of the Prior Agency become assets of 
the City. 

Project Area 

The Redevelopment Plan (the “Redevelopment Plan”) for the Hughson Redevelopment Project 
Area was approved by Ordinance No. 02-08 adopted by the City Council of the City on July 8, 2002.  The 
Redevelopment Plan was amended by Ordinance No. 07-01 adopted by the City Council on May 14, 
2007 to add additional territory (the “Added Territory”) to the Hughson Redevelopment Project (the 
“Original Project Area” and together with the Added Territory, the “Project Area”).  The Project Area 
consists of approximately 397 acres, with the Original Project Area consisting of 313 acres and the Added 
Territory consisting of 84 acres.  The Project Area consists of commercial, industrial and residential 
properties.  See “PROJECT AREA.” 

Tax Allocation Financing 

Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 
redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues. This method provided that the taxable 
valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll last equalized prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance that adopts the redevelopment plan becomes the base year valuation.  
Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base year level, the taxing agencies thereafter 
received that portion of the taxes produced by applying then current tax rates to the base year valuation, 
and the redevelopment agency was allocated the remaining portion produced by applying then current tax 



 

 3  
 

rates to the increase in valuation over the base year.  Such incremental tax revenues allocated to a 
redevelopment agency were authorized to be pledged to the payment of agency obligations.   

The Dissolution Act authorizes refunding bonds, including the Bonds, to be secured by a pledge 
of monies deposited from time to time in a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund held by a county 
auditor-controller with respect to a successor agency, which are equivalent to the tax increment revenues 
that were formerly allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the redevelopment agency and formerly 
authorized under the Redevelopment Law to be used for the financing of redevelopment projects.  Under 
the Indenture, Pledged Tax Revenues consist of the amounts deposited from time to time in the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to and as provided in the Dissolution Act.  
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing” herein for additional information. 

Successor agencies have no power to levy property taxes and must look specifically to the 
allocation of taxes as described above.  See “RISK FACTORS.”  

Security for the Bonds 

The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to determine the amount of property 
taxes that would have been allocated to the Prior Agency had the Prior Agency not been dissolved 
pursuant to the operation of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last equalized roll on August 
20, and to deposit that amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the Agency established 
and held by the County Auditor-Controller (the “Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund”) pursuant to 
the Dissolution Act.  The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by 
the Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Prior Agency, with the same legal 
effect as if the bonds had been issued prior to effective date of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the 
applicable provision of the Redevelopment Law that existed prior to that date, and will be included in the 
Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE 
INDENTURE” and “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”).   

The Dissolution Act further provides that bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency 
will be secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid from moneys deposited from time to time 
in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and that property tax revenues pledged to any bonds 
authorized under the Dissolution Act, such as the Bonds, are taxes allocated to the Agency pursuant to the 
provisions of the Redevelopment Law and the State Constitution which provided for the allocation of tax 
increment revenues under the Redevelopment Law, as described in the foregoing paragraph.   

In accordance with the Dissolution Act, “Pledged Tax Revenues” are defined under the Indenture 
as the monies deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established 
pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act, as provided in paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act.  If, and to the extent, that the provisions of 
Section 34172 or paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 are invalidated by a final judicial 
decision, then the Indenture states that Pledged Tax Revenues shall include all tax revenues allocated to 
the payment of indebtedness pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 33670 or such other section as 
may be in effect at the time providing for the allocation of tax increment revenues in accordance with 
Article XVI, Section 16 of the California Constitution.   

The Bonds are payable from and equally and ratably secured, without preference or distinction as 
to Series, by the Pledged Tax Revenues to be derived from the Project Area, all of the monies in the 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund established and held by the Agency pursuant to the 
Dissolution Act, and all of the monies in the Debt Service Fund (including the Interest Account, the 
Principal Account, the Reserve Account, and the Redemption Account therein) established and held by 
the Trustee under the Indenture.  Taxes levied on the property within the Project Area on that portion of 



 

 4  
 

the taxable valuation over and above the taxable valuation of the applicable base year property tax roll 
with respect to the various territories within the Project Area, to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax 
Revenues, as described herein, will be deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for 
transfer by the County Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund 
on January 2 and June 1 of each year to the extent required for payments listed in the Agency’s 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule in accordance with the requirements of the Dissolution Act 
(see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”).  Monies deposited 
by the County Auditor-Controller into the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund will be 
transferred by the Agency to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Fund established under the 
Indenture and administered by the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture. 

Reserve Account 

In order to further secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, a Reserve 
Account within the Debt Service Fund is created pursuant to the Indenture in an amount equal to the 
Reserve Requirement. “Reserve Requirement” means, as of the date of computation, an amount equal to 
the lesser of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service on the Bonds and any Parity Bonds, (ii) 10% of the net 
proceeds of the Bonds and any Parity Bonds, or (iii) 125% of the Annual Debt Service on all Bonds and 
Parity Bonds Outstanding.   

Further Information 

Brief descriptions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Agency, the Prior Agency and the City are 
included in this Official Statement.  Such descriptions and information do not purport to be 
comprehensive or definitive.  All references herein to the Indenture, the Bond Law, the Redevelopment 
Law, the Dissolution Act, the Constitution and the laws of the State as well as the proceedings of the Prior 
Agency, the Agency and the City are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents.  
References herein to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by the form thereof included in the Indenture 
and the information with respect thereto included herein, copies of which are all available for inspection 
at the offices of the Agency. During the period of the offering of the Bonds, copies of the forms of all 
documents are available at the offices of Jefferies LLC, One Montgomery Street, 24th Floor, San 
Francisco, California 94104, and thereafter from the City Clerk’s office, 440 2720 Second Street, 
Hughson, CA, 95307. 

PLAN OF REFUNDING 

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to currently refund and defease all of the 
remaining outstanding Prior Agency’s previously issued 2006 Bonds, currently outstanding in the 
principal amount of $2,680,000.  See “SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.”  Concurrently with the 
issuance of the Bonds, the Agency will enter into an Escrow Agreement, dated as of ___ 1, 2015 (the 
“Escrow Agreement”), with MUFG Union Bank, N.A., Los Angeles, California, as escrow agent (the 
“Escrow Agent”).  Under the Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent will create and establish an escrow 
fund, to be known as the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund (the “Escrow Fund”).  Amounts in the Escrow Fund 
will be held [uninvested] and will be used to pay the redemption price on the 2006 Bonds, including any 
accrued and unpaid interest with respect thereto, on October 1, 2015.  The monies deposited in the 
Escrow Fund will be held solely for the benefit of the holders of the 2006 Bonds and will not serve as a 
security or be available for payment of principal of, or interest on, or premium, if any, on the Bonds.   

Sufficiency of the deposits to pay and redeem the 2006 Bonds will be verified upon delivery of 
the Bonds by Grant Thornton, Minneapolis, Minnesota. See “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – 
Verification” herein.  As a result of the deposit and application of funds pursuant to the Escrow 



 

 5  
 

Agreement, the lien upon the Pledged Tax Revenues of the 2006 Bonds will be discharged, and the 2006 
Bonds will no longer have any claim against the Pledged Tax Revenues. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of funds for the Bonds are summarized as follows:  

Sources  
  Principal Amount of Bonds ........................................  $ 
  [Plus/Less] Net Original Issue [Premium/Discount] ..   
  2006 Bonds Funds and Accounts ...............................       
   Total Sources .......................................................   
 Uses 
  Underwriter’s Discount ..............................................    
  Reserve Account (1) .....................................................    
  2006 Bonds Escrow Fund (2) .......................................    
  Costs of Issuance Fund (3) ...........................................           
   Total Uses ............................................................   $ 

_________ 
(1) An amount equal to the Reserve Requirement for the Bonds.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Reserve 

Account.” 
(2) An amount of moneys sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 2006 Bonds 

through October 1, 2015.  See “PLAN OF REFUNDING.” 
(3) Costs of Issuance include fees and expenses for Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, Financial Advisor, trustee, 

printing expenses, rating fee, Verification Agent fees and expenses and other costs. 

THE BONDS 

Authority for Issuance 

The Bonds were authorized for issuance pursuant to the Indenture, the Bond Law, and the 
Dissolution Act. 

Description of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be executed and delivered as one fully-registered Bond in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof for each maturity, initially in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), as registered owner of all Bonds.  
See “Book-Entry System” below.   

Interest on the Bonds (calculated based upon a 360-day year of twelve thirty-day months) will be 
payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing on [April 1, 2016] (each an 
“Interest Payment Date”) to the person whose name appears on the registration books as the owner 
thereof as of the 15th day of the month immediately preceding each such Interest Payment Date (“Regular 
Record Date”).  Interest will be paid by check or draft of the Trustee mailed on the Interest Payment Date 
by first class mail to such Owner at the address that appears on the registration books of the Trustee; 
provided, however, that upon the written request of any Owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount 
of Bonds received by the Trustee at least 15 days prior to such Regular Record Date, payment shall be 
made by wire transfer in immediately available funds to an account in the United States designated by 
such Owner.  Principal of and redemption premium (if any) on any Bond will be paid upon presentation 
and surrender thereof, at maturity or redemption, at the Trust Office of the Trustee.  Both the principal of 



 

 6  
 

and interest and premium (if any) on the Bonds will be payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America.   

The Bonds will be dated as of the Delivery Date and will bear interest from the Interest Payment 
Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof, unless (a) it is authenticated after a Regular Record 
Date and on or before the following Interest Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such 
Interest Payment Date; or (b) a Bond is authenticated on or before [March 15, 2016], in which event it 
shall bear interest from the Delivery Date; provided, however, that if, as of the date of authentication of 
any Bond, interest thereon is in default, such Bond will bear interest from the Interest Payment Date to 
which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment thereon. 

Book-Entry System 

DTC, New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be 
issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.  (DTC’s partnership nominee) 
or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered 
certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such 
maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. See “APPENDIX D – BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM.” 

Redemption and Purchase of Bonds 

Optional Redemption. 

The Bonds maturing on or before October 1, 20__ are not subject to optional redemption prior to 
maturity.  The Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 20__ may be redeemed at the option of the Agency 
prior to maturity on any date on or after October 1, 20__ as a whole, or in part from such maturities as are 
selected by the Agency, and by lot within a maturity, from funds derived by the Agency from any source, 
at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds being redeemed, without premium, 
together with accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption.   

Sinking Account Redemption.   

The Bonds maturing on October 1, 20__ and October 1, 20__ (the “Term Bonds”) are subject to 
redemption in part by lot on October 1, 20__ and October 1, 20__, respectively, and on October 1 in each 
year shown in the following tables until maturity, from sinking account payments made by the Agency, at 
a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed with accrued interest thereon to 
the redemption date, without premium, in the aggregate respective principal amounts and on the 
respective dates as set forth in the following tables; provided, however, that if some but not all of the 
Term Bonds have been redeemed the total amount of all future sinking account payments will be reduced 
by an amount corresponding to the aggregate principal amount of Bonds so redeemed, to be allocated 
among such sinking account payments on a pro rata basis in integral multiples of $5,000 as determined by 
the Agency (notice of which determination will be given by the Agency to the Trustee). 

Term Bonds Maturing in 20__ 
Sinking Fund 
Payment Date 

  
Principal 

(October 1)  Amount 
  $  

(maturity)   
 



 

 7  
 

Term Bonds Maturing in 20__ 
Sinking Fund 
Payment Date 

  
Principal 

(October 1)  Amount 
  $  

(maturity)   
 

Purchase in Lieu of Redemption.  In lieu of sinking account redemption of Bonds, amounts on 
deposit in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund (to the extent not required to be transferred to 
the Trustee during the current Bond Year) may also be used and withdrawn by the Agency at any time for 
the purchase of the Bonds at public or private sale as and when and at such prices (including brokerage 
and other charges and including accrued interest) as the Agency may in its discretion determine.  The par 
amount of any of the Bonds so purchased by the Agency and surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation 
in any twelve-month period ending on June 1 in any year will be credited towards and will reduce the 
principal amount of the Bonds otherwise required to be redeemed on the following October 1 pursuant to 
the Indenture. 

Notice of Redemption 

The Agency will give the Trustee written notice of its intention to redeem Bonds pursuant to the 
Indenture at least 40 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, and will transfer to the Trustee for 
deposit in the Redemption Account all amounts required for such redemption at least five (5) Business 
Days prior to the date fixed for such redemption; provided, the Trustee may waive such requirements in 
its sole discretion, such notice for the sole convenience of the Trustee, upon written request of the 
Agency.  The Trustee on behalf of and at the expense of the Agency will mail (by first class mail, postage 
prepaid) notice of any redemption at least 30 but not more than 60 days prior to the redemption date to the 
Owners of any Bonds designated for redemption at their respective addresses appearing on the 
Registration Books.  Such mailing will not be a condition precedent to a redemption and neither failure to 
receive any such notice nor any defect therein will affect the validity of the proceedings for the 
redemption of such Bonds or the cessation of the accrual of interest thereon.  Such notice will state the 
redemption date and the redemption price, will designate the CUSIP number of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, state the individual number of each Bond to be redeemed or state that all Bonds between two 
stated numbers (both inclusive) or all of the Bonds Outstanding (or all Bonds of a maturity) are to be 
redeemed, and will require that such Bonds be then surrendered at the Trust Office of the Trustee for 
redemption at the said redemption price, giving notice also that further interest on such Bonds will not 
accrue from and after the redemption date. 

The Agency has the right to rescind any optional redemption by written notice to the Trustee at 
least 15 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.  Any notice of optional redemption will be cancelled 
and annulled if for any reason funds will not be or are not available on the date fixed for redemption for 
the payment in full of the Bonds then called for redemption, and such cancellation will not constitute an 
Event of Default under the Indenture.  The Agency and the Trustee will have no liability to the Owners or 
any other party related to or arising from such rescission of redemption.  The Trustee will mail notice of 
such rescission of redemption in the same manner as the original notice of redemption was sent. 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to determine the amount of property 
taxes that would have been allocated to the Prior Agency (pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution) had the Prior Agency not been dissolved pursuant to the operation 



 

 8  
 

of AB X1 26, using current assessed values on the last equalized roll on August 20, and to deposit that 
amount in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the Agency established and held by the 
County Auditor-Controller pursuant to the Dissolution Act. The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds 
authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency will be considered indebtedness incurred by the 
dissolved Prior Agency, with the same legal effect as if the bonds had been issued prior to effective date 
of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the applicable provisions of the Redevelopment Law that existed 
prior to that date, and will be included in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  See 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” and “APPENDIX B – 
SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE.” 

The Dissolution Act further provides that bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency 
will be secured by a pledge of, and lien on, and will be repaid from moneys deposited from time to time 
in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, and that property tax revenues pledged to any bonds 
authorized to be issued by the Agency under the Dissolution Act, including the Bonds, are taxes allocated 
to the Agency pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution.   

Pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 33670 of the Redevelopment Law and Article XVI of the 
Constitution of the State and as provided in the Redevelopment Plans, taxes levied upon taxable property 
in the Project Area each year by or for the benefit of the State, any city, county, city and county, district, 
or other public corporation (herein sometimes collectively called “taxing agencies”) after the effective 
dates of the respective ordinances approving the Redevelopment Plans, or the respective effective dates of 
ordinances approving amendments to the Redevelopment Plans that added territory to the Project Area, as 
applicable, are to be divided as follows: 

(a) To Taxing Agencies:  That portion of the taxes which would be produced by the 
rate upon which the tax is levied each year by or for each of the taxing agencies upon the total 
sum of the assessed value of the taxable property in the Project Area as shown upon the 
assessment roll used in connection with the taxation of such property by such taxing agency last 
equalized prior to the effective date of the ordinances adopting the Redevelopment Plans, or the 
respective effective dates of ordinances approving amendments to the Redevelopment Plans that 
added territory to the Project Area, as applicable  (each, a “base year valuation”), will be 
allocated to, and when collected will be paid into, the funds of the respective taxing agencies as 
taxes by or for the taxing agencies on all other property are paid; and 

(b) To the Prior Agency/Agency:  Except for that portion of the taxes in excess of the 
amount identified in (a) above which are attributable to a tax rate levied by a taxing agency for 
the purpose of producing revenues in an amount sufficient to make annual repayments of the 
principal of, and the interest on, any bonded indebtedness approved by the voters of the taxing 
agency on or after January 1, 1989 for the acquisition or improvement of real property, which 
portion shall be allocated to, and when collected shall be paid into, the fund of that taxing agency, 
that portion of the levied taxes each year in excess of such amount, annually allocated within the 
Plan Limit following the Delivery Date, when collected will be paid into a special fund of the 
Prior Agency.  Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act provides that, for purposes of Section 16 of 
Article XVI of the State Constitution, the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund shall be 
deemed to be a special fund of the Agency to pay the debt service on indebtedness incurred by the 
Prior Agency or the Agency to finance or refinance the redevelopment projects of the Prior 
Agency.   

That portion of the levied taxes described in paragraph (b) above, less amounts deducted pursuant to 
Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act for permitted administrative costs of the County Auditor-
Controller, constitute the amounts required under the Dissolution Act to be deposited by the County 



 

 9  
 

Auditor-Controller into the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.  In addition, Section 34183 of the 
Dissolution Act effectively eliminates the January 1, 1989 date from paragraph (b) above. 

The Bonds are payable from and secured by (i) an irrevocable pledge of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues (defined below) to be derived from the Project Area, (ii) an irrevocable pledge of all of the 
monies in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund established and held by the Agency pursuant 
to the Dissolution Act, and (iii) an irrevocable first pledge and lien on all of the monies in the Debt 
Service Fund (including the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Reserve Account, and the 
Redemption Account therein) established and held by the Trustee in trust for the Bondowners under the 
Indenture.  See “PROJECT AREA.” 

“Pledged Tax Revenues” are defined under the Indenture as the monies deposited from time to 
time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
Section 34172 of the Dissolution Act, as provided in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of 
the Dissolution Act; provided, if, and to the extent, that the provisions of Section 34172 or paragraph (2) 
of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 are invalidated by a final judicial decision, then Pledged Tax 
Revenues shall include all tax revenues allocated to the payment of indebtedness pursuant to Health & 
Safety Code Section 33670 or such other section as may be in effect at the time providing for the 
allocation of tax increment revenues in accordance with Article XVI, Section 16 of the California 
Constitution.   

Taxes levied on the property within the Project Area on that portion of the taxable valuation over 
and above the taxable valuation of the applicable base year property tax roll with respect to the various 
territories within the Project Area, to the extent they constitute Pledged Tax Revenues, will be deposited 
in the  Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for transfer by the County Auditor-Controller to the 
Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on January 2 and June 1 of each year to the extent 
required for payments listed in the Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule in accordance 
with the requirements of the Dissolution Act (see “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule”).  Monies deposited by the County Auditor-Controller into the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund will be transferred by the Agency to the Trustee for deposit 
in the Debt Service Fund established under the Indenture and administered by the Trustee in accordance 
with the Indenture. 

The Agency has no power to levy and collect taxes, and various factors beyond its control could 
affect the amount of Pledged Tax Revenues available in any six-month period to pay the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing” and “– 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” and “RISK FACTORS”. 

The Bonds are not a debt of the City, the State or any of its political subdivisions (except the 
Agency), and none of the City, the State or any of its political subdivisions (except the Agency) is liable 
therefor.  The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

Tax Increment Financing 

Prior to the enactment of AB X1 26, the Redevelopment Law authorized the financing of 
redevelopment projects through the use of tax increment revenues. This method provided that the taxable 
valuation of the property within a redevelopment project area on the property tax roll last equalized prior 
to the effective date of the ordinance which adopts the redevelopment plan becomes the base year 
valuation.  Assuming the taxable valuation never drops below the base year level, the taxing agencies 
thereafter received that portion of the taxes produced by applying then current tax rates to the base year 
valuation, and the redevelopment agency was allocated the remaining portion produced by applying then 



 

 10  
 

current tax rates to the increase in valuation over the base year.  Such incremental tax revenues allocated 
to a redevelopment agency were authorized to be pledged to the payment of agency obligations.   

The Dissolution Act authorizes refunding bonds, including the Bonds, to be secured by a pledge 
of monies deposited from time to time in a Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund held by a county 
auditor-controller with respect to a successor agency, which are equivalent to the tax increment revenues 
that were formerly allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the redevelopment agency and formerly 
authorized under the Redevelopment Law to be used for the financing of redevelopment projects, less 
amounts deducted pursuant to Section 34183(a) of the Dissolution Act for permitted administrative costs 
of the county auditor-controller.  Under the Indenture, Pledged Tax Revenues consist of the amounts 
deposited from time to time in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund established pursuant to and as 
provided in the Dissolution Act.  Successor agencies have no power to levy property taxes and must look 
specifically to the allocation of taxes as described above.  See “RISK FACTORS.” 

Sections 33607.5 and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment Law required mandatory tax sharing 
applicable to redevelopment projects adopted after January 1, 1994, or amended thereafter in certain 
manners specified in such statutes (the “Statutory Pass-Through Amounts”).  The Dissolution Act 
requires the County Auditor-Controller to distribute from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
amounts required to be distributed for Statutory Pass-Through Amounts to the taxing entities for each six-
month period before amounts are distributed by the County Auditor-Controller from the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund each January 2 and 
June 1, unless (i) pass-through payment obligations have previously been made subordinate to debt 
service payments for the bonded indebtedness of the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, (ii) the 
Agency has reported, no later than the December 1 and May 1 preceding the January 2 or June 1 
distribution date, that the total amount available to the Agency from the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund allocation to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, from other funds 
transferred from the Prior Agency, and from funds that have or will become available through asset sales 
and all redevelopment operations is insufficient to fund the Agency’s enforceable obligations, pass-
through payments, and the Agency’s administrative cost allowance for the applicable six-month period, 
and (iii) the State Controller has concurred with the Agency that there are insufficient funds for such 
purposes for the applicable six-month period.   

The Dissolution Act provides for a procedure by which the Agency may make Statutory Tax 
Sharing Amounts subordinate to the Bonds.  However, the Agency has determined not to undertake such 
procedure, and therefore, Statutory Tax Sharing Amounts are senior to the Bonds. See “PROJECT AREA 
– Statutory Pass-Throughs” for additional information regarding the Statutory Tax Sharing Amounts 
applicable to the Agency and the revenues derived from the Project Area. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

ROPS Process Under the Dissolution Act 

Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act requires successor agencies to prepare and 
submit to the successor agency’s oversight board and the State Department of Finance for approval a 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (the “Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”) pursuant to 
which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, 
together with the source of funds to be used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  As defined in the 
Dissolution Act, “enforceable obligation” includes bonds, including the required debt service, reserve set-
asides, and any other payments required under the indenture or similar documents governing the issuance 
of the outstanding bonds of the former redevelopment agency, as well as other obligations such as loans, 
judgments or settlements against the former redevelopment agency, any legally binding and enforceable 
agreement that is not otherwise void as violating the debt limit or public policy, contracts necessary for 



 

 11  
 

the administration or operation of the successor agency, and amounts borrowed from the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund.  A reserve may be included on the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule and held by the successor agency when required by the bond indenture or when the next 
property tax allocation will be insufficient to pay all obligations due under the provisions of the bond for 
the next payment due in the following six-month period (see “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE 
INDENTURE – Other Covenants of the Successor Agency”). 

Under the Dissolution Act, the categories of sources of payments for enforceable obligations 
listed on a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule are the following:  (i) the Low and Moderate 
Income Housing Fund, (ii) bond proceeds, (iii) reserve balances, (iv) administrative cost allowance, (v) 
the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (but only to the extent no other funding source is available 
or when payment from property tax revenues is required by an enforceable obligation or otherwise 
required under the Dissolution Act), or (vi) other revenue sources (including rents, concessions, asset sale 
proceeds, interest earnings, and any other revenues derived from the former redevelopment agency, as 
approved by the oversight board).  Other than amounts deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund and amounts held in certain funds and accounts under the Indenture, the Agency does not 
expect to have any other funds available to pay the Bonds. 

The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule. 

The Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule with respect to each six-month period must be 
submitted by the Agency, after approval by the Oversight Board, to the County Administrative Officer, 
the County Auditor-Controller, the State Department of Finance and the State Controller by 90 days 
before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution. If the Agency does not submit a 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by such deadlines, the City will be subject to a civil penalty 
equal to $10,000 per day for every day the schedule is not submitted to the State Department of Finance.  
Additionally, the Agency’s administrative cost allowance is reduced by 25% if the Agency does not 
submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by the 80th day before the date of the next January 2 
or June 1 property tax distribution, as applicable.   

The Dissolution Act requires the State Department of Finance to make a determination of the 
enforceable obligations and the amounts and funding sources of the enforceable obligations no later than 
45 days after the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is submitted.  Within five business days of the 
determination by the State Department of Finance, the Agency may request additional review by the 
department and an opportunity to meet and confer on disputed items, if any.  The State Department of 
Finance will notify the Agency and the County Auditor-Controller as to the outcome of its review at least 
15 days before the January 2 or June 1 date of property tax distribution, as applicable.  Additionally, the 
County Auditor-Controller may review a submitted Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule and object 
to the inclusion of any items that are not demonstrated to be enforceable obligations and may object to the 
funding source proposed for any items, provided that the County Auditor-Controller must provide notice 
of any such objections to the Agency, the Oversight Board, and the State Department of Finance at least 
60 days prior to the January 2 or June 1 date of property tax distribution, as applicable.   

In connection with the allocation and distribution by the County Auditor-Controller of property 
tax revenues deposited in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, under the Dissolution Act the 
County Auditor-Controller must prepare estimates of the amounts of (i) property tax to be allocated and 
distributed and (ii) the amounts of pass-through payments to be made in the upcoming six-month period, 
and provide those estimates to the entities receiving the distributions and the State Department of Finance 
no later than October 1 and April 1 of each year, as applicable.  With respect to the Recognized 



 

 12  
 

Obligation Payment Schedule for January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016, the County Auditor-Controller 
is required to provide such estimate to the Agency by October 1, 2015.  If, after receiving such estimate 
from the County Auditor-Controller, the Agency determines and reports, no later than December 1 or 
May 1, as applicable (i.e., by December 1, 2015 with respect to the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule for January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016), that the total amount available to the Agency from 
the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund allocation to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation 
Retirement Fund, from other funds transferred from the Prior Agency, and from funds that have or will 
become available through asset sales and all redevelopment operations, is insufficient to fund the payment 
of pass-through obligations, for Agency enforceable obligations listed on the Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule, and for the Agency’s administrative cost allowance, the County Auditor-Controller 
must notify the State Controller and the State Department of Finance no later than 10 days from the date 
of the Agency’s notification.  If the State Controller concurs that there are insufficient funds to pay 
required debt service, the Dissolution Act provides for certain adjustments to be made to the estimated 
distributions, as described in more detail under “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment 
Financing” above. 

[confirm - The Agency timely submitted to the County Administrative Officer, the County 
Auditor-Controller, the State Department of Finance, and the State Controller its Oversight Board-
approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for the six-month periods of January 1, 2013 
through June 30, 2013; July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013; January 1, 2014 through June 30, 2014; 
July 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014; January 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015; and July 1, 2015 
through December 31, 2015.] 

Amounts Received for Six-Month Periods from 2013 to Present 

Pursuant to this process, the Agency received the following amounts for the periods set forth in 
the following table: 

ROPS 6-Month Period Amount 

ROPS III January 1, 2013 – June 30, 2013 $232,484 

ROPS 13-14A July 1, 2013 – December 31, 2013 253,439 

ROPS 13-14B January 1, 2014 – June 30, 2014 156,720 

ROPS 14-15A July 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014 193,609 

ROPS 14-15B January 1, 2015 – June 30, 2015 221,289 

ROPS 15-16A July 1, 2015 – December 31, 2015 214,594 

For additional information regarding procedures under the Dissolution Act relating to late 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules and implications thereof on the Bonds, see “RISK FACTORS 
– Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 

Statutory Limitations on Review of Bonds on ROPS by DOF 

The Dissolution Act provides that any bonds authorized thereunder to be issued by the Agency 
will be considered indebtedness incurred by the dissolved Prior Agency, with the same legal effect as if 
the bonds had been issued prior to effective date of AB X1 26, in full conformity with the applicable 
provision of the Redevelopment Law that existed prior to that date, and will be included in the Agency’s 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule. Section 34177.5(f) of the Dissolution Act additionally 
provides that if the State Department of Finance has requested review of the Oversight Board Resolution 



 

 13  
 

and, after review, has approved the resolution, the scheduled payments on the Bonds shall be listed in the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule and will not be subject to further review and approval by the 
State Department of Finance or the State Controller.   

Covenant to Include Debt Service on ROPS 

The Agency has covenanted in the Indenture to take all actions required under the Dissolution 
Act to include scheduled debt service on the Bonds, as well as any amount required under the Indenture to 
replenish the Reserve Account of the Debt Service Fund, in Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules 
for each six-month period so as to enable the County Auditor-Controller to distribute from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on 
each January 2 and June 1 amounts required for the Agency to pay principal of, and interest on the Bonds 
coming due in the respective six-month period. 

Reserve Account 

A Reserve Account will be maintained in the Debt Service Fund established and held by the 
Trustee under the Indenture for the Bonds and any Parity Bonds in an amount equal to the Reserve 
Requirement.  “Reserve Requirement” means, as of the date of computation, an amount equal to the lesser 
of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service on the Bonds and any Parity Bonds, (ii) 10% of the net proceeds of 
the Bonds and any Parity Bonds, or (iii) 125% of the Annual Debt Service on all Bonds and Parity Bonds 
Outstanding.  All money in the Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for 
the purpose of replenishing the Interest Account and the Principal Account, in such order of priority, in 
the event of any deficiency at any time in any of such accounts, or for the retirement of all the Bonds then 
outstanding.  The Reserve Requirement may be satisfied by crediting to the Reserve Account moneys or a 
Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument, or any combination thereof, which in the aggregate make 
funds available in the Reserve Account in an amount equal to the Reserve Account Requirement.  See 
“APPENDIX B - SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE.” 

Under the Indenture, “Qualified Reserve Account Credit Instrument” means an irrevocable 
standby or direct-pay letter of credit or surety bond issued by a commercial bank or insurance company 
and deposited with the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, provided that all of the following requirements 
are met at the time of acceptance thereof by the Trustee: (a) the long-term credit rating of such bank or 
insurance company is A+ or better from S&P or A1 or better from Moody's; (b) such letter of credit or 
surety bond has a term of at least twelve (12) months; (c) such letter of credit or surety bond has a stated 
amount at least equal to the portion of the Reserve Requirement with respect to which funds are proposed 
to be released; and (d) the Trustee is authorized pursuant to the terms of such letter of credit or surety 
bond to draw thereunder an amount equal to any deficiencies which may exist from time to time in the 
amount Interest Account and the Principal Account for the purpose of making payments required pursuant 
to the Indenture. 

Additional Parity Bonds 

Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act presently permits successor agencies to issue bonds or 
incurring other indebtedness secured by property tax revenues comprised of former tax increment and 
required to be deposited into the respective Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for the applicable 
successor agency under limited circumstances:   

(i) to provide savings to the successor agency;  

(ii)  for the purpose of financing debt service spikes, including balloon 
maturities; provided, (A) the existing indebtedness is not accelerated, except to the extent 



 

 14  
 

necessary to achieve substantially level debt service, and (B) the principal amount of the 
refunding bonds or the indebtedness will not exceed the amount required to defease the refunded 
bonds or other indebtedness, to establish customary debt service reserves, and to pay related costs 
of issuance;  

(iii)  for the purpose of amending an existing enforceable obligation under 
which the successor agency is obligated to reimburse a political subdivision of the state for the 
payment of debt service on a bond or other obligation of the political subdivision or to pay all or a 
portion of the debt service on the bond or other obligation of the political subdivision to provide 
savings to the successor agency, when such amendment is in connection with a refunding of the 
bonds or other obligations of the separate political subdivision so that the enforceable obligation 
will apply to the refunding obligations of the political subdivision; or 

(iv)  for the purpose of making payments under an existing enforceable 
obligation when the enforceable obligation includes the irrevocable pledge of property tax 
increment (i.e., formerly tax increment revenues prior to the effective date of the Dissolution Act) 
or other funds and the obligation to issue bonds secured by that pledge. 

When bonds are issued pursuant to the situations contemplated in clauses (i) and (iii), the following two 
constraints apply to the size of the financing:  (A) the total interest cost to maturity on the refunding 
bonds or indebtedness plus the principal amount of the refunding bonds or other indebtedness shall not 
exceed the total remaining interest cost to maturity on the bonds or other indebtedness to be refunded plus 
the remaining principal of the bonds or other indebtedness to be refunded, and (B) the principal amount of 
the refunding bonds or the indebtedness will not exceed the amount required to defease the refunded 
bonds or other indebtedness, to establish customary debt service reserves, and to pay related costs of 
issuance.  If the foregoing conditions are satisfied, the initial principal amount of the refunding bonds or 
indebtedness may be greater than the outstanding principal amount of the bonds or other indebtedness to 
be refunded.  The successor agency may pledge to the refunding bonds or other indebtedness the revenues 
pledged to the bonds or other indebtedness being refunded, having the same lien priority as the pledge of 
the bonds or other obligations to be refunded. 

Subject to the foregoing, the Agency may at any time after the issuance and delivery of the Bonds 
issue additional Parity Bonds payable from and secured by a lien and charge upon the Tax Revenues on a 
parity with the lien and charge securing the Bonds; provided that the following conditions which are set 
forth in the Indenture, are satisfied: 

In addition to the Bonds, the Indenture provides that the Agency may issue or incur Parity Bonds 
in such principal amount as determined by the Agency, pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture adopted or 
entered into by the Agency and Trustee and for such purposes as are permitted under the Dissolution Act, 
including without limitation Section 34177.5 thereof.  The Successor Agency may issue such Parity 
Bonds subject to the following specific conditions specified in the Indenture: 

(a) The Agency is in compliance with all covenants set forth in the Indenture; 

(b) The Oversight Board has approved the issuance of such Parity Bonds; 

(c) The Parity Bonds will be on such terms and conditions as may be set forth in a Supplemental 
Indenture, which will provide for (i) bonds substantially in accordance with the Indenture, and (ii) the 
deposit of moneys into the Reserve Account in an amount sufficient, together with the balance of the 
Reserve Account, to equal the Reserve Requirement on all Bonds expected to be outstanding including 
the Bonds and the Parity Bonds; 



 

 15  
 

(d) Receipt of a certificate or opinion of an Independent Financial Consultant stating: 

(i) For the current and each future Bond Year the debt service for each such Bond 
Year with respect to all Bonds and any Parity Bonds reasonably expected to be 
outstanding following the issuance of the Parity Bonds; 

(ii) For the then current Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues to be received by the 
Agency based upon the most recently certified assessed valuation of taxable 
property in the Project Area provided by the appropriate officer of the County; 

(iii) For each future Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item (ii) 
together with (a) the amount determined in accordance with Section 51(a) of the 
California Revenue and Taxation Code and (b) the amount of Pledged Tax 
Revenues to be payable with respect to construction completed but not yet on the 
tax rolls, and taking into account the expiration of the time to receive Pledged Tax 
Revenues with respect to any portion of the Project Area and any amounts to be 
paid pursuant to the Statutory Pass-Through Amounts; and. 

(iv) That for the then current Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item 
(ii) and for each future Fiscal Year the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item 
(iii) are at least equal to the sum of 125% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service 
with respect to amounts referred to in item (i) above (excluding debt service with 
respect to any portion of the Parity Bonds deposited in an escrowed proceeds 
account to the extent such debt service is paid from earnings on the investment of 
such funds), and, for the then current Fiscal Year, 100% of Annual Debt Service 
with respect to any subordinate debt and that the Successor Agency is entitled 
under the Dissolution Act, the Redevelopment Law and the Redevelopment Plan to 
receive taxes under the Dissolution Act in an amount sufficient to meet expected 
debt service with respect to all Bonds and any Parity Bonds. 

(e)  The Parity Bonds will mature on and interest will be payable on the same dates as the Bonds 
(except the first interest payment may be from the date of the Parity Bonds until the next succeeding 
May 1 or November l); provided, however, nothing shall preclude the Agency from issuing and selling 
Parity Bonds which do not pay current interest. 

Bonds Not a Debt of the City of Hughson or the State of California 

The Bonds are special obligations of the Agency and as such are not a debt of the City, the State 
or any of its political subdivisions other than the Agency.  Neither the City, the State nor any of its 
political subdivisions other than the Agency is liable for the payment thereof.  In no event shall the Bonds 
be payable out of any funds or properties other than those of the Agency as set forth in the Indenture.  The 
Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt 
limitation or restriction.  Neither the members of the Agency nor any persons executing the Bonds are 
liable personally on the Bonds. 

THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

The Prior Agency was established on January 14, 2002 by the City Council of the City with the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 01-11, pursuant to the Redevelopment Law.  On June 29, 2011, AB X1 26 was 
enacted as Chapter 5, Statutes of 2011, together with a companion bill, AB X1 27.  A lawsuit was brought 



 

 16  
 

in the California Supreme Court, California Redevelopment Association, et al., v. Matosantos, et al., 53 
Cal. 4th 231 (Cal. 2011), challenging the constitutionality of AB X1 26 and AB X1 27.  In its December 
29, 2011 decision, the California Supreme Court largely upheld AB X1 26, invalidated AB X1 27, and 
held that AB X1 26 may be severed from AB X1 27 and enforced independently.  As a result of AB X1 
26 and the decision of the California Supreme Court in the California Redevelopment Association case, as 
of February 1, 2012, all redevelopment agencies in the State were dissolved, including the Prior Agency, 
and successor agencies were designated as successor entities to the former redevelopment agencies to 
expeditiously wind down the affairs of the former redevelopment agencies.   

On January 9, 2012, pursuant to Resolution No. 2012-04 and Section 34173 of the Dissolution 
Act, the City Council of the City elected to serve as successor agency to the Prior Agency.  Subdivision 
(g) of Section 34173 of the Dissolution Act, added by AB 1484, expressly affirms that the Agency is a 
separate public entity from the City, that the two entities shall not merge, and that the liabilities of the 
Prior Agency will not be transferred to the City nor will the assets of the Prior Agency become assets of 
the City. 

The Agency is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (the “Board”) which consists of 
the members of the City Council of the City of Hughson. The Mayor acts as the Chair of the Board, the 
City Manager as its Executive Director, the City Clerk as its Secretary and the Finance Director of the 
City as the Finance Officer of the Agency. 

Members and Officers 

The members and officers of the Agency and the expiration dates of their terms are as follows: 

Name and Office Expiration of Term 
Matt Beekman, Chair November 2016 
Jeramy Young, Vice-Chair November 2016 
George Carr, Director November 2018 
Jill Silva, Director November 2016 
Harold Hill, Director November 2018 
  

Agency Powers 

All powers of the Agency are vested in its five members who are elected members of the City 
Council.  Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the Agency is a separate public body from the City and 
succeeds to the organizational status of the Prior Agency but without any legal authority to participate in 
redevelopment activities, except to complete any work related to an approved enforceable obligation.  The 
Agency is tasked with expeditiously winding down the affairs of the Prior Agency, pursuant to the 
procedures and provisions of the Dissolution Act.  Under the Dissolution Act, many Agency actions are 
subject to approval by the Oversight Board, as well as review by the State Department of Finance.  
California has strict laws regarding public meetings (known as the Ralph M. Brown Act) which generally 
make all Agency and Oversight Board meetings open to the public in a similar manner as City Council 
meetings. 

Under a State initiative enacted in 1974, public officials are required to make extensive 
disclosures regarding their financial interests by filing such disclosures as public records.  As of the date 
of this Official Statement, the members of the City Council and the Agency, and other City and Agency 
officials have made the required filings. 



 

 17  
 

Previously, Section 33675 of the Redevelopment Law required the Prior Agency to file not later 
than the first day of October of each year with the County Auditor a statement of indebtedness certified 
by the chief fiscal officer of the Prior Agency for each redevelopment plan which provides for the 
allocation of taxes (i.e., the Redevelopment Plan).  The statement of indebtedness was required to contain 
the date on which the bonds were delivered, the principal amount, term, purposes and interest rate of the 
bonds and the outstanding balance and amount due on the bonds.  Similar information was required to be 
given for each loan, advance or indebtedness that the Prior Agency had incurred or entered into which is 
payable from tax increment.  Section 33675 also provided that payments of tax increment revenues from 
the County Auditor to the Prior Agency could not exceed the amounts shown on the Prior Agency’s 
statement of indebtedness.  The Dissolution Act eliminates this requirement and provides that, 
commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule supersedes the statement of indebtedness previously required 
under the Redevelopment Law, and commencing from such date, the statement of indebtedness will no 
longer be prepared nor have any effect under the Redevelopment Law (see “SECURITY FOR THE 
BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule”). 

RISK FACTORS 

The following information should be considered by prospective investors in evaluating the Bonds. 
However, the following does not purport to be an exhaustive listing of risks and other considerations 
which may be relevant to investing in the Bonds. In addition, the order in which the following information 
is presented is not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks. 

Reduction in Taxable Value 

Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund are determined 
by the amount of incremental taxable value in the Project Area and the current rate or rates at which 
property in the Project Area are taxed. The reduction of taxable values of property in the Project Area 
caused by economic factors beyond the Agency’s control, such as relocation out of the Project Area by 
one or more major property owners, sale of property to a non-profit corporation exempt from property 
taxation, or the complete or partial destruction of such property caused by, among other eventualities, 
earthquake or other natural disaster, could cause a reduction in the Pledged Tax Revenues that provide for 
the repayment of and secure the Bonds.  Such reduction of Pledged Tax Revenues could have an adverse 
effect on the Agency’s ability to make timely payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

As described in greater detail under the heading “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution,” Article XIIIA provides that the full cash value base of real 
property used in determining taxable value may be adjusted from year to year to reflect the inflation rate, 
not to exceed a two percent increase for any given year, or may be reduced to reflect a reduction in the 
consumer price index, comparable local data or any reduction in the event of declining property value 
caused by damage, destruction or other factors (as described above). Such measure is computed on a 
calendar year basis. Any resulting reduction in the full cash value base over the term of the Bonds could 
reduce Pledged Tax Revenues securing the Bonds. 

In addition to the other limitations on, and required application under the Dissolution Act of 
Pledged Tax Revenues on deposit in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund, described herein under 
the heading “RISK FACTORS,” the State electorate or Legislature could adopt a constitutional or 
legislative property tax reduction with the effect of reducing Pledged Tax Revenues allocated to the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund and available to the Agency. Although the federal and State 
Constitutions include clauses generally prohibiting the Legislature’s impairment of contracts, there are 
also recognized exceptions to these prohibitions.  There is no assurance that the State electorate or 



 

 18  
 

Legislature will not at some future time approve additional limitations that could reduce the Pledged Tax 
Revenues and adversely affect the source of repayment and security of the Bonds. 

Risks to Real Estate Market 

The Agency’s ability to make payments on the Bonds will be dependent upon the economic 
strength of the Project Area. The general economy of the Project Area will be subject to all of the risks 
generally associated with urban real estate markets.  Real estate prices and development may be adversely 
affected by changes in general economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate market and interest 
rates, unexpected increases in development costs and by other similar factors. Further, real estate 
development within the Project Area could be adversely affected by limitations of infrastructure or future 
governmental policies, including governmental policies to restrict or control development. In addition, if 
there is a decline in the general economy of the Project Area, the owners of property within the Project 
Area may be less able or less willing to make timely payments of property taxes or may petition for 
reduced assessed valuation causing a delay or interruption in the receipt of Pledged Tax Revenues by the 
Agency from the Project Area. 

Reduction in Inflationary Rate 

As described in greater detail below, Article XIIIA of the State Constitution provides that the full 
cash value of real property used in determining taxable value may be adjusted from year to year to reflect 
the inflationary rate, not to exceed a 2 percent increase for any given year, or may be reduced to reflect a 
reduction in the consumer price index or comparable local data. Such measure is computed on a calendar 
year basis. Because Article XIIIA limits inflationary assessed value adjustments to the lesser of the actual 
inflationary rate or 2 percent, there have been years in which the assessed values were adjusted by actual 
inflationary rates, which were less than 2 percent.  Since Article XIIIA was approved, the annual 
adjustment for inflation has fallen below the 2 percent limitation several times but in Fiscal Year 2010-11 
the inflationary value adjustment was negative for the first time at -0.237%. In Fiscal Year 2011-12, the 
inflationary value adjustment was 0.753%, which also is below the 2 percent limitation, but for Fiscal 
Years 2012-13 and 2013-14, the inflationary value adjustment was 2.00%, which is the maximum 
permissible increase under Article XIIIA.  For Fiscal Year 2014-15, the inflationary value adjustment is 
0.454%.  For Fiscal Year 2015-16, the inflationary value adjustment will be 1.998%.  The Agency is 
unable to predict if any adjustments to the full cash value of real property within the Project Area, 
whether an increase or a reduction, will be realized in the future. 

Development Risks 

The general economy of the Project Area will be subject to all the risks generally associated with 
real estate development. Projected development within the Project Area may be subject to unexpected 
delays, disruptions and changes. Real estate development operations may be adversely affected by 
changes in general economic conditions, fluctuations in the real estate market and interest rates, 
unexpected increases in development costs and by other similar factors. Further, real estate development 
operations within the Project Area could be adversely affected by future governmental policies, including 
governmental policies to restrict or control development. If projected development in the Project Area is 
delayed or halted, the economy of the Project Area could be affected. If such events lead to a decline in 
assessed values they could cause a reduction in Pledged Tax Revenues. In addition, if there is a decline in 
the general economy of the Project Area, the owners of property within the Project Area may be less able 
or less willing to make timely payments of property taxes causing a delay or stoppage of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues received by the Agency from the Project Area. In addition, the insolvency or bankruptcy of one 
or more large owners of property within the Project Area could delay or impair the receipt of Pledged Tax 
Revenues by the Agency.  



 

 19  
 

Levy and Collection of Taxes 

The Agency has no independent power to levy or collect property taxes. Any reduction in the tax 
rate or the implementation of any constitutional or legislative property tax decrease could reduce the 
Pledged Tax Revenues, and accordingly, could have an adverse impact on the security for and the ability 
of the Agency to repay the Bonds. 

Likewise, delinquencies in the payment of property taxes by the owners of land in the Project 
Area, and the impact of bankruptcy proceedings on the ability of taxing agencies to collect property taxes, 
could have an adverse effect on the Agency’s ability to make timely payments on the Bonds. Any 
reduction in Pledged Tax Revenues, whether for any of these reasons or any other reasons, could have an 
adverse effect on the Agency’s ability to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

State Budget Issues 

AB X1 26 and AB 1484 were enacted by the State Legislature and Governor as trailer bills 
necessary to implement provisions of the State’s budget acts for its fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, 
respectively.  The 2011-12 State budget included projected State savings estimated to aggregate $1.7 
billion in 2011-12 associated with AB X1 27, which would have allowed redevelopment agencies to 
continue in operation provided their establishing cities or counties agreed to make an aggregate $1.7 
billion in payments to K-12 schools.  However, in December 2011, AB X1 27 was found by the 
California Supreme Court to violate the State Constitution, which altered this budgetary plan of the State.  
According to the State's Summary of the 2012-13 State budget, AB 1484 implements a framework to 
transfer cash assets previously held by redevelopment agencies to cities, counties, and special districts to 
fund core public services, with assets transferred to schools offsetting State general fund costs (projected 
savings of $1.5 billion).   

For fiscal year 2013-14, the State budget implemented a number of changes, unrelated to 
redevelopment dissolution, to help the State work toward (on a multiyear basis) a $1 billion reserve, such 
as extending certain medical fees and taxes and continuing the use of miscellaneous State highway 
account revenues to pay transportation bond debt service.  The 2013-14 budget summary additionally 
describes Proposition 98 (schools) General Fund savings estimated at $2.1 billion in 2012-13 and $1.1 
billion in 2013-14 as a result of monies generated by redevelopment agency dissolution in those years, a 
portion of which are one-time savings generated from the distribution of unencumbered funds held by 
former redevelopment agencies.   

The budget summary for the State’s enacted 2014-15 budget (the “2014-15 Budget Summary”) 
updates the estimated the Proposition 98 (schools) General Fund savings resulting from dissolution of 
redevelopment agencies, citing approximately $2.2 billion in such State General Fund savings in 2011-12 
and 2012-13 combined, and another estimated $2.1 billion in such State General Fund savings in 2013-14 
and 2014-15.  As described in the 2014-15 budget summary, the State’s budget is heavily dependent on 
the performance of the stock market and the resulting capital gains tax revenues, which are estimated to 
provide 9.8 percent of General Fund revenues in 2014-15.  In response to the volatility of such revenues 
and the resulting boom-and-bust budget cycles, the State Legislature placed a constitutional amendment 
on the November 2014 ballot, referred to as Proposition 2, which was passed by the voters.  Proposition 2 
requires, among other things, beginning in fiscal year 2015-16 and annually thereafter, a transfer of 1.5% 
of estimated general fund revenues to the state budget stabilization account (the State’s “Rainy Day 
Fund”), and a deposit of personal capital gains tax revenues exceeding 8 percent of General Fund 
revenues (up to a maximum Rainy Day Fund balance equal to 10 percent of State General Fund 
revenues).  In addition, Proposition 2 requires half of each year’s deposit into the Rainy Day Fund for the 
next 15 years to be used for supplemental payments to reduce the State’s long-term debt or other long-
term liabilities.  The State deposited funds into the Rainy Day Fund previously in fiscal years 2006–07 



 

 20  
 

and 2007–08, for a total rainy–day fund of $1.5 billion, but the fund was emptied when revenues 
plummeted during the financial crisis.  Since fiscal year 2007–08, governors have suspended the Rainy 
Day Fund deposit each year.  Proposition 2 allows limited use of funds in case of emergency or if there is 
a state budget deficit.   

Governor’s Proposed 2015-16 State Budget:  Changes to the Dissolution Process 

On January 9, 2015, California Governor Brown released the proposed fiscal year 2015-16 State 
budget.  Although the Governor’s Budget Summary for the proposed fiscal year 2015-16 State budget 
(the “2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary”) proposes a balanced budget, the 2015-16 Proposed Budget 
Summary cautions that, since 2000, the State’s short periods of balanced budgets have been followed by 
massive budget shortfalls.   The 2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary projects that by the end of the year, 
the State’s Rainy Day Fund will have a total balance of $2.8 billion, increasing from a balance of 
approximately $1.6 million at the end of fiscal year 2014-15.  However, the 2015-16 Proposed Budget 
Summary also notes that commitments made by the State in the past two years are already straining the 
State’s finances.  Under a projection of current policies, the 2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary 
anticipates that the State would begin to spend more than it receives in annual revenues by fiscal year 
2018-19, by an amount of approximately $1 billion. 

The 2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary also proposes legislation to modify the process of 
dissolving redevelopment agencies:  “Administering the orderly dissolution of almost 400 redevelopment 
agencies has been complex and time consuming.  Oversight of the dissolution process has progressed to 
the point where the Budget proposes legislation to streamline the state review process to continue the 
wind-down activities.”  The proposed legislation, as described in the 2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary, 
would accomplish the following changes: 

• Transition all successor agencies from a biannual Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule process to an annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule process 
beginning July 1, 2016, when the successor agencies transition to a countywide oversight 
board.  

• Establish an optional “Last and Final” Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (“Last 
and Final ROPS”) process beginning September 2015.  The Last and Final ROPS would 
be available only to successor agencies that have a Finding of Completion, are in 
agreement with the State Department of Finance on what items qualify for payment, and 
meet other specified conditions.  If approved by the State Department of Finance, the 
Last and Final ROPS would be binding on all parties, and the successor agency would no 
longer submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule to the State Department of 
Finance or the oversight board.  The county auditor-controller would remit the authorized 
funds to the successor agency in accordance with the approved Last and Final ROPS until 
each remaining enforceable obligation has been fully paid. 

• Former tax increment caps and redevelopment plan expirations would not apply for the 
purposes of paying approved enforceable obligations, to assure that funding would 
continue to flow until all approved enforceable obligations have been paid. 

• Reentered agreements that are not for the purpose of providing administrative support 
activities would not be authorized or enforceable. 

• Litigation expenses associated with challenging dissolution determinations would not be 
separate enforceable obligations, but rather must be funded as part of the successor 



 

 21  
 

agency’s administrative cost allowance (an amount that is limited by a formula under the 
Dissolution Act). 

• Contractual and statutory pass-through payments would end upon termination of all of a 
successor agency’s enforceable obligations. 

• The State Department of Finance would be exempt from the regulatory process and the 
federal Administrative Procedures Act. 

• County auditor-controllers’ offices would serve as staff for countywide oversight boards. 

Except for the first two bullet points listed above, the Governor and the State Department of 
Finance view the proposed changes as “clarifying language,” but there is disagreement among dissolution 
process participants as to whether such proposed changes are merely clarifying changes or would 
constitute changes in the existing law.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule – Proposed Legislative Revisions to ROPS Process” for additional information 
concerning the Governor’s proposal to transition all successor agencies from a biannual Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule process to an annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule process 
beginning July 1, 2016. 

May Revision 

On May 14, 2015, the Governor released the May revision to the proposed fiscal year 2015-16 
State budget (the “May Revision”).   The May Revision reflects revised revenue and spending forecasts 
since the budget that the Governor released on January 9, 2015, including a $6.7 billion increase in 
projected State general fund revenues compared to the January budget.  With respect to redevelopment 
agencies, the May Revision includes the following substantive amendments to the proposed legislation to 
amend the Dissolution Act: 

• Findings of Completion – successor agencies that enter into a written payment agreement 
with the State Department of Finance to remit their unencumbered case assets to the 
county auditor-controller would be allowed to receive a finding of completion.  

• Stranded 2011 Bond Proceeds – for successor agencies with a finding of completion, the 
May Revision established a tiered process whereby they may expend a portion of these 
stranded proceeds.  The unused portions would be used to defease the outstanding bonds 
in accordance with current law. 

• Property Tax “Override” Revenues – any pension of State Water Project voter-approved 
property tax override revenues pledged to debt service on redevelopment agency bonds or 
obligations must be used for that purpose.  However, if the override revenues were not 
pledged to debt service, they will be returned in their entirety to the entity that levies the 
override.  Further, if the override revenues were pledged to debt service on 
redevelopment agency bonds or obligations, but some of the revenues are not needed for 
debt service payments, the entirety of the portion not needed for debt service payments 
will be returned to the levying entity. 

• Highway Infrastructure Improvements – a sponsoring entity could loan money to a 
successor agency for litigation expenses associated with challenging dissolution 
decisions, and those loaned amounts may be repaid as an enforceable obligation if the 
litigation is successful. 



 

 22  
 

• Reentered Agreements – only reentered agreements entered into after the passage of AB 
1383 are unauthorized and unenforceable, unless they were for the purpose of providing 
administrative support activities would not be authorized or enforceable. 

The May Revisions also changes the nature of the proposed legislation from an urgency statute to 
a budget “trailer bill.”  As described by the State Department of Finance, in a proposed or approved State 
budget there are generally changes that necessitate modifications to existing law in order to implement the 
budget changes.  “Trailer bills” are separate bills introduced to implement these changes and are heard 
concurrently with the proposed budget bill.  The trailer bill proposed by the May Revision requires only a 
majority vote and would be effective immediately upon adoption. 

Based on the present language of the proposed legislation, the Agency does not anticipate that the 
proposed changes to transition to an annual Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule process would 
adversely affect the timing or distribution of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency for payment of 
principal and interest due on the Bonds.  However, as with any legislative proposal by the Governor, the 
budget is subject to the legislative process, and at this point it is not clear whether the Governor will have 
the Legislature’s support regarding these proposals.  In any case, it is uncertain when any budget 
legislation may be adopted or what the exact provisions of any such legislation will be.  Depending on the 
actual provisions enacted, the potential impact of future legislation could be material to the Agency and 
its ability to repay existing and future obligations.  There can be no assurance that additional provisions 
affecting successor agencies or Pledged Tax Revenues will not be included in the proposed legislation 
relating to the 2015-16 State budget, or that additional legislation will not be enacted in the future to 
implement other provisions affecting successor agencies or Pledged Tax Revenues. 

The full text of each State Assembly bill cited above may be obtained from the “Official 
California Legislative Information” website maintained by the Legislative Counsel of the State of 
California pursuant to State law, at the following web link:  http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/bilinfo.html.    

Information about the State budget and State spending is available at various State maintained 
websites.  Text of the 2015-16 Proposed Budget Summary, the Governor’s proposed 2015-16 State 
budget, the May Revision, the 2014-15 Budget Summary, the current State budget, and other documents 
related to the State budget may be found at the website of the State Department of Finance, 
www.dof.ca.gov.  A nonpartisan analysis of the budget is posted by the Legislative Analyst’s Office at 
www.lao.ca.gov.  In addition, various State official statements, many of which contain a summary of the 
current and past State budgets may be found at the website of the State Treasurer, www.treasurer.ca.gov.  

None of the websites or webpages referenced above is in any way incorporated into this Official 
Statement.  They are cited for informational purposes only.  The Agency makes no representation 
whatsoever as to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information on such websites. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 

The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on the date the first Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule.  Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act requires successor agencies to prepare and 
approve, and submit to the successor agency’s oversight board and the State Department of Finance for 
approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule pursuant to which enforceable obligations (as 
defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, together with the source of funds to be 
used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  Pledged Tax Revenues will not be distributed from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund by the County Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund without a duly approved and effective Recognized 



 

 23  
 

Obligation Payment Schedule obtained in sufficient time prior to the January 2 or June 1 distribution 
dates, as applicable.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule” 
and “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA – Property Tax Collection Procedures – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule.”  In the event the Agency fails to file a Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule with respect to a six-month period, the availability of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency 
could be adversely affected for such period. 

In the event a successor agency fails to submit to the State Department of Finance an oversight 
board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule complying with the provisions of the 
Dissolution Act within five business days of the date upon which the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule is to be used to determine the amount of property tax allocations, the State Department of 
Finance may determine if any amount should be withheld by the applicable county auditor-controller for 
payments for enforceable obligations from distribution to taxing entities pursuant to clause (iv) in the 
following paragraph, pending approval of a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Upon notice 
provided by the State Department of Finance to the county auditor-controller of an amount to be withheld 
from allocations to taxing entities, the county auditor-controller must distribute to taxing entities any 
monies in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund in excess of the withholding amount set forth in 
the notice, and the county auditor-controller must distribute withheld funds to the successor agency only 
in accordance with a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule when and as approved by the State 
Department of Finance. 

Typically, under the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund distribution provisions of the 
Dissolution Act, the County Auditor-Controller is to distribute funds for each six-month period in the 
following order specified in Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act:  (i) first, subject to certain adjustments 
for subordinations to the extent permitted under the Dissolution Act (as described above under 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing”) and no later than each January 2 and June 
1, to each local agency and school entity, to the extent applicable, amounts required for pass-through 
payments such entity would have received under provisions of the Redevelopment Law, as those 
provisions read on January 1, 2011, including pursuant to the negotiated pass-through agreements and 
Statutory Pass-Through Amounts; (ii) second, on each January 2 and June 1, to the Agency for payments 
listed in its Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule, with debt service payments scheduled to be made 
for tax allocation bonds having the highest priority over payments scheduled for other debts and 
obligations listed on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule; (iii) third, on each January 2 and June 
1, to the Agency for the administrative cost allowance, as defined in the Dissolution Act; and (iv) fourth, 
on each January 2 and June 1, to taxing entities any moneys remaining in the Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund after the payments and transfers authorized by clauses (i) through (iii), in an amount 
proportionate to such taxing entity’s share of property tax revenues in the tax rate area in that fiscal year 
(without giving effect to any pass-through obligations that were established under the Redevelopment 
Law).   

If the Agency does not submit an Oversight Board-approved Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule within five business days of the date upon which the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
is to be used to determine the amount of property tax allocations and the State Department of Finance 
does not provide a notice to the County Auditor-Controller to withhold funds from distribution to taxing 
entities, amounts in the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund for such six-month period would be 
distributed to taxing entities pursuant to clause (iv) above.  However, the Agency has covenanted to take 
all actions required under the Dissolution Act to include scheduled debt service on the Bonds, as well as 
any amount required under the Indenture to replenish the Reserve Account of the Debt Service Fund,  in 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules for each six-month period and to enable the County Auditor-
Controller to distribute from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s 
Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund on each January 2 and June 1 amounts required for the 
Agency to pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds coming due in the respective six-month period, 



 

 24  
 

including listing a reserve on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule to the extent required by the 
Indenture or when the next property tax allocation is projected to be insufficient to pay all obligations due 
under the provisions of the Bonds for the next payment due in the following six-month period.   

The Dissolution Act also provides for certain penalties in the event the Agency does not timely 
submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for a six-month period.  Specifically, a Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule must be submitted by the Agency, after approval by the Oversight Board, 
to the County Administrative Officer, the County Auditor-Controller, the State Department of Finance, 
and the State Controller no later than September 1, 2012 with respect to the six-month period of January 
1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 and by 90 days before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax 
distribution with respect to each subsequent six-month period.  If the Agency does not submit a 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by such deadlines, the City will be subject to a civil penalty 
equal to $10,000 per day for every day the schedule is not submitted to the State Department of Finance.  
Additionally, the Agency’s administrative cost allowance is reduced by 25% if the Agency does not 
submit a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule by September 11, 2012, with respect to the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the first half of calendar year 2012, or by the 80th day 
before the date of the next January 2 or June 1 property tax distribution, as applicable, with respect to the 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for subsequent six-month periods. 

AB 1484 Penalty for Failure to Remit Unencumbered Funds 

AB1484 further implements certain provisions of ABX1 26, including establishing a process for 
determining the liquid assets that redevelopment agencies should have shifted to their successor agencies 
when they were dissolved, and the amount that should be available for remittance by the successor 
agencies to their respective county auditor-controllers for distribution to affected taxing entities within the 
Project Area of the former redevelopment agencies.  This determination process is commonly known as 
the “due diligence review process” and is required to be completed through the final step (review by the 
State Department of Finance) by November 9, 2012 with respect to affordable housing funds and by April 
1, 2013 with respect to non-housing funds.  Within five business days of receiving notification from the 
State Department of Finance, the Agency must remit to the county auditor-controller the amount of 
unobligated balances determined by the State Department of Finance, or it may request a meet and confer 
with the State Department of Finance to resolve any disputes.  If there is a meet and confer process, the 
Agency must remit the amount of unobligated balances within five working days of receiving a 
subsequent notification from the State Department of Finance of the amount of unobligated balances at 
the conclusion of that process.   

If the Agency fails to remit the amounts determined by the State Department of Finance by the 
respective deadlines, certain penalties and remedies apply under AB 1484.  Among such penalties and 
remedies, if the city that established the redevelopment agency is performing the duties of the successor 
agency, the State Department of Finance may order an offset to the city’s sales and use tax revenues equal 
to the amount the successor agency fails to remit.  If the State Department of Finance does not order an 
offset, the county auditor-controller may reduce the property tax allocation of the city.  Alternatively or in 
addition to the remedies discussed in the foregoing sentences, the State Department of Finance may direct 
the county auditor-controller to deduct the unpaid amount from future allocations of property tax to the 
successor agency under Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act until the amounts required to be remitted 
are paid.  

As to affordable housing funds, the Agency completed the due diligence review process.  The 
State Department of Finance issued a letter to the Agency, dated November 7, 2012, concluding that the 
Agency had no unencumbered affordable housing fund balances available for distribution to taxing 
entities.  As to non-housing funds, the Agency has also completed the due diligence review process.  The 
State Department of Finance issued a letter to the Agency, dated August 7, 2013, making some 



 

 25  
 

adjustments and concluding that the Agency had $3,887 in unencumbered non-housing fund balances 
available for distribution to taxing entities.  [The Agency paid such amount to the County for distribution 
to the taxing entities on [June 15, 2015].  The Agency is currently awaiting the issuance by the State 
Department of Finance of a “finding of completion” letter, which confirms that the Agency has, among 
other things, paid in full the amounts determined during the due diligence reviews and the county auditor-
controller has reported those payments to the State Department of Finance.]  This finding of completion 
will protect the Agency and the City from being subject to any AB 1484 penalties for a failure to remit 
unencumbered funds. 

Bankruptcy and Foreclosure 

The payment of property taxes from which Pledged Tax Revenues are derived and the ability of 
the County to foreclose the lien of a delinquent unpaid tax may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or 
other laws generally affecting creditors’ rights or by the laws of the State relating to judicial foreclosure. 
The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond 
Counsel’s approving legal opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal 
instruments by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting 
creditors’ rights, by the application of equitable principles and by the exercise of judicial discretion in 
appropriate cases. 

Although bankruptcy proceedings would not cause the liens to become extinguished, bankruptcy 
of a property owner could result in a delay in prosecuting superior court foreclosure proceedings. Such 
delay would increase the possibility of delinquent tax installments not being paid in full and thereby 
increase the likelihood of a delay or default in payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Estimated Revenues 

In estimating that Pledged Tax Revenues will be sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds, the 
Agency has made certain assumptions with regard to present and future assessed valuation in the Project 
Area, future tax rates and percentage of taxes collected. The Agency believes these assumptions to be 
reasonable, but there is no assurance these assumptions will be realized and to the extent that the assessed 
valuation and the tax rates are less than expected, the Pledged Tax Revenues available to pay debt service 
on the Bonds will be less than those projected and such reduced Pledged Tax Revenues may be 
insufficient to provide for the payment of principal of, premium (if any) and interest on the Bonds. 

Hazardous Substances 

The City has some industries and activities that involve the transport, storage or use of toxic or 
hazardous chemicals, posing potential safety hazards in the event of unintentional exposure, leak, fire or 
accident.  Agricultural activities pose a special risk in regards to hazardous substances for the City since 
the community is surrounded by agricultural operations which use a range of hazardous materials, such as 
pesticides, herbicides and fertilizers.  An environmental condition that may result in the reduction in the 
assessed value of property would be the discovery of a hazardous substance that would limit the 
beneficial use of taxable property within the Project Area. In general, the owners and operators of a 
property may be required by law to remedy conditions of the property relating to releases or threatened 
releases of hazardous substances. The owner or operator may be required to remedy a hazardous 
substance condition of property whether or not the owner or operator has anything to do with creating or 
handling the hazardous substance. If this situation were to occur with property within the Project Area, 
the costs of remedying it could reduce the marketability and taxable value of the property. 



 

 26  
 

Seismic Factors 

The City is located between two seismically active regions, the Sierra foothills and the Coast 
Range and, therefore, could be subject to potentially destructive earthquakes.  Seismic activity poses two 
types of hazards: primary and secondary. Primary hazards include ground rupture, ground shaking, 
ground displacement and subsidence and uplift from earth movement. Primary hazards can induce 
secondary hazards including ground failure (lurch cracking, lateral spreading, and slope failure), 
liquefaction, movement on nearby faults (sympathetic fault movement), dam failure, and fires. The City 
implements the most recent Building Codes and requires the review of potential seismic impacts during 
the environmental review process. 

The occurrence of severe seismic activity in the City could result in substantial damage to 
property located in the Project Area, and could lead to successful appeals for reduction of assessed values 
of such property.  Such a reduction of assessed valuations could result in a reduction of the Pledged Tax 
Revenues that secure the Bonds.  

Risk of Floods 

According to the Safety Element of the City’s General Plan, there are no urban areas within the 
100-year flood plain and the only part of the City within the 100-year flood plain is a portion of the 
wastewater treatment plant that contains ponding areas.  However, the City has a risk of flooding related 
to dam inundation from failure of the Don Pedro Dam on the Tuolumne River.  To minimize the risk of 
damn failure, the California Department of Water Resources Divison of Safety of Dams inspects the Don 
Pedro Dam, which is maintained by the Turlock Irrigation District, on an annual basis for safety. As with 
seismic hazards, the occurrence of flood damage to property located in the Project Area could lead to 
successful appeals for reduction of assessed values of such property and any reduction of assessed 
valuations could result in a reduction of the Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the Bonds.  

Urban Fire Hazards 

The major fire threat within Hughson is urban fire in residences and businesses. According to the 
City’s General Plan, because the surrounding areas are cultivated agricultural lands and orchards, the risk 
of wildland fire that threatens much of California is very low. These agricultural properties are typically 
well maintained with little undergrowth and regularly trimmed to remove deadwood. There is a slight 
potential for wildland fire in the northern portion of the City along the river.  As with seismic and flood 
hazards, the occurrence of wildland or urban fire damage to property located in the Project Area could 
lead to successful appeals for reduction of assessed values of such property and any reduction of assessed 
valuations could result in a reduction of the Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the Bonds. 

Changes in the Law 

There can be no assurance that the California electorate will not at some future time adopt 
initiatives or that the Legislature will not enact legislation that will amend the Dissolution Act, the 
Redevelopment Law or other laws or the Constitution of the State resulting in a reduction of Pledged Tax 
Revenues, which could have an adverse effect on the Agency’s ability to pay debt service on the Bonds.  

Investment Risk 

Funds held under the Indenture are required to be invested in Permitted Investments as provided 
under the Indenture. See APPENDIX B attached hereto for a summary of the definition of Permitted 
Investments. The funds and accounts of the Agency, into which a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds 
will be deposited and into which Pledged Tax Revenues are deposited, may be invested by the Agency in 



 

 27  
 

any investment authorized by law. All investments, including the Permitted Investments and those 
authorized by law from time to time for investments by municipalities, contain a certain degree of risk. 
Such risks include, but are not limited to, a lower rate of return than expected and loss or delayed receipt 
of principal.  Further, the Agency cannot predict the effects on the receipt of Pledged Tax Revenues if the 
County were to suffer significant losses in its portfolio of investments or if the County or the City were to 
become insolvent or declare bankruptcy. See “RISK FACTORS – Bankruptcy and Foreclosure.” 

Additional Obligations 

The potential for the issuance of additional Parity Bonds could, in certain circumstances, increase 
the risks associated with the Agency’s payment of debt service on the Bonds in the event of a decrease in 
the Agency’s collection of Pledged Tax Revenues.  However, Section 34177.5 of the Dissolution Act 
provides limited authority for successor agencies to issue bonds, and the Agency’s ability to issue 
additional Parity Bonds is subject to the requirements of the Dissolution Act as in effect from time to 
time.  For additional information, see described “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Additional Parity 
Bonds.” 

Secondary Market 

There can be no guarantee that there will be a secondary market for the Bonds, or, if a secondary 
market exists, that the Bonds can be sold for any particular price. Occasionally, because of general market 
conditions or because of adverse history or economic prospects connected with a particular issue, 
secondary marketing practices in connection with a particular issue are suspended or terminated. 
Additionally, prices of issues for which a market is being made will depend upon the then prevailing 
circumstances. 

No Validation Proceeding Undertaken 

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 860 authorizes public agencies to institute a process, 
otherwise known as a “validation proceeding,” for purposes of determining the validity of a resolution or 
any action taken pursuant thereto.   Section 860 authorizes a public agency to institute validation 
proceedings in cases where another statute authorizes its use.  Relevant to the Bonds, California 
Government Code Section 53511 authorizes a local agency to “bring an action to determine the validity of 
its bonds, warrants, contracts, obligations or evidences of indebtedness.”  Pursuant to Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 870, a final favorable judgment issued in a validation proceeding shall, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law, be forever binding and conclusive, as to all matters therein 
adjudicated or which could have been adjudicated, against all persons:  “The judgment shall permanently 
enjoin the institution by any person of any action or proceeding raising any issue as to which the 
judgment is binding and conclusive.”  

The Agency has not undertaken or endeavored to undertake any validation proceeding in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  The Agency and Bond Counsel have relied on the provisions 
of AB 1484 authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and specifying the related deadline for any challenge to 
the Bonds to be brought.  Specifically, Section 34177.5(e) of the Dissolution Act provides that 
notwithstanding any other law, an action to challenge the issuance of bonds (such as the Bonds), the 
incurrence of indebtedness, the amendment of an enforceable obligation, or the execution of a financing 
agreement authorized under Section 34177.5, must be brought within thirty (30) days after the date on 
which the oversight board approves the resolution of the successor agency approving the financing.  Such 
challenge period expired with respect to the Bonds and the Oversight Board Resolution on April 24, 
2015. 



 

 28  
 

It is possible that a lawsuit challenging the Dissolution Act or specific provisions thereof could be 
successful and that the mechanisms currently provided for under the Dissolution Act to provide for 
distribution of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency for payment on the Bonds could be impeded and 
result in a delinquency or default in the timely payment of principal of, and interest on, the Bonds.   

However, the Indenture additionally provides that if, and to the extent, that the provisions of 
Section 34172 or paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 34183 of the Dissolution Act (upon which 
the distribution of Pledged Tax Revenues to the Agency rely) are invalidated by a final judicial decision, 
then Pledged Tax Revenues shall include all tax revenues allocated to the payment of indebtedness 
pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 33670 or such other section as may be in effect at the time 
providing for the allocation of tax increment revenues in accordance with Article XVI, Section 16 of the 
California Constitution.  Additionally, any action by a court to invalidate provisions of the Dissolution 
Act required for the timely payment of principal of, and interest on, the Bonds could raise issues 
regarding the unconstitutional impairment of contracts or an unconstitutional taking without just 
compensation.  The Agency believes that the aforementioned considerations would provide some 
protections against the adverse consequences upon the Agency and the availability of Pledged Tax 
Revenues for the payment of debt service on the Bonds in the event of successful challenges to the 
Dissolution Act or portions thereof.  However, the Agency does not guarantee that any lawsuit 
challenging the Dissolution Act or portions thereof will not result in an outcome that may have a 
detrimental effect on the Agency’s ability to timely pay debt service on the Bonds. 

Loss of Tax-Exemption 

As discussed under the caption “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – Tax Exemption,” interest on 
the Bonds could become includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to 
the date the Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the Agency in violation of its 
covenants in the Indenture.   

In addition, current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, may cause interest on the 
Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation by, for example, changing the 
current exclusion or deduction rules to limit the aggregate amount of interest on state and local 
government bonds that may be treated as tax exempt by individuals. 

Should such an event of taxability occur, the Bonds are not subject to special redemption and will 
remain outstanding until maturity or until redeemed under other provisions set forth in the Indenture. 

PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA 

Property Tax Collection Procedures 

Classification.  In the State, property which is subject to ad valorem taxes is classified as 
“secured” or “unsecured.”  Secured and unsecured property are entered on separate parts of the 
assessment roll maintained by the County assessor.  The secured classification includes property on which 
any property tax levied by a county becomes a lien on that property.  A tax levied on unsecured property 
does not become a lien against the taxed unsecured property, but may become a lien on certain other 
property owned by the taxpayer.  Every tax which becomes a lien on secured property has priority over all 
other liens on the secured property arising pursuant to State law, regardless of the time of the creation of 
other liens. 

Generally, ad valorem taxes are collected by a county (the “Taxing Authority”) for the benefit of 
the various entities (cities, schools and special districts) that share in the ad valorem tax (each a taxing 



 

 29  
 

entity) and successor agencies eligible to receive distributions from the respective Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Funds. 

Collections.  Secured and unsecured property are entered separately on the assessment roll 
maintained by the county assessor.  The method of collecting delinquent taxes is substantially different 
for the two classifications of property.  The taxing authority has four ways of collecting unsecured 
personal property taxes:  (i) initiating a civil action against the taxpayer, (ii) filing a certificate in the 
office of the county clerk specifying certain facts in order to obtain a judgment lien on certain property of 
the taxpayer, (iii) filing a certificate of delinquency for record in the county recorder’s office to obtain a 
lien on certain property of the taxpayer, and (iv) seizing and selling personal property, improvements or 
possessory interests belonging or assessed to the assessee.  The exclusive means of enforcing the payment 
of delinquent taxes with respect to property on the secured roll is the sale of the property securing the 
taxes to the State for the amount of taxes which are delinquent.   

Penalty.  A 10% penalty is added to delinquent taxes which have been levied with respect to 
property on the secured roll.  In addition, property on the secured roll on which taxes are delinquent is 
declared in default by operation of law and declaration of the tax collector on or about June 30 of each 
fiscal year.  Such property may thereafter be redeemed by payment of the delinquent taxes and a 
delinquency penalty, plus a redemption penalty of 1.5% per month to the time of redemption.  If taxes are 
unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by 
the county tax collector.  A 10% penalty also applies to delinquent taxes with respect to property on the 
unsecured roll, and further, an additional penalty of 1.5% per month accrues with respect to such taxes 
beginning on varying dates related to the tax bill mailing date. 

Delinquencies.  The valuation of property is determined as of the January 1 lien date as equalized 
in August of each year and equal installments of taxes levied upon secured property become delinquent 
on the following December 10 and April 10.  Taxes on unsecured property are due January 1 and become 
delinquent August 31. 

Supplemental Assessments. California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 75.70 provides for the 
supplemental assessment and taxation of property as of the occurrence of a change of ownership or 
completion of new construction.  Prior to the enactment of this law, the assessment of such changes was 
permitted only as of the next tax lien date following the change, and this delayed the realization of 
increased property taxes from the new assessments for up to 14 months.  This statute provides increased 
revenue to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the extent that supplemental assessments of 
new construction or changes of ownership occur within the boundaries of redevelopment projects 
subsequent to the January 1 lien date.  To the extent such supplemental assessments occur within the 
Project Area, Pledged Tax Revenues may increase. 

Property Tax Administrative Costs. In 1990, the Legislature enacted SB 2557 (Chapter 466, 
Statutes of 1990) which allows counties to charge for the cost of assessing, collecting and allocating 
property tax revenues to local government jurisdictions in proportion to the tax-derived revenues 
allocated to each.  SB 1559 (Chapter 697, Statutes of 1992) explicitly includes redevelopment agencies 
among the jurisdictions which are subject to such charges.  In addition, Sections 34182(e) and 34183(a) of 
the Dissolution Act allow administrative costs of the County Auditor-Controller for the cost of 
administering the provisions of the Dissolution Act, as well as the foregoing SB 1559 amounts, to be 
deducted from property tax revenues before monies are deposited into the Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund.  The County’s administrative charge to the Agency was $4,200 for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 
$10,614 for Fiscal Year 2014-15.  The County’s administrative charge to the Agency is expected to be 
$11,086 for Fiscal Year 2015-16. 



 

 30  
 

Statutory Pass-Throughs.  The Project Area was formed after January 1, 1994 (in 2002) and 
therefore is subject to the payment of Statutory Pass-Through Amounts (defined in APPENDIX B). The 
calculation of the amount due affected taxing entities in the Project Area is described in Sections 33607.5 
and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment Law.  See “PROJECT AREA – Statutory Pass-Throughs” and 
“SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Tax Increment Financing” for further information regarding the 
applicability of the statutory pass-through provisions of the Redevelopment Law and the Dissolution Act 
to the Project Area. 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  The Dissolution Act provides that, commencing on 
the date the first Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule is valid thereunder, only those payments listed 
in the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule may be made by the Agency from the funds specified in 
the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  Before each six-month period, the Dissolution Act 
requires successor agencies to prepare and approve, and submit to the successor agency’s oversight board 
and the State Department of Finance for approval, a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule pursuant 
to which enforceable obligations (as defined in the Dissolution Act) of the successor agency are listed, 
together with the source of funds to be used to pay for each enforceable obligation.  Pledged Tax 
Revenues will not be distributed from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund by the County 
Auditor-Controller to the Agency’s Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund without a duly approved 
and effective Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule obtained in sufficient time prior to the January 2 
or June 1 distribution dates, as applicable.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule” and “RISK FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 

Unitary Property 

Assembly Bill (“AB”) 2890 (Statutes of 1986, Chapter 1457) provides that, commencing with 
fiscal year 1988-89, assessed value derived from State-assessed unitary property (consisting mostly of 
operational property owned by utility companies) is to be allocated county-wide as follows: (i) each tax 
rate area will receive that same amount from each assessed utility received in the previous fiscal year 
unless the applicable county-wide values are insufficient to do so, in which case values will be allocated 
to each tax rate area on a pro-rata basis; and (ii) if values to be allocated are greater than in the previous 
fiscal year, each tax rate area will receive a pro-rata share of the increase from each assessed utility 
according to a specified formula. Additionally, the lien date on State-assessed property is changed from 
March 1 to January 1. 

AB 454 (Statutes of 1987, Chapter 921) further modifies chapter 1457 regarding the distribution 
of tax revenues derived from property assessed by the State Board of Equalization. Chapter 921 provides 
for the consolidation of all State-assessed property, except for regulated railroad property, into a single 
tax rate area in each county. Chapter 921 further provides for a new method of establishing tax rates on 
State-assessed property and distribution of property tax revenue derived from State-assessed property to 
taxing jurisdictions within each county in accordance with a new formula. Railroads will continue to be 
assessed and revenues allocated to all tax rate areas where railroad property is sited. 

Article XIIIA of the State Constitution 

Article XIIIA limits the amount of ad valorem taxes on real property to 1% of “full cash value” of 
such property, as determined by the county assessor.  Article XIIIA defines “full cash value” to mean “the 
County Assessor’s valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under ‘full cash value,’ or, 
thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in 
ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment.”  Furthermore, the “full cash value” of all real 
property may be increased to reflect the rate of inflation, as shown by the consumer price index, not to 
exceed 2% per year, or may be reduced. 



 

 31  
 

Article XIIIA has subsequently been amended to permit reduction of the “full cash value” base in 
the event of declining property values caused by substantial damage, destruction or other factors, and to 
provide that there would be no increase in the “full cash value” base in the event of reconstruction of 
property damaged or destroyed in a disaster and in other special circumstances. 

Article XIIIA (i) exempts from the 1% tax limitation taxes to pay debt service on (a) indebtedness 
approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978 or (b) bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or 
improvement of real property approved on or after July 1, 1978, by two-thirds of the votes cast by the 
voters voting on the proposition; (ii) requires a vote of two-thirds of the qualified electorate to impose 
special taxes, or certain additional ad valorem taxes; and (iii) requires the approval of two-thirds of all 
members of the State Legislature to change any State tax laws resulting in increased tax revenues. 

The validity of Article XIIIA has been upheld by both the California Supreme Court and the 
United States Supreme Court. 

In the general election held November 4, 1986, voters of the State approved two measures, 
Propositions 58 and 60, which further amended Article XIIIA. Proposition 58 amended Article XIIIA to 
provide that the terms “purchase” and “change of ownership,” for the purposes of determining full cash 
value of property under Article XIIIA, do not include the purchase or transfer of (1) real property between 
spouses and (2) the principal residence and the first $1,000,000 of other property between parents and 
children. This amendment to Article XIIIA may reduce the rate of growth of local property tax revenues. 

Proposition 60 amended Article XIIIA to permit the Legislature to allow persons over the age of 
55 who sell their residence and buy or build another of equal or lesser value within two years in the same 
county, to transfer the old residence assessed value to the new residence. As a result of the Legislature’s 
action, the growth of property tax revenues may decline. 

Legislation enacted by the Legislature to implement Article XIIIA provides that all taxable 
property is shown at full assessed value as described above. In conformity with this procedure, all taxable 
property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 100% of assessed value and all general tax 
rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value (except as noted). Tax rates for voter-approved bonded 
indebtedness and pension liabilities are also applied to 100% of assessed value. 

Appropriations Limitation - Article XIIIB 

Article XIIIB limits the annual appropriations of the State and its political subdivisions to the 
level of appropriations for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living, population 
and services rendered by the government entity.  The “base year” for establishing such appropriations 
limit is the 1978/79 fiscal year, and the limit is to be adjusted annually to reflect changes in population, 
consumer prices and certain increases in the cost of services provided by these public agencies. 

Section 33678 of the Redevelopment Law provides that the allocation of taxes to a redevelopment 
agency for the purpose of paying principal of, or interest on, loans, advances, or indebtedness shall not be 
deemed the receipt by an agency of proceeds of taxes levied by or on behalf of an agency within the 
meaning of Article XIIIB, nor shall such portion of taxes be deemed receipt of proceeds of taxes by, or an 
appropriation subject to the limitation of, any other public body within the meaning or for the purpose of 
the Constitution and laws of the State, including Section 33678 of the Redevelopment Law.  The 
constitutionality of Section 33678 has been upheld in two California appellate court decisions.  On the 
basis of these decisions, the Agency has not adopted an appropriations limit. 



 

 32  
 

Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State Constitution  

At the election held on November 5, 1996, Proposition 218 was passed by the voters of 
California. The initiative added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution. Provisions in the two 
articles affect the ability of local government to raise revenues. The Bonds are secured by sources of 
revenues that are not subject to limitation by Proposition 218.  See also “– Propositions 218 and 26” 
below. 

Proposition 87 

On November 8, 1988, the voters of the State approved Proposition 87, which amended Article 
XVI, Section 16 of the State Constitution to provide that property tax revenue attributable to the 
imposition of taxes on property within a redevelopment project area for the purpose of paying debt 
service on certain bonded indebtedness issued by a taxing entity (not the Prior Agency or the Agency) and 
approved by the voters of the taxing entity after January 1, 1989 will be allocated solely to the payment of 
such indebtedness and not to redevelopment agencies. 

Appeals of Assessed Values 

Pursuant to California law, a property owner may apply for a reduction of the property tax 
assessment for such owner’s property by filing a written application, in a form prescribed by the State 
Board of Equalization, with the appropriate county board of equalization or assessment appeals board. 

In the County, a property owner desiring to reduce the assessed value of such owner’s property in 
any one year must submit an application to the County Assessment Appeals Board (the “Appeals 
Board”).  Applications for any tax year must be submitted by September 15 of such tax year.  Following a 
review of each application by the staff of the County Assessor’s Office, the staff makes a 
recommendation to the Appeals Board on each application which has not been rejected for 
incompleteness or untimeliness or withdrawn.  The Appeals Board holds a hearing and either reduces the 
assessment or confirms the assessment.  The Appeals Board generally is required to determine the 
outcome of appeals within two years of each appeal’s filing date.  Any reduction in the assessment 
ultimately granted applies only to the year for which application is made and during which the written 
application is filed.  The assessed value increases to its pre-reduction level for fiscal years following the 
year for which the reduction application is filed.  However, if the taxpayer establishes through proof of 
comparable values that the property continues to be overvalued (known as “ongoing hardship”), the 
Assessor has the power to grant a reduction not only for the year for which application was originally 
made, but also for the then current year as well.  Appeals for reduction in the “base year” value of an 
assessment, which generally must be made within three years of the date of change in ownership or 
completion of new construction that determined the base year, if successful, reduce the assessment for the 
year in which the appeal is taken and prospectively thereafter.  Moreover, in the case of any reduction in 
any one year of assessed value granted for “ongoing hardship” in the then current year, and also in any 
cases involving stipulated appeals for prior years relating to base year and personal property assessments, 
the property tax revenues from which Pledged Tax Revenues are derived attributable to such properties 
will be reduced in the then current year.  In practice, such a reduced assessment may remain in effect 
beyond the year in which it is granted.  See “PROJECT AREA – Largest Taxpayers” for information 
regarding the assessed valuations of the top ten property owners within each of the Project Area. 

Proposition 8 

Proposition 8, approved in 1978 (California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 51(b)), provides 
for the assessment of real property at the lesser of its originally determined (base year) full cash value 
compounded annually by the inflation factor, or its full cash value as of the lien date, taking into account 



 

 33  
 

reductions in value due to damage, destruction, obsolescence or other factors causing a decline in market 
value.  Reductions under this code section may be initiated by the County Assessor or requested by the 
property owner.  

After a roll reduction is granted under this code section, the property is reviewed on an annual 
basis to determine its full cash value and the valuation is adjusted accordingly. This may result in further 
reductions or in value increases. Such increases must be in accordance with the full cash value of the 
property and may exceed the maximum annual inflationary growth rate allowed on other properties under 
Article XIIIA of the State Constitution. Once the property has regained its prior value, adjusted for 
inflation, it once again is subject to the annual inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article 
XIIIA. 

It is possible that reductions undertaken by the County Assessor or requested by a property owner 
pursuant to Proposition 8 will reduce the assessed valuation of property in the Project Area and, therefore, 
Pledged Tax Revenues that secure the Bonds. See “PLEDGED REVENUES – Schedule of Historical 
Incremental Revenues” and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT.” 

Propositions 218 and 26 

On November 5, 1996, California voters approved Proposition 218—Voter Approval for Local 
Government Taxes—Limitation on Fees, Assessments, and Charges—Initiative Constitutional 
Amendment. Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution, imposing certain 
vote requirements and other limitations on the imposition of new or increased taxes, assessments and 
property-related fees and charges.  On November 2, 2010, California voters approved Proposition 26, the 
“Supermajority Vote to Pass New Taxes and Fees Act.”  Proposition 26 amended Article XIIIC of the 
California Constitution by adding an expansive definition for the term “tax,” which previously was not 
defined under the California Constitution.  Pledged Tax Revenues securing the Bonds are derived from 
property taxes which are outside the scope of taxes, assessments and property-related fees and charges 
which are limited by Proposition 218 and outside of the scope of taxes which are limited by Proposition 
26. 

Future Initiatives 

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB, Article XIIIC and Article XIIID and certain other propositions 
affecting property tax levies were each adopted as measures which qualified for the ballot pursuant to 
California’s initiative process.  From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted, further 
affecting Agency revenues or the Agency’s ability to expend revenues. 

PROJECT AREA 

The Hughson Redevelopment Project Area was approved by Ordinance No. 02-08 adopted by the 
City Council of the City on July 8, 2002.  Additional territory was added by Ordinance No. 07-01 adopted 
by the City Council on May 14, 2007 (the “Added Territory”) to the Hughson Redevelopment Project 
Area (the “Original Project Area” and together with the Added Territory, the “Project Area”).  The 
Project Area consists of approximately 397 acres, with the Original Project Area consisting of 313 acres 
and the Added Territory consisting of 84 acres.  The primary land uses in the Project Area, based on the 
assessed value of the Project Area, are residential (66.84%), commercial (15.44%), industrial (17.12%), 
agricultural (0.43%), and the remaining is governmental, institutional and miscellaneous (0.16%).  See “ – 
Land Uses” below. 



 

 34  
 

Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plan 

Assembly Bill No. 1290, enacted on October 8, 1993 as Chapter 942, Statutes of 1993, and 
effective January 1, 1994 (“AB 1290”), required, among other things, redevelopment agencies to adopt 
time limits in each redevelopment plan specifying: 1) the last date to incur debt for a redevelopment 
project; 2) the last date to undertake redevelopment activity within a project area; and 3) the last date to 
collect tax increment revenue from a project area to repay debt.   

The actions taken by the City Council to date have resulted in the time limitations set forth in the 
following table, with respect to the Project Area:  

Hughson Redevelopment Project Area 
Redevelopment Plan Limitations 

 

Component Area 
Last Day to Incur 

Debt 
Plan Termination 

Date 
Time Limit on Receipt 

of Tax Increment(1) 
Cumulative Tax 

Increment 

Maximum 
Outstanding 
Indebtedness 

Original Project Area August 7, 2022 July 8, 2032 July 8, 2047 No limit $15,000,000 
cumulative Added Territory June 13, 2027 May 14, 2037 May 14, 2052 No limit 

_______________________________ 
(1) In the DOF Santa Cruz Letter (as defined below), the State Department of Finance stated its position and 

advice to county auditor-controllers to not apply tax increment caps to bar payment of enforceable obligations 
approved by the State Department of Finance, unless the tax increment cap had been reached prior to the 
enactment of AB X1 26 in June 2011.  The Agency cannot provide any assurance that a court would concur 
with, or uphold, this position if a lawsuit were filed to challenge it.  In addition, from time to time, the State 
Department of Finance changes its guidance without notice. 

Source:  Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency. 

On April 2, 2014, the State Department of Finance issued a letter (the “DOF Santa Cruz Letter”) 
to the County Auditor-Controller for the County of Santa Cruz, in response to a request for clarification 
concerning the position of the State Department of Finance on the applicability of tax increment caps (i.e., 
the maximum tax increment allocable to a redevelopment agency under its redevelopment plan).  In the 
DOF Santa Cruz Letter, the State Department of Finance stated its position and advice to county auditor-
controllers to not apply tax increment caps to bar payment of enforceable obligations approved by the 
State Department of Finance, unless the tax increment cap had been reached prior to the enactment of AB 
X1 26 in June 2011.  The Agency cannot provide any assurance that a court would concur with, or 
uphold, the position of the State Department of Finance in the DOF Santa Cruz Letter if a lawsuit were 
filed to challenge this position.  In addition, from time to time, the State Department of Finance changes 
its guidance without notice. 

As shown in the “Redevelopment Plan Limitations” table above, the maximum tax increment 
plan limit is a separate Redevelopment Plan limitation than the plan limit for the last date to receive 
property taxes.  For further discussion of the plan limit for the last date to receive property taxes, see 
“RISK FACTORS – Time Limits on Receiving Tax Increment Revenues.” 

Statutory Pass-Throughs 

Assembly Bill No. 1290, enacted on October 8, 1993 as Chapter 942, Statutes of 1993, and 
effective January 1, 1994, eliminated the statutory authority for negotiated pass-through agreements and 
provided a formula, pursuant to Sections 33607.5 and 33607.7 of the Redevelopment Law, for mandatory 
tax sharing applicable to projects adopted after January 1, 1994, such as the Project Area, or amended 
after that date to add territory.   



 

 35  
 

Under the Redevelopment Law, the Statutory Pass-Through Amounts were paid, in both cases, 
after deducting the amount required to be deposited in the Low and Moderate-Income Housing Fund.  
The Dissolution Act preserves this calculation method, stating that the amount of pass-through payments 
computed for distribution by the County Auditor-Controller to the taxing entities, such as the Statutory 
Pass-Through Amounts, will be computed as though the requirement to set aside funds for the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund were still in effect.1   

The formula for Statutory Pass-Through Amounts is described in Section 33607.5 of the 
Redevelopment Law and is, generally, as follows:   

1. commencing in the first fiscal year after the limitation has been reached (or the 
amendment has been adopted in the case of a post January 1, 1994 plan amendment adding 
territory to the redevelopment plan), an amount equal to 25% of tax increment generated by the 
incremental increase of the current year assessed valuation over the assessed valuation in the 
fiscal year that the limitation had been reached, after the amount required to be deposited in the 
Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund has been deducted; 

2. in addition to amounts payable as described in (a) above, commencing in the 11th 
fiscal year after the limitation has been reached (or the amendment has been adopted in the case 
of a post January 1, 1994 plan amendment adding territory to the redevelopment plan), an amount 
equal to 21% of tax increment generated by the incremental increase of the current year assessed 
valuation over the assessed valuation in the preceding 10th fiscal year that the limitation had been 
reached, after the amount required to be deposited in the Low and Moderate Income Housing 
Fund has been deducted; and 

3. in addition to amounts payable, as described in (a) and (b) above, commencing in 
the 31st fiscal year after the limitation has been reached (or the amendment has been adopted in 
the case of a post January 1, 1994 plan amendment adding territory to the redevelopment plan), 
an amount equal to 14% of tax increment generated by the incremental increase of the current 
year assessed valuation over the assessed valuation in the preceding 30th fiscal year that the 
limitation had been reached, after the amount required to be deposited in the Low and Moderate 
Income Housing Fund has been deducted. 

Under the Dissolution Act, the Agency is no longer responsible for the payment of Statutory Tax 
Sharing Amounts.  Instead, the Dissolution Act requires the County Auditor-Controller to distribute from 
the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund amounts required to be distributed for Statutory Tax Sharing 
Amounts to the taxing entities for each six-month period before amounts are distributed by the County 
Auditor-Controller from the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund to the Agency’s Redevelopment 
Obligation Retirement Fund each January 2 and June 1. 
                                                      
1 The Dissolution Act states that commencing on its effective date, all provisions of the Redevelopment Law that depend on the 
allocation of tax increment to redevelopment agencies shall be inoperative.  According to guidance provided by the State 
Department of Finance (“DOF”), and currently available on the DOF’s website at ww.dof.ca.gov, DOF states that the 20% low-
moderate income housing set-aside is no longer made, except for funds which would have been deposited into the Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Fund to pay for enforceable housing obligations, such as payments for housing bond debt service, 
which should be placed on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.  The periodic deposits by the County Auditor-
Controller to the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund are equivalent in amount to the tax increment revenues formerly 
allocated under the Redevelopment Law to the Prior Agency (including former housing set-aside), less permitted administrative 
costs of the County Auditor-Controller. The DOF guidance states that it is DOF’s expectation that certain credits may be 
strengthened in comparison to what they would be under prior law in that they will have access to more of the tax increment for 
servicing of debt due to the 20% housing set-aside payment no longer being required.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS – 
Tax Increment Financing,” “PLEDGED REVENUES – Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues” and 
“APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT.”  The DOF’s website is not in any way incorporated into this Official 
Statement, and neither the Agency nor the City can take responsibility for, or make any representation as to, the accuracy of such 
website.  



 

 36  
 

As provided in the Redevelopment Plans, as amended, the amounts payable pursuant to the 
Statutory Pass-Through Amounts will not be used to calculate the Agency’s maximum tax increment 
limit for the Redevelopment Plans. 

The Dissolution Act provides for a procedure by which the Agency may make Statutory Tax 
Sharing Amounts subordinate to the Bonds.  However, the Agency has determined not to undertake such 
procedure, and therefore, Statutory Tax Sharing Amounts are senior to payment of debt service on the 
Bonds.  See “TAX REVENUES—Projected Taxable Valuation and Tax Revenues” herein. 

Land Uses 

The types of land use in the Project Area for Fiscal Year 2014-15 are set forth in the following 
tables:  

Project Area  
Taxable Value and Parcels by Land Use 

Fiscal Year 2014-15 

 
Land Use 

Number of 
Parcels 

2014-15 Secured 
Assessed Valuation 

Percent of Secured 
Assessed Value(1) 

Single Family Residential 554 $69,405,310 62.19% 
Commercial 73 16,957,250 15.19 
Industrial 18 16,637,623 14.91 
Multi-Family Residential 20 3,861,583 3.46 
Vacant Industrial 11 2,471,943 2.21 
Vacant Residential 43 1,330,683 1.19 
Agricultural 7 482,208 0.43 
Vacant Commercial 9 279,021 0.25 
Vacant Governmental/Institutional/Other 7 179,978 0.16 
Governmental/Institutional/Other 38 0 0.00 

Total 780 $111,605,599 100.00% 
_________ 
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. with information from the County 2014-15 Secured Property Tax Roll. 
(1)  Based on Fiscal Year 2014-15 secured assessed valuation of $111,605,599. 

 
Largest Taxpayers 

Set forth below are the ten largest taxpayers in the Project Area based on the Fiscal Year 2014-15 
secured property tax roll.  

Property Owner Land Use 

Fiscal Year  
2014-15 Assessed 

Valuation 

Percent of Total 
Assessed 

Valuation(1) 

California Coop Creamery Industrial $6,181,027 5.54% 
De Kleva Ronald Industrial 3,284,445 2.94 
Valley Industrial Park LLC  Industrial 3,070,305 2.75 
Hughson Investment Group LLC Commercial 2,121,500 1.90 
Florsheim Land Company LLC Single Family Residential 1,897,500 1.70 
Kumria Sunil Kumar Commercial 1,790,667 1.60 
Wilbur-Ellis Co Industrial 1,588,961 1.42 
Brown Jean Howard Commercial 1,270,806 1.14 
Hughson Investors LP Vacant Residential 975,000 0.87 



 

 37  
 

Brenda Group LP Industrial 909,451 0.81 
 Totals  $23,089,662 20.69% 

_______________ 
(1)  Based on Fiscal Year 2014-15 secured assessed valuation of $111,605,599. 
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. based on Stanislaus County Assessor 2014-15 Secured Property Tax Roll. 

Appeals 

As previously discussed under “PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA—Appeals of 
Assessed Values”, property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment by filing a 
written application, in form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization, with the appropriate county 
board of equalization or assessment appeals board.  As of the date of this Official Statement, there is 
currently one pending appeal within the City [Is this located in the Project Area?  Is this a top 10 
taxpayer?]  [Currently, there are no pending appeals from any of the top ten taxpayers in the Project 
Area.]  The Agency cannot predict whether there will be future appeals from any of the top ten taxpayers, 
nor can the Agency predict the outcome of any future appeals or their effect on the valuation in the 
Project Area. 

PLEDGED REVENUES 

Pledged Revenues (as described in the section “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein) are to be 
deposited in the Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund, and thereafter, transferred by the Agency to 
the Debt Service Fund, administered by the Trustee and applied to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Bonds. 

Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues 

The following tables show taxable assessed valuations and resulting Incremental Revenues in the 
Project Area for the Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2014-15.   

 
Project Area 

Assessed Valuation and Incremental Revenues 
 

 
2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

 
2014-15 

Secured Assessed Value (AV) $95,697,647 $90,879,949 $87,837,033 $94,595,333 $111,605,599 
Unsecured Assessed Value 12,776,826 11,013,030 10,565,310 10,112,129 10,070,676 
Total Assessed Value $108,474,473 $101,892,979 $98,402,343 $104,707,462 $121,676,275 
Percent Change -- -6.07% -3.43% 6.41% 16.21% 
      
Less: Base Year Value 55,527,388 55,527,388 55,527,388 55,527,388 58,158,558 
Incremental Assessed Value $52,947,085 $46,365,591 $42,874,955 $49,180,074 $63,517,717 
Percent change -- -12.43% -7.53% 14.71% 29.15% 
      
Gross Tax Revenues $487,132 $429,630 $407,219 $431,107 $610,066 
County Administration Fees 4,389   4,092    3,917      4,200     10,614  
Statutory Pass-Through Amounts 79,701        69,837       66,429      70,319      140,795  
Tax Revenues     403,042        355,701      336,873      356,588      458,657  
_______________ 
Source: Urban Futures, Inc. 

 



 

 38  
 

Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues 

The Agency has retained Urban Futures, Inc., Orange, California to provide projections of taxable 
valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues from development in the Project Area.  The Agency believes the 
assumptions (set forth in the footnotes below and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S 
REPORT”) upon which the projections are based are reasonable; however, some assumptions may not 
materialize and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur (see “RISK FACTORS”). Therefore, 
the actual Pledged Tax Revenues received during the forecast period may vary from the projections and 
the variations may be material.  A summary of the projected taxable valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues 
to be derived from each Project Area is as follows: 

Project Area 
Projected Pledged Tax Revenues 

(Assumes 2% growth) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

 
Taxable 
Assessed 

Valuation(1) 
Gross Tax 

Increment (2) 

Less County 
Administration 

Fees (3) 

Less 
Statutory Pass 

Through 
Payments 

Pledged 
Tax 

Revenues(4) 
2016 $124,109,801 $633,462 $11,086 $145,595 $476,781 
2017 126,591,997 657,303 11,503 158,224 487,577 
2018 129,123,837 681,622 11,928 166,392 503,301 
2019  131,706,314 706,426 12,362 174,834 519,230 
2020  134,340,440 731,727 12,805 183,444 535,477 
2021 137,027,249 757,534 13,257 192,228 552,049 
2022 139,767,794 783,857 13,717 201,186 568,953 
2023 142,563,150 810,706 14,187 210,324 586,195 
2024 145,414,413 838,092 14,667 219,645 603,781 
2025 148,322,701 866,027 15,155 229,152 621,719 
2026 151,289,155 894,519 15,654 238,849 640,016 
2027 154,314,938 923,582 16,163 248,740 658,679 
2028 157,401,237 953,226 16,681 258,829 677,716 
2029 160,549,261 983,463 17,211 269,120 697,132 
2030 163,760,247 1,014,304 17,750 279,616 716,938 
2031 167,035,452 1,045,763 18,301 290,323 737,139 
2032 170,376,161 1,077,850 18,862 301,243 757,744 
2033 173,783,684 1,110,579 19,435 312,382 778,762 
2034 177,259,358 1,143,963 20,019 327,103 796,841 
2035 180,804,545 1,178,015 20,615 342,118 815,282 
2036 184,420,636 1,212,747 21,223 357,433 834,091 

Source:  Urban Futures, Inc.. 

(1) Assumes 2% annual growth over actual Fiscal Year 2014-15 assessed value of $121,676,275. 
(2) Based on 1% rax rate applied to incremental assessed valuation over base year assessed value of $58,158,558, less projected 

delinquency amounts based on a delinquency rate of 3.95%. 
(3) County estimated administration charges based on 1.75% of gross tax increment. 
(4) Based on Gross Tax Increment, less County Administration fees and statutory tax sharing payments. 

 
 

(5) rate of 3.95%. 
(6) County estimated administration charges based on 1.75% of gross tax increment. 



 

 39  
 

Annual Debt Service 

Set forth below is the annual debt service (assuming minimum sinking account payments) on the 
Bonds. 

Maturity Date 
(October 1 of) 

 
Principal 

 
Interest 

Total Debt 
Service 

2016    
2017    
2018    
2019    
2020    
2021    
2022    
2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    
2034    
2035    
2036    

Total: $   
 

 

 

 

 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

 

 



 

 40  
 

Debt Service Coverage 

Set forth below is the estimated debt service coverage of the Bonds using no growth from Fiscal 
Year 2014-15 Pledged Tax Revenues through maturity. 

Hughson Redevelopment Project Area 
Estimated Debt Service Coverage* 

(No Growth Scenario) 

Bond Year 
(Ending October 1) 

No Growth Gross 
Pledged Tax Revenues (1) Debt Service* 

Debt Service 
Coverage *(2) 

2015-16 $458,657 
  2016-17 458,657 
  2017-18 458,657 
  2018-19 458,657 
  2019-20 458,657 
  2020-21 458,657 
  2021-22  458,657 
  2022-23  458,657 
  2023-24 458,657 
  2024-25 458,657 
  2025-26 458,657 
  2026-27 458,657 
  2027-28 458,657 
  2028-29 458,657 
  2029-30 458,657 
  2030-31 458,657 
  2031-32 458,657 
  2032-33 458,657 
  2033-34 458,657 
  2034-35 458,657 
  2035-36 458,657 
  _____________ 

Source:  Underwriter based on Pledged Tax Revenues provided by Urban Futures, Inc., Inc. 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
(1) See “PLEDGED REVENUES – Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues” above.  Net of Statutory Pass-

Through Amounts.  See “PROJECT AREA – Statutory Pass-Throughs” and “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL 
ADVISOR’S REPORT.” 

(2) Excess coverage amounts are not available to the Agency unless for approved administrative amounts or other 
approved enforceable obligations. See “RISK FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 



 

 41  
 

 

Set forth below is the estimated debt service coverage of the Bonds using a 2% annual growth 
scenario for Fiscal Year 2014-15 Pledged Tax Revenues through maturity. 

Hughson Redevelopment Project Area 
Estimated Debt Service Coverage* 

(2% Growth Scenario) 

Bond Year 
(Ending October 1) 

Pledged Tax 
Revenues (1)(2) Debt Service* 

Debt Service 
Coverage*(3) 

2015-16  $476,781 
  2016-17 487,577 
  2017-18 503,301 
  2018-19 519,230 
  2019-20 535,477 
  2020-21 552,049 
  2021-22  568,953 
  2022-23  586,195 
  2023-24 603,781 
  2024-25 621,719 
  2025-26 640,016 
  2026-27 658,679 
  2027-28 677,716 
  2028-29 697,132 
  2029-30 716,938 
  2030-31 737,139 
  2031-32 757,744 
  2032-33 778,762 
  2033-34 796,841 
  2034-35 815,282 
  2035-36 834,091 
  _____________ 

Source:  Underwriter based on Pledged Tax Revenues provided by Urban Futures, Inc., Inc. 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
1) Net of pass-through Statutory Pass-Through Amounts.  See “PROJECT AREA – Statutory Pass-Throughs” and 

“APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT.” 
2) Commencing Fiscal Year 2014-15, assumes 2% projected annual assessed valuation growth over Fiscal Year 

2013-14 actual assessed valuation and projected 2% assessed valuation growth annually thereafter.  See 
“PLEDGED REVENUES – Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues.” 

3) Excess coverage amounts are not available to the Agency unless for approved administrative amounts or other 
approved enforceable obligations. See “RISK FACTORS – Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.” 

CONCLUDING INFORMATION 

Underwriting 

The Bonds have been sold at a net interest rate of ___%.  The original purchase price (equal to the 
principal amount of the Bonds [plus/less] a net reoffering [premium/discount] in the amount of $___ and 



 

 42  
 

less an underwriter’s discount of $___) to be paid for the Bonds is $___.  The Underwriter intends to offer 
the Bonds to the public initially at the respective yields set forth on the cover page of this Official 
Statement, which yields may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice. 

The Underwriter reserves the right to join with dealers and other underwriters in offering the 
Bonds to the public.  The Underwriter may offer and sell Bonds to certain dealers (including dealers 
depositing Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than the public offering prices, and such dealers 
may reallow any such discounts on sales to other dealers. 

Legal Opinions 

The opinion of Richards Watson & Gershon, a Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, California, 
Bond Counsel (“Bond Counsel”), approving the validity of the Bonds and stating that interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and such interest is also exempt 
from personal income taxes of the State of California under present State income tax laws, will be 
furnished to the purchaser at the time of delivery of the Bonds at the expense of the Agency.  
Compensation for Bond Counsel’s services is entirely contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
A copy of the proposed form of Bond Counsel’s final approving opinion with respect to the Bonds is 
attached hereto as APPENDIX C.  The legal opinion is only as to legality and is not intended to be nor is 
it to be interpreted or relied upon as a disclosure document or an express or implied recommendation as to 
the investment quality of the Bonds.  In addition, certain legal matters will be passed on by Richards, 
Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, California, as Disclosure Counsel. 

Tax Exemption 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), establishes certain requirements 
which must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds for interest thereon to be and 
remain excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  Noncompliance with such 
requirements could cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax 
purposes retroactive to their date of issue.  These requirements include, but are not limited to, provisions 
which limit how the proceeds of the Bonds may be spent and invested, and generally require that certain 
investment earnings be rebated on a periodic basis to the United States of America.  The City and the 
Agency have made certifications and representations and have covenanted to maintain the exclusion of 
the interest on the Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103(a) 
of the Code. 

In the opinion of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Bond Counsel, under 
existing law and assuming the accuracy of such certifications and representations by the City and the 
Agency and compliance with such covenants, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for 
Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code, and (ii) the Bonds are not “specified private 
activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5) of the Code and, therefore, interest on the Bonds is 
not a preference item for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of 
the Code.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of 
California personal income taxes.  Bond counsel expresses no opinion as to any other tax consequences 
regarding the Bonds. 

Under the Code, a portion of the interest on the Bonds earned by certain corporations may be 
subject to a federal corporate alternative minimum tax.  In addition, interest on the Bonds may be subject 
to a federal branch profits tax imposed on certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States 
and to a federal tax imposed on excess net passive income of certain S corporations.  The exclusion of 
interest from gross income for federal income tax purposes may have certain adverse federal income tax 



 

 43  
 

consequences on items of income, deduction or credit for certain taxpayers, including financial 
institutions, certain insurance companies, recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits, 
those deemed to incur or continue indebtedness to acquire or carry tax-exempt obligations, and 
individuals eligible for the earned income tax credit.  Bond Counsel will express no opinion regarding 
these and other such consequences. 

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any circumstances or events 
occurring after the date of issuance of the Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds.  
Legislation affecting tax-exempt obligations is regularly considered by the United States Congress and 
may also be considered by the State legislature.  Court proceedings may also be filed, the outcome of 
which could modify the tax treatment of obligations such as the Bonds.  No assurance can be given that 
legislation enacted or proposed, or actions by a court, after the date of issuance of the Bonds, will not 
contain provisions which could eliminate, or directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the exclusion of 
interest on the Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes, or have an adverse effect on 
the market value or marketability of the Bonds. 

For example, recent presidential and legislative proposals would eliminate, reduce or otherwise 
alter the tax benefits currently provided to certain owners of state and local government bonds, including 
proposals that would result in additional federal income tax on taxpayers that own tax-exempt obligations 
if their incomes exceed certain thresholds.  Investors in the Bonds should be aware that any such future 
legislative actions (including federal income tax reform) may retroactively change the treatment of all or a 
portion of the interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes for all or certain taxpayers. In such 
event, the market value of the Bonds may be adversely affected and the ability of holders to sell their 
Bonds in the secondary market may be reduced. The Bonds are not subject to special mandatory 
redemption, and the interest rates on the Bonds are not subject to adjustment, in the event of any such 
change.  

Investors should consult their own financial and tax advisors to analyze the importance of these 
risks. 

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in relevant documents may be 
changed and certain actions may be taken, under the circumstances and subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any Bond, or the interest thereon, if 
any such change occurs or action is taken upon the advice or approval of bond counsel other than 
Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation. 

If the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a substantial amount of the bonds of a 
maturity are to be sold to the public) is less than the stated redemption price at maturity of such Bond, the 
difference constitutes original issue discount, the accrual of which is excluded from gross income for 
Federal income tax purposes to the same extent as interest on the Bonds.  Further, such original issue 
discount accrues actuarially on a constant yield method over the term of each such Bond and the basis of 
each Bond acquired at such initial offering price by an initial purchaser thereof will be increased by the 
amount of such accrued original issue discount.  The accrual of original issue discount may be taken into 
account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income for purposes of determining various other tax 
consequences of owning such Bonds.  Purchasers who acquire Bonds with original issue discount are 
advised that they should consult with their own independent tax advisors with respect to the state and 
local tax consequences of owning such Bonds.   

If the issue price of a Bond is greater than the stated redemption price at maturity of such Bond, 
the difference constitutes original issue premium, the amortization of which is not deductible from gross 



 

 44  
 

income for Federal income tax purposes.  Original issue premium is amortized over the period to maturity 
of such Bond based on the yield to maturity of that Bond (or, in the case of a Bond callable prior to its 
stated maturity, the amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an 
earlier call date that results in the lowest yield on that Bond), compounded semiannually.  For purposes of 
determining gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of such Bond, the purchaser is required to 
decrease such purchaser’s adjusted basis in such Bond by the amount of premium that has amortized to 
the date of such sale or other disposition.  As a result, a purchaser may realize taxable gain for Federal 
income tax purposes from the sale or other disposition of such Bond for an amount equal to or less than 
the amount paid by the purchaser for that Bond. A purchaser of that Bond in the initial public offering at 
the issue price for that Bond who holds it to maturity (or, in the case of a callable Bond, to its earlier call 
date that results in the lowest yield on that Bond) will realize no gain or loss upon its retirement. 

Payments of interest on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds, are generally subject to IRS 
Form 1099-INT information reporting requirements.  If an owner of a Bond is subject to backup 
withholding under those requirements, then payments of interest will also be subject to backup 
withholding.  Those requirements do not affect the exclusion of such interest from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes. 

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own independent tax advisers regarding 
pending or proposed federal and state tax legislation and court proceedings, and prospective purchasers of 
the Bonds at other than their original issuance at the respective prices indicated on the cover of this 
Official Statement should also consult their own tax advisers regarding other tax considerations such as 
the consequences of market discount, as to all of which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, 
unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Agency or the owners of the 
Bonds regarding the tax status of interest thereon in the event of an audit examination by the IRS. The 
IRS has a program to audit tax-exempt obligations to determine whether the interest thereon is includible 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes. If the IRS does audit the Bonds, under current IRS 
procedures, the IRS will treat the Agency as the taxpayer and the beneficial owners of the Bonds will 
have only limited rights, if any, to obtain and participate in judicial review of such audit. Any action of 
the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, 
or an audit of other obligations presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market value of the Bonds.  

A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as APPENDIX C. 

Verification 

Grant Thornton, Minneapolis, Minnesota, independent public accountants, upon delivery of the 
Bonds, will deliver a report verifying the mathematical accuracy of certain computations contained in 
schedules provided to them relating to the sufficiency of monies deposited into the Escrow Fund to pay, 
when due, the principal and interest on the 2006 Bonds to be refunded. 

The report of Grant Thornton will include the statement that the scope of its engagement is 
limited to verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in such schedules provided 
to it, and that it has no obligation to update its report because of events occurring, or data or information 
coming to its attention, subsequent to the date of its report. 



 

 45  
 

No Litigation 

There is no action, suit or proceeding known to the Agency to be pending and notice of which has 
been served upon and received by the Agency, or threatened, restraining or enjoining the execution or 
delivery of the Bonds or the Indenture or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the foregoing 
or any proceedings of the Agency taken with respect to any of the foregoing. 

Legality for Investment in California 

The Redevelopment Law provides that obligations authorized and issued under the 
Redevelopment Law will be legal investments for all banks, trust companies and savings banks, insurance 
companies, and various other financial institutions, as well as for trust funds.  The Bonds are also 
authorized security for public deposits under the Redevelopment Law. 

The Superintendent of Banks of the State of California has previously ruled that obligations of a 
redevelopment agency are eligible for savings bank investment in California. 

Rating 

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies (“Standard & 
Poor’s”) has assigned a rating of “__” to the Bonds.  Such rating reflects only the views of Standard & 
Poor’s as to the credit quality of the Bonds.  An explanation of the significance of the rating may be 
obtained from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services at the following address: 55 Water Street, New York, 
New York 10041 (212) 512-3108.  There is no assurance that the rating will continue for any given period 
of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Standard & Poor’s, if in the 
judgment of Standard & Poor’s, circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal 
of the rating may have an adverse effect on the marketability or market price of the Bonds. 

Continuing Disclosure 

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement with the Trustee and Urban Futures, Inc., as 
Dissemination Agent (the “Disclosure Agreement”), the Agency has agreed to provide, or cause to be 
provided, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) certain annual financial information 
and operating data, including its postaudit of the financial transactions and records of the Agency for the 
applicable fiscal year pursuant to Section 34177(n) of the Dissolution Act and information of the type set 
forth in this Official Statement under the heading “PLEDGED TAX REVENUES – Schedule of 
Historical Incremental Revenues.”  

In addition, the Agency has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, to the MSRB in a timely 
manner, not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of any such event, notice of the following 
“Listed Events”:  (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if 
material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled 
draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity 
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue 
Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the security; (7) modifications to rights of security holders, if 
material; (8) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of 
property securing repayment of the securities, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, 
insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated Person (as defined in “APPENDIX E – Form of 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement”); (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition 



 

 46  
 

involving an Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Obligated Person, 
other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an 
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its 
terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a 
trustee, if material.   

These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with SEC Rule 
15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Agency may amend the 
Disclosure Agreement, and waive any provision thereof, by written agreement of the parties, without the 
consent of the Owners, if all of the following conditions are satisfied:  (1) such amendment is made in 
connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal (including regulatory) 
requirements, a change in law (including rules or regulations) or in interpretations thereof, or a change in 
the identity, nature or status of the Agency or the type of business conducted thereby; (2) the Disclosure 
Agreement as so amended would have complied with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 as of the date of 
the Disclosure Agreement, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as 
well as any change in circumstances; (3) the Agency shall have delivered to the Dissemination Agent an 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, addressed to 
the Agency and the Dissemination Agent, to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above; (4) the 
Agency shall have delivered to the Dissemination Agent an opinion of nationally recognized bond 
counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, addressed to the Agency, to the effect that the 
amendment does not materially impair the interests of the Owners; and (5) the Agency shall have 
delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to the MSRB. 

In addition, the Agency’s obligations under the Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the 
defeasance or payment in full of all of the Bonds.  The provisions of the Disclosure Agreement are 
intended to be for the benefit of the Owners and shall be enforceable by the Trustee on behalf of such 
Owners, provided that any enforcement action by any such person shall be limited to a right to obtain 
specific enforcement of the Agency’s obligations under the Disclosure Agreement and any failure by the 
Agency to comply with the provisions thereof shall not be an event of default under the Indenture.  See 
“APPENDIX E – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

Presentation of Agency Financial Statements Subsequent to Statutory Dissolution. 

As previously described herein, the Prior Agency was statutorily dissolved on February 1, 2012, 
and the Agency commenced operations as of the same date.  Therefore, the Prior Agency operated for 
only seven months in fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and the Agency operated for the last five months of 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  Commencing with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (i.e., 
audited financial statements) of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the activities of the 
Agency will be reported as a fiduciary trust fund as part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report, which is in accordance with guidance issued by the State Department of Finance and available on 
its website as of the date of this Official Statement, interpreting Section 34177(n) of the California Health 
and Safety Code concerning certain successor agency postaudit obligations.   

The final seven months of activity of the Prior Agency prior to its February 1, 2012 dissolution 
were reported in the governmental funds of the City in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the housing assets, housing 
obligations, and housing activities of the Prior Agency have been transferred to the City after the 
dissolution date and have been reported in a special fund in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, 
beginning with fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 



 

 47  
 

See “APPENDIX F – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2014.”  A complete copy of the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2014 can be obtained from the City’s Finance Department. 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations and functions 
should be included in the reporting entity, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
information on the activities of the reporting entity, which includes the City (the primary government) and 
related but separate legal entities such as the Hughson Financing Authority, the Prior Agency and the 
Agency.  Such accounting presentation, however, does not change the separate legal status of the entities.  
With regard to the Agency in particular, as set forth in Section 34173(g) of the Dissolution Act, “A 
successor agency is a separate public entity from the public agency that provides for its governance and 
the two entities shall not merge.”   

The State Department of Finance’s website is not in any way incorporated into this Official 
Statement, and the Agency cannot take any responsibility for, nor make any representation whatsoever as 
to, the continued accuracy of the Internet address or the accuracy, completeness, or timeliness of 
information posted there. In addition, from time to time, the State Department of Finance changes its 
guidance without notice. 

Continuing Disclosure History. 

Prior to the printing of this Official Statement, an examination was conducted of the continuing 
disclosure filings by the Prior Agency and the Agency during the past five years.  The result of such 
examination indicated a few instances of filing delays and omissions of certain materials required to be 
included in the continuing disclosure annual reports.   

In connection with the 2006 Bonds, the Prior Agency entered into a continuing disclosure 
undertaking under Rule 15c2-12 to file an annual report by March 15 of each year containing, among 
other information, its audited financial statements, and if not available by such time, the unaudited 
financial statements.  The annual reports due March 15, 2012 and March 15, 2014 were filed on a timely 
basis but were incomplete due to failure to provide either audited or unaudited financial statements.  
However, the audited financial statements were subsequently filed on July 10, 2012 for the report due 
March 15, 2012, and on May 26, 2015 for the report due March 15, 2014.   

The City believes that its procedures with its Dissemination Agent are sufficient in the normal 
due course to assure substantial compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings in the future.  A 
failure by the Agency to comply with the provisions of the Disclosure Agreement is not an event of 
default under the Indenture (although the Trustee does have remedies at law and in equity).  However, a 
failure to comply with the provisions of the Disclosure Agreement must be reported in accordance with 
the SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer 
before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds. Therefore, a failure by the Agency to comply 
with the provisions of the Disclosure Agreement may adversely affect the marketability of the Bonds on 
the secondary market. 

Miscellaneous 

All of the preceding summaries of the Indenture, the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, the 
Redevelopment Law, other applicable legislation, the Redevelopment Plans for the Project Area, 
agreements and other documents are made subject to the provisions of such documents respectively and 



 

 48  
 

do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of such provisions.  Reference is hereby made to 
such documents on file with the Agency for further information in connection therewith. 

This Official Statement does not constitute a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.  Any 
statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not so 
expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no representation is made that 
any of the estimates will be realized. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Executive Director has been duly 
authorized by the Agency. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE HUGHSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
 
 
 By:      
   Executive Director 



 

 A-1  
 

APPENDIX A 
GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING 

THE CITY OF HUGHSON 

The following information concerning the City of Hughson and the surrounding area is included 
herein only for the purpose of supplying general information regarding the community.  The Bonds are 
not a debt of the City of Hughson, the County of Stanislaus, the State of California or any of its political 
subdivisions (except the Agency) and neither said City, said County, said State or any of its political 
subdivisions (except the Agency) is liable therefor.  See the section in the forepart of this Official 
Statement entitled “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS.” 

General 

The City is located in the Central Valley of the State of California, 300 miles north of Los Angeles, 100 
miles east of San Francisco and 90 miles south of the State’s capital city of Sacramento.  The City is 
located in Stanislaus County on State Highway 99, approximately 20 miles east of Interstate Highway 5.  
The City is also near State Highway 108 and 132, leading to and over the Sierra Nevada Mountain Range. 

Population 

The following table provides a historical summary of population in the City, the County and the State of 
California for the last five years. 

City, County and Population  
2011-2015 

(as of January 1) 

 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

City of Hughson 6,687 6,785 6,969 7,137 7,222 
Stanislaus County  516,244 519,350 523,038 528,157 532,297 
State of California 37,427,946 37,668,804 37,984,138 38,357,121 38,714,725 

    
Source: State of California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit. 

 

Climate 

The City area averages 12.00 inches of rainfall annually and experiences a full spectrum of the seasons, 
with temperatures ranging from an average low of 38 F in the winter, to an average high in the low to 
mid-80’s during spring and fall, and to an average in the 90’s during the summer months. 



 

 A-2  
 

Major Employers 

The major employers in the County are set forth in the following table: 

County of Stanislaus 
Major Employers 

2015 
 

Employer Location Industry 
Andre Champagne Cellars Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  
California State University Turlock  Schools-Universities & Colleges Academic  

Carlo Rossi Winery Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  
Community Services Agency Modesto  Government Offices-County  

Con Agra Foods Inc. Oakdale  Canning (Manufacturers)  
Copperidge Winery Modesto  Beverages (Wholesalers)  

CVS Caremark Distribution Center Patterson  Distribution Centers (Wholesalers)  
Del Monte Foods Modesto  Canning (Manufacturers)  

Doctors Medical Center Modesto  Hospitals  
E & J Gallo Winery Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  

Ecco Domani Winery Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  
Emanuel Medical Center  Turlock  Hospitals  

Fairbanks Cellars Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  
Foster Farms Turlock  Poultry Processing Plants (Manufacturers)  
Frito-Lay Inc Modesto  Potato Chips (Wholesalers)  

Hornsby’s Pub Draft Cider Ltd Modesto  Beverages (Wholesalers)  
Memorial Medical Center  Modesto  Hospitals  

Modesto Bee Modesto  Newspapers (Publishers/ Manufacturers)  
Oak Valley Hospital District Oakdale  Hospitals  

Peter Vella Winery Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  
Stanislaus County Community Service Turlock  Government Offices-County  

Stanislaus County Community Modesto  Government Offices-County  
Stanislaus County Welfare Dept Modesto  County Government-Social/Human Resources  

Women Infants Child Program-W I C Modesto  Health Services  
Zabaco Winery Modesto  Wineries (Manufacturers)  

    
Source:  State of California, Employment Development Department from the America’s Labor Market Information System 

(ALMIS) Employer Database, 2015 2nd Edition 

Taxable Transactions 

The following tables show the City and the County’s taxable transactions between 2010 and 2014. 

City of Hughson 
Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 

Retail Stores Total All Outlets 

Year No. of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions No. of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions 

2009 63 12,330 96 37,316 
2010 69 12,371 102 36,674 
2011 71 12,220 103 39,223 
2012 62 10,927 93 44,481 

2013(1) 71 12,264 103 58,033 

http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=623436185
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=402925216
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=623436235
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=424693756
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=000840553
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=434192770
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=631879749
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=308655810
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=806323663
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=009566084
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=623436268
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=001455120
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=623436284
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=306613266
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=453732109
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=654367051
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=001454818
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=493203178
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=983877028
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=414824454
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=654386754
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=546703810
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=886547066
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=546684721
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov/aspdotnet/databrowsing/empDetails.aspx?menuchoice=emp&geogArea=0604000099&empId=623436367


 

 A-3  
 

    
(1)  Latest Data Available.   
Source:  California State Board of Equalization, Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax). 

 
The following table shows the County’s taxable transactions between 2009 and 2013. 

County of Stanislaus 
Number of Permits and Valuation of Taxable Transactions 

(In Thousands of Dollars) 

Retail Stores Total All Outlets 

Year No. of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions No. of Permits 
Taxable 

Transactions 

2009 6,364 $3,925,638 9,644 $5,847,057 
2010 6,612 4,112,697 9,881 6,098,614 
2011 6,521 4,394,011 9,717 6,662,466 
2012 6,649 4,709,642 9,761 7,178,273 
2013(1)   6,741 4,998,626)   9,757 7,639,992 

    
(1)  Latest Data Available.   
Source:  California State Board of Equalization, Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax). 

 
 
 

Construction Activity 

The following tables provide a summary of building permit valuations for the City and the County for the 
last five years. 

City of Hughson 
Total Building Permit Valuations 

(Valuations in Thousands) 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Permit Valuation      

New Single-family      
New Multi-family      
Res. Alterations/Additions      

Total Residential      
      

New Commercial       
New Industrial      
New Other      
Com. Alterations/Additions      

Total Nonresidential      
      
New Dwelling Units      

Single Family      
Multiple Family      

Total      
    
Source: Construction Industry Research Board, Building Permit Summary. 

 



 

 A-4  
 

Employment By Industry 

The County is included in the Modesto Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”).  The following table 
shows employment by industry group in the Modesto MSA for the last five years: 

Employment by Industry Group 
Modesto MSA 

 
TITLE 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Civilian Labor Force 242,900 242,000 242,300 241,700 241,400 
  Civilian Employment 201,800 202,100 206,100 210,400 214,400 
  Civilian Unemployment 41,100 39,900 36,100 31,200 27,100 
Civilian Unemployment Rate 16.9% 16.5% 14.9% 12.9% 11.2% 
Total, All Industries 162,700 162,000 165,400 171,100 175,700 
  Total Farm 12,900 12,900 13,400 14,100 14,000 
  Total Nonfarm 149,800 149,000 152,000 157,100 161,700 
    Total Private 123,600 123,400 126,700 131,600 135,700 
    Goods Producing 26,600 26,500 27,000 27,800 28,100 
      Mining, Logging, and Construction 5,900 5,800 6,300 7,000 7,300 
      Manufacturing 20,700 20,700 20,700 20,900 20,800 
    Service Providing 123,300 122,600 125,000 129,300 133,600 
    Private Service Providing 97,000 96,900 99,600 103,800 107,600 
      Trade, Transportation & Utilities 31,600 32,200 33,500 34,500 35,000 
        Wholesale Trade 5,900 5,800 5,800 5,900 6,000 
        Retail Trade 19,500 20,000 20,800 21,500 21,800 
          Food & Beverage Stores 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,100 4,200 
          Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 1,800 1,900 2,000 2,000 2,000 
          General Merchandise Stores 4,600 4,700 4,800 5,100 5,100 
        Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 6,200 6,400 6,800 7,100 7,200 
      Information 1,200 1,100 1,000 900 900 
      Financial Activities 5,500 5,400 5,400 5,400 5,400 
      Professional & Business Services 12,500 12,200 12,800 13,400 14,000 
      Educational & Health Services 26,700 26,700 27,200 28,800 30,100 
      Leisure & Hospitality 14,600 14,500 14,900 15,800 16,900 
      Other Services 5,100 4,900 4,900 5,000 5,300 
      Government 26,200 25,700 25,400 25,500 26,000 
        Federal Government 1,000 900 900 800 800 
        State & Local Government 25,200 24,800 24,500 24,700 25,200 
          State Government 1,700 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,900 
          Local Government 23,600 23,000 22,700 22,900 23,300 

      
      
    
Source: Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division, Industry Employment & Labor Force by 

Annual Average, March 2014 Benchmark 

Agriculture 

[update - Despite increasing urbanization, agriculture remains an important contributor to the County’s 
economy.  In 2005, the value of agricultural production totaled $1,454,932, which was a slight decrease 
of approximately 0.04% from 2004.   However, from 2003 to 2004, agricultural production increased 
36%. Livestock and poultry products remain the County’s number one grossing crop followed by fruit 
and nut crops.   



 

 A-5  
 

In 2005, approximately 49% of agricultural production consisted of livestock and poultry and their 
products, 35% was comprised of fruit and nut crops, while the remainder included nursery, vegetable, 
seed, apiary, and field crops.  The following table summarizes the County’s agricultural activity from 
2001 through 2005 and illustrates that the overall value of output has increased by 46% since 2001.] 

Agricultural Production 
For Years 2010-2014 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fruit & Nut Crops      
Field Crops      
Vegetable Crops      
Seed Crops      
Nursery Products      
Apiary Products      
Livestock & Poultry      
Livestock &  
Poultry Products   

   

TOTALS      

    
Source: County of Stanislaus Agricultural Department. 

Tax Rate 

A typical tax rate in the City is made up as follows: 

 Typical Tax Rate  
(TRA 001-060) 

County General Tax   
Hughson Unified School District-Bond 2001   
Yosemite Community College District-Bond 
2014 

   

Total Tax Rate   
    
Source:  Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller. 

Assessed Valuation and Property Taxes 

Property in the City is assessed by the Stanislaus County Assessor.  All ad valorem taxes levied on 
property in the City by the County, schools and special districts are due at the same time and are based on 
the same rolls as county taxes.  Under current law, the valuation of secured property is established as of 
January 1 of each year and is equalized for purposes of establishing tax rates in November.  Property 
taxes become a lien on property on January 1.  Ad valorem taxes on secured and utility property are 
mailed in October and are payable by December 10 and April 10 of each fiscal year.  Taxes on unsecured 
property (personal property and leasehold) are due by August 31. 

A summary of the City’s assessed valuation for the last five Fiscal Years is as follows: 

CITY OF HUGHSON 

Fiscal Year Local Secured Utility Unsecured Total AV 
2010-11     
2011-12     
2012-13     
2013-14     



 

 A-6  
 

2014-15     
    
Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. 

Transportation 

The Modesto City-County Airport is located 1/2 mile north of the City, parallel to the Tuolumne River.  
The Modesto Airport is jointly owned by the City of Modesto and Stanislaus County, and operated by the 
City of Modesto.  Originally, the airport was named Modesto Municipal Airport, and on May 25, 1955, 
was renamed the Modesto City-County Airport.  In October 1974, the field was renamed again to Harry 
Sham Field in honor of the airport manager that served from 1949 through 1968.  The present facility 
contains two parallel paved and lighted modern runways within the 450 acres.  Currently, the remodeled 
passenger terminal of [8,900 square feet is serviced by United Express (Skywest Airlines) providing four 
flights a day.] 

San Francisco International, San Jose International and Oakland International Airports are located 90 
miles west of the City in the Bay Area, an hour and half drive to the City.  Sacramento International 
Airport is also available and is located 90 miles north of the City along Interstate 5.  

Rail service in the area is provided by Union Pacific Railroad, which operates a line that runs parallel to 
State Highway 99 which runs through the center of the City. 

State Highway 99 travels through the City from the northwest to the southeast, and has three lanes in each 
direction to accommodate truck and automobile traffic.  Transecting the State from north to south, and 
connecting Canada to Mexico is Interstate 5, located 17 miles west of the City. 

Utilities 

The public utility companies serving the City’s residents include the Turlock Irrigation District (electric), 
Pacific Gas and Electric (gas), Hughson Disposal, Inc. (garbage), City of Hughson (sewer and water) and 
Charter Cable (cable television). 

Services and Community Facilities 

Police Department.  The City Police Division includes 3 administrative personnel, including the 
Director/Chief and Division Commander, 10 sergeants, 33 patrol officers, and 8 dispatchers.  Support 
staff includes 5 community service officers and 3 records staff.  

Fire Department.  Hughson Emergency Services (CES) is a division of the Hughson Department of Public 
Safety, which provides law enforcement and fire suppression to the City.  The Emergency Services 
Division, operating out of three stations, provides 24 hour response to fire, medical and rescue 
emergencies within the a 14.5 square mile service area.  In addition, CES provides contract fire, medical 
and rescue services to Stanislaus Center Six, located at Service and Hackett Road, and two outlying fire 
districts, the Hughson Fire Protection District and half of the Industrial Fire District. 

The Hughson Emergency Services Division employs 21 career firefighters (1 Division Commander/ 
Chief, 2 Battalion Chiefs – operations and prevention, 9 Captains and 9 line Firefighters) and maintains 
approximately 25 volunteer firefighters. 

The division assets include five Type 1 engines, a Type 1 heavy rescue truck and a Type 1 truck.  
Average response time is four minutes. 

Education.  The Hughson Unified School District serves over 10,000 students from pre-school through 
12th grade.  Four of its elementary schools are recognized as exemplary achieving schools.  The City’s 
schools provide a basic education, emphasizing reading, writing and mathematics, but also include 
technology and the arts in the curriculum.  Seventeen public schools, two private schools, three special 
education schools, an adult school and six community colleges and universities are located in the area, 
including California State University at Stanislaus and University of the Pacific. 



 

 B-1  
 

 
APPENDIX B 

 
SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE  

 

 



 

C-1 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

[closing date], 2015 

Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
Hughson, California 

Opinion of Bond Counsel 

with reference to 

$____  
Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency  

(Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

Series 2015 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

We have examined (i) a record of proceedings relating to the issuance by the Successor Agency 
to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) of the above-captioned bonds (the “Bonds”); (ii) 
the Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2015, by and between the Agency and MUFG Union Bank, 
N.A., as Trustee (the “Indenture”); (iii) Resolution No. 2015-01 of the Board of Directors of the Agency 
adopted on March 23, 2015, approving the issuance of the Bonds; (iv) Resolution No. 2015-02 of the 
Oversight Board to the Agency adopted on March 25, 2015 (the “Oversight Board Resolution”); (v) a 
letter from the California Department of Finance, dated May 18, 2015, approving the Oversight Board 
Resolution; (vi) supplemental documents furnished to us, certificates and documents from public officials 
and others; and (vii) such other matters of law as we have deemed necessary to enable us to render the 
opinions expressed herein.  As to questions of fact material to this opinion, we have relied upon such 
certificates and documents without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

The Bonds are issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, including 
Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code and the provisions of California Health and Safety Code Section 34177.5, and the 
Indenture.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Indenture. 

Based on the examination described herein, we are of the opinion that under existing law: 

1. The Agency has the right and power to enter into the Indenture.  The Indenture has been 
duly and lawfully authorized, executed and delivered by the Agency and, assuming due authorization, 
execution and delivery by the Trustee, is in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and is valid 
and binding upon the Agency and enforceable in accordance with its terms, and no other authorization for 
the Indenture is required.  The Indenture creates the valid pledge which it purports to create of the 
Pledged Tax Revenues and certain funds established by the Indenture, including the investments, if any, 
thereof; subject only to the provisions of the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes 
and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture. 



 

C-2 
 

2. The Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the Agency, payable solely from 
Pledged Tax Revenues and certain other funds as provided in the Indenture. 

3. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. 

4. Assuming compliance with the covenants described below, interest on the Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  The Bonds are not “specified private 
activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 57(a)(5) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the “Code”) and, therefore, the interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a preference item for purposes 
of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code.  However, we note a 
portion of the interest on Bonds owned by corporations may be subject to the Federal alternative 
minimum tax, which is based in part on adjusted current earnings. 

The Code sets forth certain requirements which must be met subsequent to the issuance and 
delivery of the Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded from gross income for Federal 
income tax purposes.  Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be 
included in gross income retroactive to the date of issue of the Bonds.  The Agency has covenanted to 
satisfy, or take such actions as may be necessary to cause to be satisfied, each provision of the Code 
necessary to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for Federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Code. 

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Indenture and other relevant 
documents may be changed and certain actions may be taken, under the circumstances and subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel.  We express no opinion as to any Bond, or the interest thereon, if any 
change occurs or action is taken or omitted upon the advice or approval of any counsel other than 
ourselves. 

Except as stated in the foregoing paragraphs numbered 3 and 4 and the paragraph immediately 
following paragraph 4, we express no opinion as to any Federal or state tax consequences of the 
ownership or disposition of the Bonds. 

The opinions expressed in the paragraphs numbered 1 and 2 hereof are qualified to the extent that 
the enforceability of the Indenture and the Bonds may be limited by any applicable bankruptcy, 
insolvency, debt adjustment, fraudulent conveyance or transfer, moratorium, reorganization or other 
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State 
of California.  We express no opinion with respect to any opinion with respect to any indemnification, 
contribution, penalty, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, waiver or severability provisions 
contained in the foregoing documents.  We have assumed, and relied on, compliance by the Agency, the 
Hughson Redevelopment Agency, and other parties of their respective covenants set forth in the 
documents relating to the 2006 Bonds, including but not limited to covenants to maintain the exclusion of 
the interest portion of the 2006 Bonds from gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to 
Section 103(a) of the Code. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing law and cover certain matters 
not directly addressed thereby.  Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events 
occurring after the date hereof, and we have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, 
whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur.  We have assumed the genuineness of all 
documents and signatures presented to us.  We have not undertaken to verify independently, and have 
assumed, the accuracy of the factual matters represented, warranted or certified in such documents.  



 

C-3 
 

Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all agreements and covenants contained in the Indenture.  
No opinion is expressed herein with respect thereto the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official 
Statement or any other offering material relating to the Bonds. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 



 

 D-1  
 

APPENDIX D 
 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The information in this Appendix D concerning The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New 
York, New York, and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from DTC and the Agency takes no 
responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof.  The Agency cannot and does not give any 
assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners 
(a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, (b) certificates 
representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Bonds, or (c) 
redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the 
Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect 
Participants will act in the manner described in this Appendix.  The current “Rules” applicable to DTC 
are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “Procedures” of DTC to be 
followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC. 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.   The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate 
principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized 
under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York 
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of 
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money 
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with 
DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other 
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company 
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which 
are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the 
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, 
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship 
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & 
Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.   

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of 
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant 
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 



 

 D-2  
 

behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership 
interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration 
in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the 
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be 
the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account 
of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain 
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such 
as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, 
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit 
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may 
wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided 
directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such maturity to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Agency as soon as possible after the record date.  
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Principal, premium (if any), and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to 
credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from the Agency or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, 
or the Agency, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
Principal, premium (if any), and interest payments with respect to the Bonds to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Agency 
or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, 
and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and 
Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the Agency or the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a 



 

 D-3  
 

successor depository is not obtained, certificates representing the Bonds are required to be printed and 
delivered. 

The Agency may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, representing the Bonds will be printed and 
delivered to DTC in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that the Agency believes to be reliable, but the Agency takes no responsibility for the 
accuracy thereof. 

 

 



 

 E-1  
 

APPENDIX E 
 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

 

 



 

 F-1  
 

 

APPENDIX F 
 

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 

 

 

 



 

 G-1  
 

APPENDIX G 
 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT 



 -1-  
12830-0003\1740739 

$[principal amount] 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA) 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2015 

_______________ 
 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
_______________ 

 
[pricing date], 2015 

Successor Agency to the  
Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
7018 Pine Street 
Hughson, California  95326 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Jeffries LLC (the “Underwriter”), acting not as fiduciary or agent for you, but on 
behalf of itself, hereby offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase 
Agreement”) with the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) 
for the purchase by the Underwriter, of the Agency’s Hughson Redevelopment Project Area Tax 
Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Bonds”).  This offer is made subject to 
acceptance thereof by the Agency prior to 6:00 p.m., California time, on [pricing date], 2015, 
and upon such acceptance, as evidenced by the signature of the Executive Director of the Agency 
in the space provided herein.  This Purchase Agreement shall be in full force and effect in 
accordance with its terms and shall be binding upon the Agency and the Underwriter. 

Section 1. Purchase and Sale of the Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions 
and upon the basis of the representations and agreements herein set forth, the Agency hereby 
agrees to sell and the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from the Agency for offering to the 
public all (but not less than all) of the Bonds at a purchase price of $__ (representing the 
aggregate initial principal amount of $[principal amount] of the Bonds, [plus/less] net original 
issue [premium/discount] in the amount of $__, and less an underwriter’s discount of $___).  The 
Bonds will mature and bear interest at the interest rates as shown in Appendix A hereto.  The 
Bonds will be authorized and issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2015 
(the “Indenture”), by and between the Agency and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the 
“Trustee”).  The Indenture was approved by Resolution No. 2015-01 adopted by the Agency on 
March 23, 2015 (the “Resolution”), and by Resolution No. 2015-02 adopted by the Oversight 
Board for the Agency on March 25, 2015 (the “Oversight Board Resolution”), and in accordance 
with Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 
of the Government Code (the “Bond Law”), Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 
1.85 (commencing with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code of the 
State, as amended, including on June 27, 2012 by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (“AB 1484”), enacted 



 -2-  
12830-0003\1740739 

as Chapter 26, Statutes of 2012 (the “Dissolution Act”), and the Constitution and other 
applicable laws of the State of California (the “State”). 

The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of the Bonds at the 
initial offering yields set forth in the Official Statement; however, the Underwriter reserves the 
right to make concessions to dealers and to change such initial offering yields as the Underwriter 
shall deem necessary in connection with the marketing of the Bonds.  The Underwriter agrees 
that, in connection with the public offering and initial delivery of the Bonds to the purchasers 
thereof from the Underwriter, the Underwriter will deliver or cause to be delivered to each 
purchaser a copy of the final Official Statement prepared in connection with the Bonds (the 
“Official Statement”), for the time period required under Rule 15c2-12 promulgated under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Rule 15c2-12”).  Terms defined in the Official Statement are 
used herein as so defined. 

The Bonds are being issued to refinance the Hughson Redevelopment Agency’s 
previously issued $3,200,000 original aggregate principal amount of Hughson Redevelopment 
Project Area, Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, currently outstanding in the 
aggregate principal amount of $__,000 (the “2003 Bonds”).  In connection with such refunding, 
the Agency, as successor to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Prior Agency”), will 
enter into an Escrow Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Escrow Agreement”), by and 
between the Agency and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as Escrow Agent. 

The Agency acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds 
(as hereinafter defined) pursuant to this Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial 
transaction between the Agency and the Underwriter; (ii) in connection therewith and with the 
discussions, undertakings and procedures leading up to the consummation of such transaction, 
the Underwriter is and has been acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a Municipal 
Advisor (as defined in Section 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), and 
has not assumed a fiduciary responsibility in favor of the Agency with respect to the offering of 
the Bonds or the process leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriter has advised or is 
currently advising the Agency on other matters); (iii) the only obligations the Underwriter has to 
the Agency with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby expressly are set forth in this 
Purchase Agreement; (iv) the Agency has consulted its own legal, financial and other advisors to 
the extent it has deemed appropriate; (v) the Underwriter has financial interests that may differ 
from and be adverse to those of the Agency and (vi) the Underwriter has provided the Agency 
with, and the Agency has received, certain disclosures required under the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Section 2. Official Statement.  The Agency shall deliver, or cause to be 
delivered, to the Underwriter two (2) executed copies of the Official Statement prepared in 
connection with the Bonds, in such form as shall be approved by the Agency and the 
Underwriter and such additional conformed copies thereof as the Underwriter may reasonably 
request.  The Agency deems the Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) to be “final” as of its date for purposes of Rule 15c2-12.  By acceptance of this 
Purchase Agreement, the Agency hereby authorizes the use of copies of the Official Statement in 
connection with the public offering and sale of the Bonds, and ratifies and approves the 
distribution by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement. 



 -3-  
12830-0003\1740739 

Section 3. Delivery of the Bonds.  At approximately 8:00 a.m., California 
time, on __, 2015, or at such earlier or later time or date, as shall be agreed upon by the Agency, 
and the Underwriter (such time and date herein referred to as the “Closing Date”), the Agency 
shall deliver to the Underwriter, acting on its own behalf, the Bonds in definitive form and 
authenticated by the Trustee, through the facilities of the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) 
(or to the Trustee in the event of a Fast Automated Securities Transfer (F.A.S.T.) or such other 
location as designated by the Underwriter and approved by the Agency.  The Underwriter, acting 
on its own behalf, shall accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds as set forth 
in Section 1 hereof by same day funds (such delivery and payment being herein referred to as the 
“Closing”).  The Bonds shall be made available to the Underwriter not later than the second 
business day before the Closing Date for purposes of inspection and packaging.  The Bonds shall 
be delivered as registered bonds in the name of Cede & Co., Inc.  Concurrently with the delivery 
of the Bonds to the Underwriter, the Agency will deliver the documents hereinafter mentioned at 
the offices of Richards Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, Los Angeles, California 
(“Bond Counsel”), or another place to be mutually agreed upon by the Agency and the 
Underwriter. 

Section 4. Representations and Agreements of the Agency.  The Agency 
represents and agrees that: 

(a) The Agency is a public entity, duly organized and existing, and authorized 
to transact business and exercise powers, under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the 
State, including the Dissolution Act, and has, and at the date of the Closing will have, full legal 
right, power and authority (i) to enter into this Purchase Agreement, (ii) to issue, sell and deliver 
the Bonds to the Underwriter, acting on its own behalf, as provided herein, (iii) to adopt the 
Resolution approving the Indenture, and (iv) to carry out and to consummate the transactions 
contemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Disclosure Agreement”), between the 
Agency and Urban Futures, Inc., as Dissemination Agent, with respect to the Bonds, and the 
Official Statement; 

(b) The Preliminary Official Statement, as of its date, was true, correct and 
complete in all material respects and did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein, in 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; 

(c) The Official Statement is, and will be, as of the Closing Date, true, correct 
and complete in all material respects and does not, and will not, as of the Closing Date, contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to 
make the statements contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading; 

(d) The Agency to the best of its knowledge has complied, and will at the 
Closing Date be in compliance, with the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, and any other 
applicable laws of the State in all respects material to the transaction contemplated by this 
Purchase Agreement, the issuance of the Bonds, and the performance by the Issuer of its 
obligations hereunder and under the Indenture; 



 -4-  
12830-0003\1740739 

(e) By all necessary official action of the Agency prior to or concurrently with 
the acceptance hereof, the Agency has duly authorized and approved the Preliminary Official 
Statement and the Official Statement and has duly authorized and approved the execution and 
delivery of the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Bonds, the Disclosure Agreement and this 
Purchase Agreement and the performance by the Agency of the obligations on its part contained 
in Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Bonds, the Disclosure Agreement and this Purchase 
Agreement, and as of the date hereof, such authorizations and approvals are in full force and 
effect and have not been amended, modified or rescinded; 

(f) As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the time of the Closing, 
except as otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Agency to the best of its knowledge 
is not and will not be, in any material respect, in breach of or in default under any applicable 
constitutional provision, law or administrative rule or regulation of the State, of the United 
States, or any applicable judgment or decree or any trust agreement, loan agreement, bond, note, 
indenture, resolution, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the Agency is a party or 
is otherwise subject, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time 
or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute such a default or event of default under any 
such instrument; and the adoption of the Resolution and the execution and delivery of the Bonds, 
the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement and this Purchase Agreement, 
and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, will not conflict in any material way with or 
constitute a material breach of or material default under any law, administrative regulation, 
judgment, decree, loan agreement, note, indenture, resolution, agreement or other instrument to 
which the Agency is a party or is otherwise subject; and, except as described in the Official 
Statement, the Agency has not entered into any contract or arrangement of any kind which might 
give rise to any lien or encumbrance on the revenues and amounts pledged pursuant to, or subject 
to the lien of, the Indenture; 

(g) To the best of its knowledge all approvals, consents and orders of any 
governmental authority, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction which would constitute 
a condition precedent to adoption of the Resolution approving the Indenture, execution and 
delivery by the Agency of the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, and 
this Purchase Agreement, and the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds have been obtained or 
will be obtained prior to the Closing; 

(h) The Bonds when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with 
the Indenture will be validly issued, and will be valid and binding, obligations of the Agency; 

(i) To the best of its knowledge the terms and provisions of the Indenture 
comply in all respects with the requirements of the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, and the 
Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement and this Purchase Agreement, 
when properly executed and delivered by the respective parties thereto and hereto, will constitute 
the valid, legal and binding obligations of the Agency enforceable in accordance with their 
respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and general rules 
of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding at law or in 
equity); 



 -5-  
12830-0003\1740739 

(j) Except as disclosed in the Official Statement, there is no action, suit, 
proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, government 
agency, public board or body, pending against the Agency and notice of which has been served 
upon the Agency, or to the best knowledge of the officer of the Agency executing this Purchase 
Agreement threatened against the Agency, affecting the existence of the Agency or the titles of 
its members or officers, or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of 
the Bonds or the payment or collection of any amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the 
principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, or the pledge thereof, or in 
any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the Indenture, the 
Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement or this Purchase Agreement or the consummation 
of the transactions contemplated thereby and hereby, or contesting in any way the completeness 
or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement, or contesting the 
power or authority of the Agency to issue the Bonds, to adopt the Resolution approving the 
Indenture or to execute and deliver the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure 
Agreement, or this Purchase Agreement, nor is there any basis therefor, wherein an unfavorable 
decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the Agency’s performance under the 
Bonds, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, or this Purchase 
Agreement, or the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, 
the Disclosure Agreement, or this Purchase Agreement; 

(k) Any certificate signed by an authorized officer or official of the Agency 
and delivered to the Underwriter shall be deemed a representation of the Agency to the 
Underwriter as to the statements made therein; 

(l) Each of the Bonds shall be secured in the manner and to the extent set 
forth in the Indenture under which each such Bond is to be issued; 

(m) The Agency will furnish such information, execute such instruments and 
take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter as the Underwriter may reasonably 
request to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the “blue sky” or other securities laws and 
regulations of such states and other jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may 
designate; provided, however, that the Agency shall not be required to consent to service of 
process outside of California; 

(n) The Agency will apply the proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with the 
Indenture and all other applicable documents and as described in the Official Statement;  

(o) Except for the Statutory Pass-Through Amounts, there are no outstanding 
bonds, notes or other obligations of the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, or of the 
Agency, which are payable out of the funds and revenues pledged to the payment of the Bonds 
on a parity with or senior to the Bonds; 

(p) [The Agency has received a “finding of completion” issued by the State 
Department of Finance pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34179.7;] 



 -6-  
12830-0003\1740739 

(q) Except as disclosed in the Official Statement and based on a review of its 
previous undertakings, during the past five years neither the Agency nor the Prior Agency have 
defaulted under any prior continuing disclosure undertaking;  

(r) The Prior Agency and the Agency have been in compliance, and will 
comply, with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to maintain the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds; and 

(s) The Agency shall provide to the Underwriter, not later than seven (7) 
business days after the date of this Purchase Agreement, but in any event in sufficient time to 
accompany any confirmation sent by the Underwriter to a purchaser of the Bonds, not more than 
200 copies of the Official Statement to satisfy the Underwriter’s obligation under Rule 15c2-12 
with respect to the distribution of the Official Statement. 

Section 5. Representations of the Underwriter.  The Underwriter represents 
that it has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Purchase Agreement. 

Section 6. Covenants re Official Statement.  The Agency covenants with the 
Underwriter that so long as the Underwriter, or dealers, if any, are participating in the 
distribution of the Bonds which constitute the whole or a part of their unsold participations, if an 
event known to the Agency occurs affecting the Agency, or the transactions contemplated by the 
Indenture and the issuance of the Bonds, which could cause the Official Statement to contain an 
untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading, the Agency shall notify the Underwriter and if in the opinion of the Agency, the 
Underwriter or Bond Counsel, such event requires an amendment or supplement to the Official 
Statement, the Agency will amend or supplement the Official Statement in a form and in a 
manner jointly approved by the Agency and the Underwriter, and the Agency will bear the cost 
of making and printing such amendment or supplement to the Official Statement and distributing 
such amendment or supplement to Owners of the Bonds.  The obligations of the Agency under 
this Section 6 shall terminate on the earlier of (a) ninety (90) days from the “end of the 
underwriting period,” as defined in Rule 15c2-12, or (b) the time when the Official Statement is 
available to any person from a nationally recognized municipal securities information repository, 
but in no case less than twenty-five (25) days following the end of the underwriting period.  
Unless otherwise notified by the Underwriter in writing not later than thirty (30) days after the 
Closing Date, the Agency may assume that the end of the underwriting period is the Closing 
Date. 

Section 7. Conditions to Obligations of Underwriter.  The Underwriter has 
entered into this Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations and agreements of the 
Agency contained herein and upon the accuracy of the statements to be contained in the 
documents, opinions, and instruments to be delivered at the Closing.  Accordingly, the 
Underwriter’s obligation under this Purchase Agreement to purchase, accept delivery of, and pay 
for the Bonds on the Closing Date is subject to the performance by the Agency of its obligations 
hereunder at or prior to the Closing.  The following additional conditions precedent relate to the 
Closing, in connection with the Underwriter’s obligation to purchase the Bonds: 



 -7-  
12830-0003\1740739 

(a) At the time of the Closing, (i) the representations of the Agency contained 
herein to the best of its knowledge shall be true, complete and correct in all material respects; 
and (ii) the Indenture shall be in full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified 
or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to in writing by the Underwriter; 

(b) The Underwriter shall have the right to cancel its obligation to purchase 
the Bonds if between the date hereof and the Closing, (i) legislation shall have been enacted (or 
indenture or resolution passed) by or introduced or pending legislation amended in the Congress 
of the United States or the State or shall have been reported out of committee or be pending in 
committee, or a decision shall have been rendered by a court of the United States or the State or 
the Tax Court of the United States, or a ruling shall have been made or indenture shall have been 
proposed or made or any other release or announcement shall have been made by the Treasury 
Department of the United States or the Internal Revenue Service, or other federal or State 
authority, with respect to Federal or State taxation upon interest on obligations of the general 
character of the Bonds or with respect to the security pledged to pay debt service on the Bonds, 
that, in the Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, materially adversely affects the market for the 
Bonds, or the market price generally of obligations of the general character of the Bonds or the 
ability of the Underwriter to enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds, or (ii) there shall exist 
any event that, in the Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, either (A) makes untrue or incorrect in 
any material respect any statement or information in the Official Statement or (B) is not reflected 
in the Official Statement but should be reflected therein in order to make the statements and 
information therein not misleading in any material respect, or (iii) there shall have occurred any 
outbreak of hostilities or other local, national or international calamity or crisis, or a default with 
respect to the debt obligations of, or the institution of proceedings under the federal bankruptcy 
laws, the effect of which on the financial markets of the United States will be such as in the 
Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, makes it impracticable for the Underwriter to market the 
Bonds or enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds, or (iv) there shall be in force a general 
suspension of trading on the New York Stock Exchange, or minimum or maximum prices for 
trading shall have been fixed and be in force, or maximum ranges for prices of securities shall 
have been required and be in force on the New York Stock Exchange, whether by virtue of 
determination by that Exchange or by order of the Securities and Exchange Commission of the 
United States or any other governmental authority having jurisdiction that, in the Underwriter’s 
reasonable judgment, makes it impracticable for the Underwriter to market the Bonds or enforce 
contracts for the sale of the Bonds, or (v) a general banking moratorium shall have been declared 
by federal, New York or State authorities having jurisdiction and be in force that, in the 
Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, makes it impracticable for the Underwriter to market the 
Bonds or enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds, or (vi) legislation shall be enacted or be 
proposed or actively considered for enactment, or a decision by a court of the United States shall 
be rendered, or a ruling, regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States or other governmental agency having 
jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be made, to the effect that the Bonds or any obligations of 
the general character of the Bonds are not exempt from the registration, qualification or other 
requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and as then in effect, or of the Trust 
Indenture Act of 1939, as amended and as then in effect, or otherwise are or would be in 
violation of any provision of the federal securities laws, or (vii) the New York Stock Exchange 
or other national securities exchange, or any governmental authority, shall impose any material 
restrictions not now in force with respect to the Bonds or obligations of the general character of 



 -8-  
12830-0003\1740739 

the Bonds or securities generally, or materially increase any such restrictions now in force, 
including those relating to the extension of credit by, or the charge to the net capital requirements 
of, underwriters, or (viii) there shall have been any materially adverse change in the affairs of the 
Agency which in the Underwriter’s reasonable judgment materially adversely affects the market 
for the Bonds or enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds, or (ix) general political, economic or 
market conditions which, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, shall make it 
impracticable for the Underwriter to market the Bonds or enforce contracts for the sale of the 
Bonds; and 

(c) At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriter and the Agency shall receive 
the following: 

1) The unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and 
substance substantially in the form attached to the Official Statement, addressed to the Agency, 
dated the date of the Closing, together with a letter from such counsel, dated the date of the 
Closing and addressed to the Underwriter, to the effect that the foregoing opinion may be relied 
upon by the Underwriter to the same extent as if such opinion were addressed to it; 

2) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the 
Underwriter and the Agency, in form and substance acceptable to each of them, dated the date of 
Closing, to the following effect: 

(i) The Agency has duly authorized, executed and 
delivered the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement and the 
Purchase Agreement.  Assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 
other parties to such contracts, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure 
Agreement and the Purchase Agreement constitute the legal, valid and binding 
obligations of the Agency, enforceable against the Agency in accordance with their 
terms, except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting generally the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights and except as their enforcement may be subject to the 
application of equitable principles when equitable remedies are sought, by the 
limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State, and to the exercise of 
judicial discretion in appropriate cases; 

(ii) The statements and information contained or 
summarized in the Official Statement on the cover page and under the headings “THE 
BONDS,” “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS,” “CONCLUDING INFORMATION –  
Tax Exemption,” “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE,”  and 
“APPENDIX C – FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION” (but not including any 
statistical or financial information set forth under such headings, as to which no 
opinion need be expressed) insofar as such statements purport to summarize certain 
provisions of the Bonds, the Indenture, and the opinion of such Bond Counsel 
concerning certain federal and state tax matters relating to the Bonds, are accurate in 
all material respects; 



 -9-  
12830-0003\1740739 

(iii) The Bonds are exempt from registration under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended; and 

(iv) The Indenture is exempt from qualification under 
the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. 

3) The opinion of counsel to the Agency, addressed to the 
Underwriter and the Agency, in form and substance acceptable to each of them, dated the date of 
the Closing, to the following effect: 

(i) The Agency is a public entity, duly organized and 
validly existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and the laws of the State; 

(ii) The Resolution has been duly adopted by the Board 
of Directors of the Agency adopted at a regular meeting duly called and held in 
accordance pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a 
quorum of the members of Board of Directors of the Agency was continuously present, 
and the Resolution is in full force and effect and has not been modified, amended or 
rescinded; 

(iii) The Oversight Board Resolution has been duly 
approved by the Oversight Board adopted at a special meeting duly called and held in 
accordance pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a 
quorum of the members of the Oversight Board was continuously present, and the 
Oversight Board Resolution is in full force and effect and has not been modified, 
amended or rescinded; 

(iv) Except as described in the Official Statement, there 
is no litigation pending against the Agency and notice of which has been served on the 
Agency, or to the best of such counsel’s knowledge after due inquiry, threatened 
against the Agency, which:  (a) challenges the right or title of any member or officer of 
the Agency to hold his or her respective office or exercise or perform the powers and 
duties pertaining thereto; (b) challenges the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the 
Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, or the Purchase 
Agreement; (c) seeks to restrain or enjoin the issuance and sale of the Bonds, the 
adoption or effectiveness of the Resolution and Indenture, or the execution and delivery 
by the Agency of, or the performance by the Agency of its obligations under the Bonds, 
the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, or the Purchase 
Agreement; or (d) if determined adversely to the Agency or its interests, would have a 
material and adverse effect upon the financial condition, assets, properties or operations 
of the Agency; and 

(v) The execution and delivery by the Agency of, and 
the performance by the Agency of its obligations under, the Bonds, the Indenture, the 
Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement, do not in 
any material respect conflict with, violate or constitute a default under any provision of 



 -10-  
12830-0003\1740739 

any law, court order or decree or any contract, instrument or agreement to which the 
Agency is a party or by which it is bound. 

4) A certificate dated the date of the Closing, signed by the Executive 
Director or appropriate officer of the Agency, to the effect that to the best of such officer’s 
knowledge:  (i) the representations and covenants of the Agency contained herein are true and 
correct in all material respects on and as of the date of the Closing with the same effect as if 
made on the Closing Date; (ii) the Agency has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all 
of the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the Closing; (iii) no event 
affecting the Agency has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which either makes 
untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the Closing Date any statement or information 
contained in the Official Statement or is not reflected in the Official Statement but should be 
reflected therein in order to make the statements and information therein not misleading in any 
material respect; and (iv) the Indenture remains in full force and effect and has not been amended 
in any respect, except as approved in writing by the Underwriter, since the date of the Indenture; 

5) A certificate of the Trustee dated the date of the Closing, to the 
effect that:  (i) the Trustee is organized and existing as a national banking association under and 
by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, having full power and being qualified and 
duly authorized to perform the duties and obligations of the Trustee and Escrow Agent under and 
pursuant to, respectively, the Indenture and the Escrow Agreement (together, the “Trustee 
Documents”); (ii) the Trustee has agreed to perform the duties and obligations of the Trustee and 
Escrow Agent as set forth in, respectively, the Indenture and the Escrow Agreement; (iii) to the 
best of its knowledge, compliance with the provisions on the Trustee’s part contained in the 
Trustee Documents will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under the Articles of 
Incorporation or Bylaws of the Trustee or any material law, administrative regulation, judgment, 
decree, loan agreement, indenture, resolution, bond, note, agreement or other instrument to 
which the Trustee is a party or is otherwise subject, as a result of which the Trustee’s ability to 
perform its obligations under the Trustee Documents would be impaired, nor will any such 
compliance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or 
encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Indenture under the terms of any such law, administrative regulation, judgment, 
decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, agreement or other instrument, except as provided 
by the Trustee Documents; and (iv) to the best of the knowledge of the Trustee, the Trustee has 
not been served in any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, 
before or by any court, governmental agency, public board or body, pending nor is any such 
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation threatened against the Trustee, affecting the 
existence of the Trustee, or the titles of its officers to their respective offices or seeking to 
prohibit, restrain or enjoin the delivery of the Bonds issued under the Indenture or the collection 
of revenues pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Bonds issued under the Indenture, or the pledge thereof, or in any way contesting the powers of 
the Trustee or its authority to enter into or perform its obligations under the Trustee Documents, 
wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would materially adversely affect the validity 
or enforceability of the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, or the Disclosure Agreement; 

6) An opinion of counsel to the Trustee dated the Closing Date and 
addressed to the Agency and the Underwriter, in form and substance satisfactory to the 



 -11-  
12830-0003\1740739 

Underwriter, to the effect that: (i) the Trustee has been duly organized and is validly existing and 
in good standing as a national banking association under the laws of the United States of 
America with full corporate power to undertake the trust of the Indenture and the Escrow 
Agreement; (ii) the Trustee has duly authorized, executed and delivered the Trustee Documents, 
and by all proper corporate action has authorized the acceptance of the duties and obligations of 
the Trustee under the Trustee Documents and to authorize in its capacity as trustee thereunder 
the authentication and delivery of the Bonds; (iii) assuming due authorization, execution and 
delivery by the City, the Trustee Documents are valid, legal and binding agreements of the 
Trustee, enforceable in accordance with their terms, except as such enforcement may be limited 
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of 
creditors’ rights in general and by general equity principles (regardless of whether such 
enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law); (iv) exclusive of federal or state 
securities laws and regulations, to the best of such counsel’s knowledge after reasonable inquiry 
and investigation, other than routine filings required to be made with governmental agencies in 
order to preserve the Trustee’s authority to perform a trust business (all of which routine filings 
such counsel believes, after reasonable inquiry and investigation, to have been made), no 
consent, approval, authorization or other action by any governmental or regulatory authority 
having jurisdiction over the Trustee is or will be required for the execution and delivery by the 
Trustee of the Trustee Documents or the authentication and delivery of the Bonds; (v) to the best 
of such counsel’s knowledge, the execution and delivery by the Trustee of the Trustee 
Documents and the Bonds, and compliance with the terms thereof will not, in any material 
respect, conflict with, or result in a violation or breach of, or constitute a default under, any loan 
agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution or any other agreement or instrument to which the 
Trustee is a party or by which it is bound, or any law or any rule, regulation, order or decree of 
any court or governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the Trustee or any of its 
activities or properties, or (except with respect to the lien of the Indenture) result in the creation 
or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature 
whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the Trustee; and (vi) to the best of such 
counsel’s knowledge, there is no litigation pending or threatened against or affecting the Trustee 
to restrain or enjoin the Trustee’s participation in, or in any way contesting the powers of the 
Trustee with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Bonds and the Trustee Documents; 

7) Two (2) copies of this Purchase Agreement duly executed and 
delivered by the parties thereto; 

8) Two (2) copies of the Official Statement, executed on behalf of the 
Agency by the Executive Director of the Agency; 

9) One (1) certified copy of the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the 
Disclosure Agreement, and all resolutions of the Agency and the Oversight Board relating to the 
issuance of the Bonds (including without limitation the Resolution and the Oversight Board 
Resolution); 

10) A letter, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Agency, 
of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, as disclosure counsel (“Disclosure 
Counsel”), to the effect that based upon its participation in the preparation of the Official 
Statement and without having undertaken to determine independently the accuracy or 



 -12-  
12830-0003\1740739 

completeness of the statements in the Official Statement such Counsel has no reason to believe 
that, as of the date of Closing, the Official Statement (except for under the captions “”THE 
BONDS – Book-Entry System,” “BOND INSURANCE,” “CONCLUDING INFORMATION – 
Tax Exemption” and in Appendices A, B, C, D, F, G, and H to the Official Statement, financial, 
engineering, and statistical data included in the Official Statement; forecasts, projections, 
estimates, assumptions and expressions of opinions, information about the book-entry only 
system and DTC; and statements relating to the treatment of the Bonds, or the interest, discount 
or premium related thereto for tax purposes under the law of any jurisdiction; as to which no 
view need be expressed) contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state any 
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading; 

11) A defeasance opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, to 
the effect that the lien of the 2003 Bonds with respect to the Tax Revenues has been discharged; 

12) An opinion from Underwriter’s Counsel;  

13) A certificate of Urban Futures, Inc., Orange, California (“Urban 
Futures”), in form and substance satisfactory to the Agency and the Underwriter, dated the 
Closing Date, to the effect that:  

(i) Urban Futures is duly authorized to execute and deliver the 
Disclosure Agreement and to perform as Dissemination Agent thereunder, and 
has duly executed and delivered the Disclosure Agreement; and 

(ii) Urban Futures’ execution and delivery of the Disclosure 
Agreement and performance as Dissemination Agent thereunder do not and will 
not conflict in any way with any law, judgment, agreement or other instrument to 
which the Financial Advisor is a party or is subject. 

(iii) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, Urban 
Futures, as financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”), has provided the Issuer 
certain projections and estimates (the “Projections”) and a Financial  Advisor 
Report (the “Financial Advisor’s Report”) with respect to the taxable valuation 
and Pledged Tax Revenues with respect to the Project Area. The Financial 
Advisor has obtained such information from the County of Imperial and other 
sources as the Financial Advisor deemed necessary and relevant to generate the 
Financial Advisor’s Report and to express an informed opinion with respect to the 
matters discussed in such Financial Advisor’s Report; 

(iv) the Financial Advisor has reviewed the Official Statement 
and, in particular, information presented in the tables set forth in the Official 
Statement under the captions “PROJECT AREA,” “PLEDGED TAX 
REVENUES” and in “APPENDIX G – FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT” 
and as of the date of the Official Statement and as of the Closing Date, such 
information and the Financial Advisor’s Report fairly and accurately reflect the 
Projections and, to the best knowledge of the Financial Advisor, do not contain 



 -13-  
12830-0003\1740739 

any untrue or misleading statement of a material fact and do not fail to state a 
material fact necessary in order to make the information contained therein, not 
misleading; 

(v) Nothing has come to the attention of the Financial Advisor 
which would cause the Financial Advisor to believe that the statements and 
information contained in the Official Statement that are attributable to the 
Financial Advisor, including but not limited information under the captions 
“PROJECT AREA,” “PLEDGED TAX REVENUES” and “APPENDIX G – 
FINANCIAL ADVISOR’S REPORT” as of the date of the Official Statement, are 
inaccurate in any material respect; and no event or act known to the Financial 
Advisor has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which would make 
such statements and information inaccurate or misleading;  

(vi) the Financial Advisor affirms its consent to the inclusion of 
such Projections in the Official Statement and the reproduction of the Financial 
Advisor’s Report in the appendices of the Official Statement; and 

14) A rating letter from Standard & Poor’s Rating Services confirming 
the rating on the Bonds set forth in the Official Statement. 

15) [A municipal bond insurance policy insuring the payment of 
principal and interest with respect to the  Bonds (the “Policy”), issued by ___ (the 
“Bond Insurer”); 

16) An opinion of counsel to the Bond Insurer, dated the Closing Date, 
addressed to the Agency, the Trustee and the Underwriter, regarding the Bond 
Insurer’s valid existence, power and authority, the Bond Insurer’s due 
authorization and issuance of the Policy and the Surety Bonds and the 
enforceability of the Policy and the Surety Bonds against the Bond Insurer; 

17)  A certificate of the Bond Insurer or an opinion of counsel to the 
Bond Insurer, dated the Closing Date, regarding the accuracy of the information 
in the Official Statement describing the Bond Insurer and the Policy and the 
Surety Bonds; 

18) The Reserve Policy issued by the Bond Insuer for credit to the 
Reserve Account with respect to the Bonds;] 

19) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, 
instruments and other documents as the Underwriter, Bond Counsel or Disclosure Counsel may 
reasonably request to evidence compliance by the Agency with this Purchase Agreement, legal 
requirements, and the performance or satisfaction by the Agency at or prior to such time of all 
agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the Agency. 

The Agency will furnish the Underwriter with such conformed copies of such 
opinions, certificates, letters and documents as the Underwriter may reasonably request.  If the 
Agency is unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriter contained in this 



 -14-  
12830-0003\1740739 

Purchase Agreement, or if the obligations of the Underwriter shall be terminated for any reason 
permitted by this Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall terminate and none of the 
Underwriter, the Agency shall have any further obligations hereunder, except as provided in 
Sections 8 and 11 hereof.  However, the Underwriter may in its discretion waive one or more of 
the conditions imposed by this Purchase Agreement for the protection of the Underwriter and 
proceed with the related Closing. 

If this Purchase Agreement shall be terminated pursuant to this Section, including 
but not limited to paragraphs (b) and (c), or if the purchase provided for herein is not 
consummated because any condition to the Underwriter’s obligation hereunder is not satisfied or 
because of any refusal, inability or failure on the part of the Agency to comply with any of the 
terms or to fulfill any of the conditions of this Purchase Agreement, or if for any reason the 
Agency shall be unable to perform all of their respective obligations under this Purchase 
Agreement, the Agency shall not be liable to the Underwriter for damages on account of loss of 
anticipated profits arising out of the transactions covered by this Purchase Agreement. 

Section 8. Expenses. 

The Underwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Agency shall pay 
from its available funds or from the proceeds of the Bonds, certain expenses set forth in this 
Section, including but not limited to:  (i) all expenses in connection with the preparation, 
distribution and delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and any 
amendment or supplement thereto, (ii) all expenses in connection with the printing, issuance and 
delivery of the Bonds, (iii) the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel 
in connection with the Bonds, (iv) the fees and disbursements of counsel to the Agency in 
connection with the Bonds, (v) the disbursements of the Agency in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds, (vi) the fees and disbursements of the Trustee, (vii) rating agency fees, and (viii) 
fees of the Financial Advisor. 

The Underwriter shall pay (i) fees, if any, payable to the California Debt and 
Investment Advisory Commission in connection with the issuance of the Bonds; (ii) the cost of 
preparation of the Blue Sky and Legal Investment Memoranda and all Blue Sky filing fees in 
connection with the public offering of the Bonds; (iii) all advertising expenses in connection with 
the public offering of the Bonds; and (iv) all other expenses incurred by it in connection with its 
public offering and distribution of the Bonds. 

Section 9. Notice.  Any notice or other communication to be given to the 
Agency under this Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing at the 
address set forth above.  Any such notice or communication to be given to the Underwriter may 
be given by delivering the same in writing to: 

Jeffries LLC 
One Montgomery Street, 24th Floor 
San Francisco, CA  94104 
Attention:  Matthew Challis, Managing Director 



 -15-  
12830-0003\1740739 

Section 10. Governing Law.  This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by 
the laws of the State of California.  This Purchase Agreement may be executed by the parties 
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an 
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Section 11. Parties in Interest.  This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the 
benefit of the signatories hereto (including the successors or assigns of the Underwriter) and no 
other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof except as provided in 
Section 11 hereof.  All representations in this Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and in 
full force and effect, regardless of (a) delivery of and payment for any of the Bonds and (b) any 
termination of this Purchase Agreement. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
JEFFRIES LLC 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 

    Matthew Challis 
 Managing Director 

 
 
Accepted as of the date first stated above: 
 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
 
By __________________________  

Executive Director 
 
Time of Execution: _________ 
 



 A-1  
12830-0003\1740739 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

$[principal amount] 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
(HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA) 

TAX ALLOCATION REFUNDING BONDS 
SERIES 2015 

 
 

 
Maturity Date 

(October 1) 
 

Principal Amount 
Interest 

Rate 
 

Yield 
 

Price 
2016     
2017     
2018     
2019     
2020     
2021     
2022     
2023     
2024     
2025     
2026     
2027     
2028     
2029     
2030     
2031     
2032     
2033     
2034     
2035     
2036     

Total: $[principal 
amount] 

   

 
 
 
C Priced to par call on October 1, 20__. 



 1  
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”), dated as of July 1, 2015 is 
executed and delivered by the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor 
Agency”) and Urban Futures, Inc., as dissemination agent (the “Dissemination Agent”) in connection with 
the issuance by the Successor Agency of its $[principal amount] aggregate principal amount of (Hughson 
Redevelopment Project Area) Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are 
being issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Indenture”), by and between 
the Successor Agency and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee (the “Trustee”).  The Successor Agency 
and the Dissemination Agent covenant and agree as follows: 

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is 
being executed and delivered by the Successor Agency and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of the 
holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in 
complying with the Rule (as defined below). 

Section 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture, which 
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement, unless otherwise defined in this Section, 
the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Successor Agency 
pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean Urban Futures, Inc., or any successor Dissemination 
Agent designated in writing by the Successor Agency and which has filed with the Successor Agency a 
written acceptance of such designation. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Agreement. 

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Obligated Person” shall mean any person, including an issuer of municipal securities, who 
is either generally or through an enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other 
arrangement to support payment of all, or part of the obligations on the Bonds (other than providers of 
municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities). 

“Official Statement” shall mean the final Official Statement, dated ___, 2015, relating to 
the Bonds. 

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean the original underwriter of the Bonds required to 
comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

Section 3. Provisions of Annual Reports. 

(a) The Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later 
than nine (9) months after the end of the Successor Agency’s Fiscal Year (which Fiscal Year currently 
commences on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year), commencing March 31, 2016 with the 



 2  
 

report for the 2014-15 fiscal year, provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format accompanied by 
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB, an Annual Report which is consistent with the 
requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single 
document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information 
as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that the postaudit of the financial 
transactions and records of the Successor Agency for the Fiscal Year may be submitted separately from the 
balance of the Annual Report, and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if 
not available by that date.  If the Successor Agency’s fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such 
change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(b). 

(b) Not later than fifteen (15) business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) 
above for providing the Annual Report to the MSRB, the Successor Agency shall provide the Annual 
Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Successor Agency).  If by such date, the 
Dissemination Agent has not received a copy of the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent shall contact 
the Successor Agency to determine if the Successor Agency is in compliance with the first sentence of this 
subsection (b).  The Successor Agency shall provide a written certification with each Annual Report 
furnished to the Dissemination Agent to the effect that such Annual Report constitutes the Annual Report 
required to be furnished by it hereunder.   

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that an Annual Report has been 
provided to the MSRB by the date required in subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall send a notice 
to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, or in such other form as prescribed by, or 
acceptable to, the MSRB. 

(d) The Dissemination Agent (if other than the Successor Agency) shall, if and to the 
extent, the Successor Agency has provided an Annual Report in final form to the Dissemination Agent for 
dissemination, file a report with the Successor Agency certifying that the Annual Report has been provided 
to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, and stating the date it was provided. 

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports.  The Successor Agency’s Annual Report shall 
contain or incorporate by reference the following: 

(a) A postaudit of the financial transactions and records of the Successor Agency for 
the Fiscal Year to be made by an Independent Certified Public Accountant appointed by the Successor 
Agency prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to 
governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  If the 
Successor Agency’s postaudit is not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant 
to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain an unaudited statement of financial transactions and 
records of the Successor Agency in a format required by Section 34177(n) of Dissolution Act, and the 
postaudit shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available. 

(b) To the extent not contained in the postaudit filed pursuant to the preceding 
subsection (a) by the date required by Section 3 hereof, other financial information and operating data 
relating to the Project Areas, contained in the Official Statement for the Bonds as follows: 

1) An update to the tabular information in the table entitled “Top Ten 
Taxpayers” under the caption “PROJECT AREAS – Largest Taxpayers” for the most recent Fiscal Year for 
which information is available; and 



 3  
 

2) An update to the tabular information in the tables entitled “Assessed 
Valuation and Incremental Revenues” under the caption “PLEDGED REVENUES – Schedule of Historical 
Incremental Revenues” including the most recent Fiscal Year for which information is available. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Successor Agency or related public entities, 
which have been available to the public on the MSRB’s internet web site or filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  The Successor Agency shall clearly identify each such other document so included 
by reference. 

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Successor Agency shall give, or 
cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Bonds, 
which notice shall be given in a timely manner, not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence 
of such Listed Event: 

1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

2) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue 
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with 
respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events affecting 
the tax status of the security; 

7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material; 

8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9) Defeasances; 

10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
securities, if material; 

11) Rating changes;  

12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated 
Person; 

13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an 
Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Obligated Person, other than in the 
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if 
material; and 

14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of 
a trustee, if material. 



 4  
 

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall, within one (1) business day after obtaining 
knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events listed in Section 5(a) (1), (3), (4), (5), (6), (9), (11) or 
(12), inform the Successor Agency of the occurrence of such event.  As soon as reasonably practicable after 
obtaining knowledge of the occurrence of such event, the Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the 
Dissemination Agent to, file in a timely manner, not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence 
of any such event, a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB, in an electronic format accompanied by 
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.   

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall, within one (1) business day after obtaining 
knowledge of the occurrence of any of any of the events listed in Section 5(a) (2), (7), (8), (10), (13) or 
(14), inform the Successor Agency of the occurrence of such event and request that the Successor Agency 
promptly notify the Dissemination Agent in writing whether or not to report the event pursuant to 
subsection (d). 

(d) Whenever the Successor Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of any event 
specified in Section 5(a) (2), (7), (8), (10), (13) or (14), the Successor Agency shall as soon as possible, in 
order to meet the ten (10) business day deadline to file notices required under the Rule and pursuant to the 
following sentence, determine if such event would be material under applicable Federal securities law.  If 
the Successor Agency determines that knowledge of the occurrence of such event would be material under 
applicable Federal securities law, the Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, 
file in a timely manner, not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of any such event, a 
notice of such occurrence with the MSRB, in an electronic format accompanied by identifying information 
as prescribed by the MSRB.   

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Successor Agency’s 
obligations under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or 
payment in full of all the Bonds.  If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the 
Successor Agency shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section 5(b). 

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. 

(a) The Successor Agency hereby appoints and engages Urban Futures, Inc. as the 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  The 
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared 
by the Successor Agency pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement.  The Successor Agency may replace the 
Dissemination Agent with or without cause.  If at the time there is no designated Dissemination Agent 
appointed by the Successor Agency, the Successor Agency shall be the Dissemination Agent and undertake 
or assume its obligations hereunder. 

Any company succeeding to all or substantially all of the Dissemination Agent’s business 
shall be the successor to the Dissemination Agent hereunder without the execution or filing of any paper or 
any further act.  The Dissemination Agent may resign its duties hereunder by giving 30-days written notice 
to the Successor Agency and the Trustee. 

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall be paid compensation by the Successor Agency for 
its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees agreed to between the Dissemination 
Agent and the Successor Agency from time to time and for all expenses, legal fees and advances made or 
incurred by the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder.  The Dissemination Agent 
shall have no duty or obligation to review any information provided to it by the Successor Agency 
hereunder and shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for the Successor Agency, holders 



 5  
 

or beneficial owners or any other party.  The Dissemination Agent may rely and shall be protected in acting 
or refraining from acting upon any direction from the Successor Agency or an opinion of nationally 
recognized bond counsel. 

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Agreement, the Successor Agency may amend this Disclosure Agreement), and any provision of 
this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it 
may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of an Obligated Person with respect 
to the Bonds, or type of business conducted; 

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time 
of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the 
Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and 

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds 
in the manner provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of holders of the 
Bonds, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests 
of the holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds. 

If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report is 
amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the first annual financial information filed pursuant hereto 
containing the amended operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons 
for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being 
provided.  For purposes of this paragraph, “impact” has the meaning as that word is used in the letter from 
the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission to the National Association of Bond Lawyers dated 
June 23, 1995. 

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principles to be 
followed in preparing the postaudit, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is 
made shall present a comparison between the postaudit or information prepared on the basis of the new 
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.  The comparison 
shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the 
change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information, in order to provide 
information to investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the Successor Agency to meet its 
obligations.  To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative.  A notice of the change 
in the accounting principles shall be sent to the MSRB in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section 5(b). 

No amendment to this Agreement which modifies the duties or rights of the Dissemination 
Agent shall be made without the prior written consent of the Dissemination Agent. 

Section 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be 
deemed to prevent the Successor Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including 
any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that 
which is required by this Disclosure Agreement.  If the Successor Agency chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is 



 6  
 

specifically required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Successor Agency shall have no obligation under 
this Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event. 

Section 10. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Successor Agency or the 
Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, any Participating 
Underwriter or any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Successor 
Agency or the Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement.  A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of 
Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of any 
failure of the Successor Agency or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this Disclosure Agreement 
shall be an action to compel performance. 

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The 
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, 
and the Successor Agency agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, 
employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of 
or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses 
(including attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the 
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct.  The Dissemination Agent shall be paid 
compensation by the Successor Agency for its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule 
of fees as amended from time to time and all expenses, legal fees and advances made or incurred by the 
Dissemination Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder.  The Dissemination Agent shall have no 
duty or obligation to review any information provided to it hereunder and shall not be deemed to be acting 
in any fiduciary capacity for the Successor Agency, the Owners, or any other party.  The Dissemination 
Agent may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any direction from the 
Successor Agency or an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel.  The obligations of the Successor 
Agency under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of 
the Bonds.  No person shall have any right to commence any action against the Dissemination Agent 
seeking any remedy other than to compel specific performance of this Agreement.  The Dissemination 
Agent shall not be liable under any circumstances for monetary damages to any person for any breach of 
this Agreement. 

Section 12. Notices.  Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties to 
this Disclosure Agreement may be given as follows: 

To the Successor Agency:       Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
Attention: Executive Director 
7018 Pine Street 
Hughson, California 95326 
Telephone:  (209) 883-4054 
Email:  rmendez@hughson.org 
 

To the Dissemination Agent:   Urban Futures, Inc.  
Attention: Dissemination Agent 
3111 North Tustin Avenue, Suite 230 
Orange, California 92865 
Telephone: (714) 283-9334 
Fax: (714) 283-5465 

 



 7  
 

Section 13. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit 
of the Successor Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and holders and 
beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Section 14. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Disclosure Agreement as 
of the date first written above. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE HUGHSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
  

Executive Director 
 
 
URBAN FUTURES, INC. 
as Dissemination Agent 
 
 
  

Authorized Officer 
 
 
  



A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE TO MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING 
BOARD OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

 

Name of Issuer:    Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 

Name of Bond Issue: $[principal amount] initial principal amount 
Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
(Hughson Redevelopment Project Area) 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 
Series 2015 

 
Date of Issuance: July ____, 2015 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment 
Agency (the “Successor Agency”) has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named 
Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2015, by and between the 
Successor Agency and Urban Futures, Inc., as dissemination agent.  The Successor Agency anticipates 
that the Annual Report will be filed by __________________. 

Date:   , 20__   Urban Futures, Inc. 
as Dissemination Agent 
 
 
 
By:  
Title:  
 

 
 
cc:  Executive Director, Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
  
 
 
 



   
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 

 

by and between 

 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

and 

 

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A., 
as Trustee and Escrow Agent 

 

 

Dated as of July 1, 2015 

 

 

Relating to the Defeasance and Redemption of 

Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

Series 2006 
(Hughson Redevelopment Project) 

 
scheduled to mature on October 1, 2016 and thereafter through October 1, 2036 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

   
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

Section 1. Definitions............................................................................................................. 2 
Section 2. Escrow Agent’s Acceptance of Duties ................................................................. 3 
Section 3. Incorporation of Indenture .................................................................................... 3 
Section 4. 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund; Deposits ..................................................................... 3 
Section 5. Maintenance of 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund ........................................................... 3 
Section 6. Payment of Refunding Requirements ................................................................... 4 
Section 7. Verification ........................................................................................................... 4 
Section 8. Compliance with Indenture ................................................................................... 4 
Section 9. Tax Covenant ........................................................................................................ 4 
Section 10. Notices .................................................................................................................. 4 
Section 11. Discharge of Indenture Concurrently with the Defeasance of 

Refunded Bonds .................................................................................................... 4 
Section 12. Nature of Lien ....................................................................................................... 5 
Section 13. Amendments ......................................................................................................... 5 
Section 14. Compensation of Escrow Agent ........................................................................... 5 
Section 15. Resignation or Removal of Escrow Agent; Appointment of 

Successor............................................................................................................... 6 
Section 16. Limitation of Powers and Duties .......................................................................... 7 
Section 17. Indemnification ..................................................................................................... 7 
Section 18. Limitation of Liability........................................................................................... 7 
Section 19. Termination ........................................................................................................... 8 
Section 20. Governing Law ..................................................................................................... 8 
Section 21. Severability ........................................................................................................... 8 
Section 22. Counterparts .......................................................................................................... 1 
 
SCHEDULE A REFUNDING REQUIREMENTS  
APPENDIX A FORM OF DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION NOTICE 



 

   

12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

ESCROW AGREEMENT 

This Escrow Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into and dated as of July 
1, 2015, by and between, the Successor Agency to the Hughson Redevelopment Agency (the 
“Agency”), a public body, corporate and politic, as successor to the Hughson Redevelopment 
Agency (the “Prior Agency”), and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., a national banking association duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, as trustee (as hereinafter 
defined) and escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”). 

R E C I T A L S: 

A. The Prior Agency was a redevelopment agency, a public body, corporate and 
politic, duly created, established and authorized to transact business and exercise its powers, all 
under and pursuant to the Community Redevelopment Law (Part 1 of Division 24 (commencing 
with Section 33000) of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California) (the “Law”), and 
the powers of the Prior Agency included the power to issue bonds for any of its corporate 
purposes. 

B. Redevelopment Plan for the Hughson Redevelopment Project (the “Project Area” 
or the “Project”) was duly approved and adopted by Ordinance No. 02-08 adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Hughson (the “City Council”) on July 8, 2002 and was amended by 
Ordinance No. 07-01 adopted by the City Council on May 14, 2007, in compliance with all 
requirements of the Law (as in effect on the respective dates thereof). 

C. Pursuant to an Indenture (the “2006 Indenture”) dated as of February 1, 2006, by 
and between the Prior Agency and Union Bank of California, N.A., now known as MUFG Union 
Bank, N.A. (the “Trustee”), the Prior Agency has previously issued its Tax Allocation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2006 (Hughson Redevelopment Project) (the “Series 2006 Bonds”). 

D. Pursuant to Parts 1.8 (commencing with Section 34161) and 1.85 (commencing 
with Section 34170) of Division 24 of the Health and Safety Code (as heretofore amended, the 
“Dissolution Act”), enacted by AB X1 26 in June 2011, and the California Supreme Court’s 
decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 4th 
231 (2011), the Prior Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012. 

E. Pursuant to the Dissolution Act, the Agency was constituted as a separate public 
entity from the City, and the powers, assets and obligations of the Prior Agency were transferred 
on February 1, 2012 to the Agency. 

F. Section 34177.5(a)(1) of the Dissolution Act specifically authorizes the issuance 
of refunding bonds by the Agency to refund the bonds or other indebtedness of the Prior Agency 
to provide savings to the Agency, provided that (A) the total interest cost to maturity on the 
refunding bonds plus the principal amount of the refunding bonds shall not exceed the total 
remaining interest cost to maturity on the bonds to be refunded plus the remaining principal of 
the bonds to be refunded, and (B) the principal amount of the refunding bonds shall not exceed 
the amount required to defease the refunded bonds, to establish customary debt service reserves, 
and to pay related costs of issuance. 



 

 2  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

G. The Agency, pursuant to Resolution No. 2015-01 adopted by its Board of 
Directors on March 23, 2015, determined to issue its Successor Agency to the Hughson 
Redevelopment Agency, Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Hughson 
Redevelopment Project), in the aggregate principal amount of $__________ (the “Series 2015 
Bonds”), for the purpose of refunding the Series 2006 Bonds in order to reduce debt service and 
provide savings to the Successor Agency, to fund a reserve subaccount, and to pay related costs 
of issuance. 

H. The 2006 Indenture provides that all of the remaining outstanding Series 2006 
Bonds (the “Refunded Bonds”) may be optionally redeemed from any available source of funds 
on any date on or after October 1, 2015, at a redemption price equal to 100 percent of the 
principal amount thereof, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, 
without premium. 

I. Pursuant to the 2006 Indenture, if there shall have been deposited with the Escrow 
Agent, in escrow, moneys sufficient to pay the principal, interest and redemption premium, if 
any, with respect to the Refunded Bonds on the date fixed for redemption, then with respect to 
the Refunded Bonds, the lien and pledge of the 2006 Indenture will thereupon cease, terminate 
and become void and be discharged and satisfied and, correspondingly, the Agency’s obligations 
with respect to the Owners of the Refunded Bonds shall be discharged and satisfied.  

J. In order to provide for the proper and timely application of the moneys to be 
deposited in escrow for the payment of the Refunded Bonds, it is necessary to enter into this 
Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants 
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, capitalized 
terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the introductory 
paragraph and the Recitals hereof.  In addition, as used herein, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings: 

“Bond Counsel” means Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, or 
such other attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized experience in the issuance of 
obligations the interest on which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes under the Code selected by the Agency. 

“Closing Date” means July __, 2015, the date on which the Series 2015 Bonds are being 
issued. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“2006 Indenture” means the 2006 Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006, by and 
between the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, and Union Bank of California, N.A., 
now known as MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as trustee. 



 

 3  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

“2006 Bonds Escrow Fund” means the fund by that name established by the Escrow 
Agent pursuant to Section 4, into which moneys shall be deposited for the payment of the 
Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Date. 

“Redemption Date” means October 1, 2015. 

“Refunded Bonds” means all of the remaining outstanding Series 2006 Bonds, scheduled 
to mature on October 1, 2016 and thereafter through October 1, 2036. 

“Refunding Requirement” means an amount sufficient to pay the principal, interest and 
the redemption premium (if any) with respect to the Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Date as 
set forth in Schedule A. 

Section 2. Escrow Agent’s Acceptance of Duties.  The Escrow Agent hereby accepts 
the duties and obligations expressly provided in this Agreement and agrees that the irrevocable 
instructions to the Escrow Agent contained herein are in a form satisfactory to it.   

Section 3. Incorporation of Indenture.  The applicable and necessary provisions of 
the 2006 Indenture are incorporated herein by reference.  Reference herein to, or citation herein 
of, any provisions of the 2006 Indenture shall be deemed to incorporate the same as a part hereof 
in the same manner and with the same effect as if the same were fully set forth herein. 

Section 4. 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund; Deposits.  There is hereby created and 
established with the Escrow Agent a special and irrevocable fund designated the “2006 Bonds 
Escrow Fund,” to be held by the Escrow Agent separate and apart from all other funds of the 
Agency or the Escrow Agent and used only for the purposes and in the manner provided in this 
Agreement.  On the Closing Date, the Agency shall cause to be transferred to the Escrow Agent 
a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds, for deposit in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, 
in the amount of $____________.  [The Agency hereby instructs the Escrow Agent, as Trustee 
for the 2006 Bonds, to transfer on the same day: (a) $____________ from the Reserve Account 
of the Special Fund established under the 2006 Indenture, and (b) $____________ from the 
remaining accounts of the Special Fund established under the 2006 Indenture to the 2006 Bonds 
Escrow Fund.  The sum of the deposits and transfers pursuant to this Section is $____________, 
and such sum is equal to the Refunding Requirement.]   

Section 5. Maintenance of 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund.  The Escrow Agent, upon 
receipt of the moneys described in Section 4, shall deposit the entire amount (being 
$____________) in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund to hold [uninvested. ] Monies remaining in the 
2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, if any, after effecting the transfer and redemption payment pursuant to 
Section 6 shall be applied as set forth in Section 19 of this Agreement. 

The Escrow Agent shall furnish the Agency periodic cash transaction statements 
which include detail for all investment transactions effected by the Escrow Agent or brokers 
selected by the Agency. Upon the Agency’s election, such statements will be delivered via the 
Escrow Agent’s online service and upon electing such service, paper statements will be provided 
only upon request. The Agency waives the right to receive brokerage confirmations of security 
transactions effected by the Escrow Agent as they occur, to the extent permitted by law. The 
Agency further understands that trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the 



 

 4  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

Escrow Agent will be available upon request and at no additional cost and other trade 
confirmations may be obtained from the applicable broker.” 

Section 6. Payment of Refunding Requirements.  On the Redemption Date, the 
Escrow Agent shall disburse from the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund an amount sufficient to pay the 
Refunding Requirement and apply such moneys to redeem the Refunded Bonds for the equal and 
ratable benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds.  

Section 7. Verification.  The Agency has caused schedules to be prepared relating to 
the sufficiency of the moneys deposited in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund to pay the Refunding 
Requirement.  The Agency shall furnish the Escrow Agent with the report of Grant Thornton, 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in 
such schedules. 

Section 8. Compliance with 2006 Indenture.  Pursuant to Section 10.1 of the 2006 
Indenture, the Agency has delivered a Written Request of the Agency (as defined in the 2006 
Indenture), which is dated, and shall not be effective until, the Closing Date.  In accordance with 
such Written Request of the Agency, the Escrow Agent hereby agrees that the Escrow Agent will 
take all the actions required to be taken by it hereunder, including the timely transfer of moneys 
for the payment of principal, interest and redemption premium (if any) with respect to the 
Refunded Bonds, in order to effectuate this Agreement.  The liability of the Escrow Agent for the 
payment of the Refunding Requirement, pursuant to this Section and under the 2006 Indenture, 
shall be limited to the application, in accordance with this Agreement, of moneys in the 2006 
Bonds Escrow Fund (including interest earnings thereon, if any) available for the purposes of 
and in accordance with this Agreement. 

Section 9. Tax Covenant.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
the Agency hereby covenants that no part of the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds or of the 
moneys or funds held by the Escrow Agent hereunder shall be used, and that the Agency shall 
not direct the Escrow Agent to use any of such moneys or funds at any time, directly or 
indirectly, in a manner that would cause any of the Series 2015 Bonds to be an “arbitrage bond” 
under Section 148 of the Code and the regulations of the Treasury Department thereunder 
proposed or in effect at the time of such use and applicable to obligations issued on the date of 
execution and delivery of the Series 2015 Bonds.  Neither the Agency nor the Escrow Agent 
shall transfer or otherwise dispose of the moneys held in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund except as 
set forth in this Agreement. 

Section 10. Notices.  As soon as practicable upon the Escrow Agent’s receipt of 
moneys for deposit in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund pursuant to Section 4 (but in no event later 
than 30 days before the Redemption Date), the Escrow Agent shall send a notice of defeasance 
and redemption, substantially in form set forth in Appendix A, to the registered owners of the 
Refunded Bonds at their addresses appearing on the registration books maintained with respect 
to the Refunded Bonds, and to the Securities Depositories and to the Information Services (each 
as defined in the 2006 Indenture), in accordance with Section 2.04(c)(3) of the 2006 Indenture. 

Section 11. Discharge of Indenture Concurrently with the Defeasance of Refunded 
Bonds.  Upon the initial deposit of the moneys in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund pursuant to 



 

 5  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

Sections 4 and 5, the 2006 Indenture will be discharged and terminated with respect to the 
Refunded Bonds pursuant to the Section 10.1 of the 2006 Indenture (regarding the defeasance of 
the Refunded Bonds), and the Refunded Bonds will no longer be deemed to be outstanding an 
unpaid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the 2006 Indenture.  

Section 12. Nature of Lien.  The trust hereby created shall be irrevocable.  The holders 
of the Refunded Bonds shall have an express lien on all of the moneys in the 2006 Bonds Escrow 
Fund, including the interest earnings thereon, until paid out, used and applied in accordance with 
this Agreement. 

Section 13. Amendments.  This Agreement shall not be repealed, revoked, altered, 
amended or supplemented without the written consent of all such holders and the written consent 
of the Escrow Agent and the Agency; provided, however, that the Agency and the Escrow Agent 
may, without the consent of, or notice to, such holders enter into such agreement supplemental to 
this Agreement as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of such holders and as shall not 
be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, for any one or more of the 
following purposes: 

(a) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Agreement; 

(b) To grant to, or confer upon, the Escrow Agent for the benefit of the 
holders of the Refunded Bonds, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may 
lawfully be granted to, or conferred upon, such holders or the Escrow Agent;  

(c) To transfer to the Escrow Agent and make subject to this Agreement 
additional funds, securities or properties; 

(d) To conform the Agreement to the provisions of any law or regulations 
governing the tax-exempt status of the Refunded Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds in order to 
maintain their tax-exempt status; and 

(e) To make any other change determined by the Agency to be not materially 
adverse to the holders of the Refunded Bonds. 

The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to rely exclusively upon an opinion of Bond Counsel 
with respect to compliance with this Section, including the extent, if any, to which any change, 
modification or addition affects the rights of the holders of the Refunded Bonds, or that any 
instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions and provisions of this Section. 

Section 14. Compensation of Escrow Agent.  In consideration of the services rendered 
by the Escrow Agent under this Agreement, the Agency agrees to and shall pay to the Escrow 
Agent its proper fees and expenses in accordance with the agreement therefor reached by the 
Escrow Agent and the Agency, including all reasonable expenses, charges, counsel fees and 
other disbursements incurred by it or by its attorneys, agents and employees in and about the 
performance of their powers and duties hereunder, from any moneys of the Agency lawfully 
available therefor and the Escrow Agent shall have no lien whatsoever upon any of the moneys 
in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund for the payment of such proper fees and expenses. 



 

 6  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

Section 15. Resignation or Removal of Escrow Agent; Appointment of Successor.  
The Escrow Agent at the time acting hereunder may at any time resign and be discharged from 
the trusts hereby created by giving written notice to the Agency specifying the date when such 
resignation will take effect, but no such resignation shall take effect unless a successor Escrow 
Agent shall have been appointed by the holders of the Refunded Bonds or by the Agency as 
hereinafter provided and such successor Escrow Agent shall have accepted such appointment, in 
which event such resignation shall take effect immediately upon the appointment and acceptance 
of a successor Escrow Agent.   

The Escrow Agent may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent 
instruments in writing, delivered to the Agency and signed by the registered holders of a majority 
in principal amount of the Refunded Bonds.  The Escrow Agent may also be removed at any 
time by the Agency with not less than 30 days’ written notice to the Escrow Agent, the Refunded 
Bonds Trustee (if different from the Escrow Agent), and the registered holders of the Refunded 
Bonds. 

In the event the Escrow Agent hereunder shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or 
shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting 
hereunder, or in case the Escrow Agent shall be taken under the control of any public officer or 
officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor Escrow Agent may be appointed by 
the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Refunded Bonds, by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments in writing, signed by such holders, or by their attorneys in fact, duly 
authorized in writing; provided, nevertheless, that in any such event, the Agency shall appoint a 
temporary Escrow Agent to fill such vacancy until a successor Escrow Agent shall be appointed 
by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the Refunded Bonds, and any such temporary 
Escrow Agent so appointed by the Agency shall immediately and without further act be 
superseded by the Escrow Agent so appointed by such holders. 

In the event that no appointment of a successor Escrow Agent or a temporary successor 
Escrow Agent shall have been made by such holders or the Agency pursuant to the foregoing 
provisions of this Section within 30 days after written notice of the removal or resignation of the 
Escrow Agent has been given to the Agency, the holder of any of the Refunded Bonds or any 
retiring Escrow Agent may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a 
successor Escrow Agent, and such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it shall deem 
proper, appoint a successor Escrow Agent. 

No successor Escrow Agent shall be appointed unless such successor Escrow Agent shall 
be a corporation with trust powers organized under the banking laws of the United States or any 
state, and shall have at the time of appointment capital and surplus of not less than $75,000,000. 

Every successor Escrow Agent appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and 
deliver to its predecessor and to the Agency, an instrument in writing accepting such 
appointment hereunder and thereupon such successor Escrow Agent without any further act, 
deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the rights, immunities, powers, trusts, 
duties and obligations of its predecessor; but such predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written 
request of such successor Escrow Agent or the Agency execute and deliver an instrument 
transferring to such successor Escrow Agent all the estates, properties, rights, powers and trusts 



 

 7  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

of such predecessor hereunder; and every predecessor Escrow Agent shall deliver all moneys 
held by it to its successor.  Should any transfer, assignment or instrument in writing from the 
Agency be required by any successor Escrow Agent for more fully and certainly vesting in such 
successor Escrow Agent the estates, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be 
vested in the predecessor Escrow Agent, any such transfer, assignment and instrument in writing 
shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Agency. 

Any entity into which the Escrow Agent, or any successor to it in the trusts created by 
this Agreement, may be merged or converted or with which it or any successor to it may be 
consolidated, or any entity resulting from any merger, conversion, consolidation or tax-free 
reorganization to which the Escrow Agent or any successor to it shall be a party, shall, if it meets 
the qualifications set forth in the fifth paragraph of this Section, and if it is otherwise satisfactory 
to the Agency, be the successor Escrow Agent under this Agreement without the execution or 
filing of any paper or any other act on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the 
contrary notwithstanding. 

Section 16. Limitation of Powers and Duties.  The Escrow Agent shall have no power 
or duty to invest any funds held under this Agreement.  The Escrow Agent shall have no power 
or duty to transfer or otherwise dispose of the moneys held hereunder except as provided in this 
Agreement. 

Section 17. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, the Agency hereby 
assumes liability for, and hereby agrees (whether or not any of the transactions contemplated 
hereby are consummated) to indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless the Escrow Agent and 
its respective successors, assigns, agents, employees and servants, from and against any and all 
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, suits, costs, expenses and 
disbursements (including reasonable legal fees and disbursements) of whatsoever kind and 
nature which may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against, the Escrow Agent at any time 
(whether or not also indemnified against the same by the Agency or any other person under any 
other agreement or instrument, but without double indemnity) in any way relating to or arising 
out of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the establishment hereunder 
of the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, the acceptance of the moneys deposited therein, and any 
payment, transfer or other application of moneys by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that the Agency shall not be required to 
indemnify the Escrow Agent against the Escrow Agent’s own negligence or willful misconduct 
or the negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent’s employees.  In no event shall the 
Agency or the Escrow Agent be liable to any person by reason of the transactions contemplated 
hereby other than as set forth in this Section.  The indemnities contained in this Section shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement and removal or resignation of the Escrow Agent. 

Section 18. Limitation of Liability.  The Escrow Agent and its respective successors, 
assigns, agents and servants shall not be held to any personal liability whatsoever, in tort, 
contract, or otherwise, in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the 
establishment of the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, the acceptance of the moneys deposited therein, 
the sufficiency of the uninvested moneys held hereunder to accomplish the payment and 
redemption of the Refunded Bonds, or any payment, transfer or other application of moneys by 
the Escrow Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or by reason of any non-



 

 8  
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

negligent act, non-negligent omission or non-negligent error of the Escrow Agent made in good 
faith in the conduct of its duties.  The recitals of fact contained in the Recitals of this Agreement 
shall be taken as the statements of the Agency, and the Escrow Agent assumes no responsibility 
for the correctness thereof.  The Escrow Agent makes no representation as to the sufficiency of 
any uninvested moneys to accomplish the payment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds 
pursuant to the 2006 Indenture or to the validity of this Agreement as to the Agency and, except 
as otherwise provided herein, the Escrow Agent shall incur no liability in respect thereof.  The 
Escrow Agent shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties under this 
Agreement except for its own negligence or willful misconduct, and the duties and obligations of 
the Escrow Agent shall be determined by the express provisions of this Agreement.  Anything in 
this Agreement notwithstanding, the Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any consequential (i.e., 
special or indirect) losses or damages in performing its duties or in exercising its rights or power 
pursuant to this Agreement.  The Escrow Agent may consult with counsel, who may or may not 
be counsel to the Agency.  Whenever the Escrow Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that 
a matter be proved or established prior to taking, suffering, or omitting any action under this 
Agreement, such matter (except the matters set forth herein as specifically requiring a certificate 
of a nationally recognized firm of independent certified public accountants or an opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel) may be deemed to be conclusively established by a written 
certification of the Agency.  Whenever the Escrow Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable 
that a matter specifically requiring a certificate of a nationally recognized firm of independent 
certified public accountants or an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel be proved or 
established prior to taking, suffering, or omitting any such action, such matter may be established 
only by such a certificate or such an opinion.  No provision of this Agreement shall require the 
Escrow Agent to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance or exercise of any of its duties in accordance with this Agreement, or in the exercise 
of its rights or powers. 

Section 19. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate when moneys have been 
applied to redeem and pay the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Section 6.  Upon such termination, 
all moneys remaining in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, if any, after payment of any amounts due 
the Escrow Agent hereunder shall be transferred to the Special Fund established and held under 
the Indenture relating to the Series 2015 Bonds 

Section 20. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the 
State of California. 

Section 21. Severability.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided 
in this Agreement on the part of the Agency or the Escrow Agent to be performed should be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenant or 
agreement shall be deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining covenants and 
agreements herein contained and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining provisions 
of this Agreement. 

All the covenants, promises and agreements in this Agreement contained by or on behalf 
of the Agency or the Escrow Agent shall bind and inure to the benefit of their respective 
successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.



 

   

12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

 

Section 22. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, 
all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be 
but one and the same instrument.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officers and appointed or elected officials as of the date first 
written above. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  
HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

By:         
Executive Director 

ATTEST: 

 

By:       
Secretary 

 

MUFG UNION BANK, N.A. 
as Trustee and Escrow Agent 

 

By:         
Authorized Officer 



 

   

12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

SCHEDULE A 

REFUNDING REQUIREMENT 

“Refunded Bonds” 

Hughson Redevelopment Agency, Hughson Redevelopment Project Area 
Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 

Redemption Date Principal* Interest 
Redemption 

Premium 
Refunding 

Requirement 

October 1, 2015 $ $__________ $0.00 $__________ 

 

 

*  Consists of the following Refunded Bonds to be optionally redeemed on October 1, 2015: 

Maturity 
Date 

(October 1) 

 
 

Principal 

 
Interest 

Rate 

 
Redemption 
     Price     

2016   100% 
2017   100 
2018   100 
2019   100 
2020   100 
2021   100 
2022   100 
2026   100 
2031   100 
2036   100 

 

 

 



 

   
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

APPENDIX A 

FORM OF DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION NOTICE 

NOTICE OF DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION 

With reference to 

Hughson Redevelopment Agency 
Redevelopment Project 
Tax Allocation Bonds 

Series 2006 
scheduled to mature on October 1, 2016 and thereafter through October 1, 2036  

(CUSIP* Nos.___) 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN on behalf of Successor Agency to the Hughson 
Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) to all holders of the above-referenced Series 2006 Bonds 
that, pursuant to the 2006 Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006 (the “Indenture”), by and 
between the Hughson Redevelopment Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, and Union Bank of 
California, N.A., now known as MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (the “Trustee”), pursuant to which 
such Series 2006 Bonds were originally issued on February 14, 2006, that all of the outstanding 
Series 2006 Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of $___ have been called for redemption 
on October 1, 2015 (the “Redemption Date”), subject to the provisions of the succeeding 
paragraphs of this notice, and pursuant to the provisions of the governing documents of the 
Series 2006 Bonds.   

The Series 2006 Bonds called for redemption have the maturity dates, principal amounts, 
interest rates, certificate numbers, and CUSIP numbers as set forth below: 

Maturity 
(October 1)  

 
Principal Amount  Interest Rate 

 
 

Certificate 
Number  CUSIP 

2016         
2017         
2018         
2019         
2020         
2021         
2022         
2026         
2031         
2036         

 
 Pursuant to the 2006 Indenture, on the Redemption Date, the principal at 100%, without 
redemption premium, and interest accrued to the Redemption Date on such Series 2006 Bonds 
(the “Redemption Price”), shall become due and payable, and from and after the Redemption 
Date, interest on the Series 2006 Bonds shall cease to accrue and be payable.   
 



 

   
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

Owners of the Series 2006 Bonds should surrender said Series 2006 Bonds on the 
Redemption Date at the following address: 

• BY Mail/Overnight Delivery: 
•  

If by Mail: (Registered Bonds) 
• MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 
• Attn: Corporate Trust 
Department—Redemptions 

• 120 South San Pedro Street, Suite 
410 

• Los Angeles, CA 90012 
• If by Hand or Overnight Mail: 
• MUFG Union Bank, N.A. 
• Attn: Corporate Trust 
Department—Redemptions 

• 120 South San Pedro Street, Suite 
410 

• Los Angeles, CA 90012 
For Series 2006 Bonds surrendered by mail, the use of registered or certified mail is 

suggested. 

NOTICE IS ADDITIONALLY GIVEN that, pursuant to Section 10.1 of the 2006 
Indenture, the lien pursuant to such Indenture on the above-referenced Series 2006 Bonds has 
been discharged through the irrevocable deposit of cash in an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”).  
The Escrow Fund is established and held pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, dated as of July 1, 
2015, by and between the Agency and MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee and Escrow Agent.  
As a result of such deposit in the Escrow Fund, the above-referenced Series 2006 Bonds are 
deemed to have been paid and defeased in accordance with the 2006 Indenture.  Obligations of 
the Agency to the holders of the above-referenced Series 2006 Bonds shall hereafter be limited 
to the application of moneys in the Escrow Fund for the payment of outstanding principal on 
such bonds and accrued and unpaid interest through the Redemption Date.  

No representation is made as to the correctness of the CUSIP number either as printed on 
any Series 2006 Bond or as contained herein and any error in the CUSIP number shall not affect 
the validity of the proceedings for redemption of the Series 2006 Bonds. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  Federal law requires the Trustee to withhold taxes at the applicable 
rate from the payment if an IRS Form W-9 or applicable IRS FORM W-8 IS NOT PROVIDED.  
Please visit www.irs.gov for additional information on the tax forms and instructions. 

* The CUSIP numbers are included solely for the convenience of the holders of the Series 2006 
Bonds. None of the Agency, the Trustee, nor the Escrow Agent shall be responsible for any error 
of any nature relating to such numbers. 

Dated: ______, 2015 

http://www.irs.gov/


 

   
12917-0002\1843049v2.doc 

By: MUFG Union Bank, N.A., as Trustee and Escrow Agent 

 

 


	0.Agenda 6-22-2015
	AGENDA
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken)
	2. NEW BUSINESS:
	2.1: Approval of the Minutes of the Successor Agency Special Meeting held on March 23, 2015.
	4. ADJOURNMENT:


	CITY OF HUGHSON
	SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE
	HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
	Special Meeting

	UNotice Regarding Non-English Speakers:

	2.1 Minutes 3-23-2015 Successor Special
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken)
	2. NEW BUSINESS:
	2.1: Approval of the Minutes of the Successor Agency Special Meeting     held on Febuary 25, 2015.


	City of Hughson
	Successor Agency To The
	Hughson Redevelopment Agency
	Special Meeting


	2.2 Hughson SA Stf Rpt 2015 Bonds 6-22-15
	2.2.1 Resolution approving POS (2)
	Section 1. Each of the foregoing recitals is true and correct and is a substantive part of this Resolution.
	Section 2. The Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), proposed to be entered into by and between the Successor Agency and Jeffries LLC (the “Underwriter”), in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and made a part hereof as...
	Section 3. The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the 2015 Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), in substantially the form presented and on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved.  Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereb...
	Section 4. The preparation and delivery of an Official Statement, and its use by the Successor Agency and the Underwriter, in connection with the offering and sale of the 2015 Bonds, is hereby authorized and approved.  The Official Statement shall be ...
	Section 5. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the form attached hereto is hereby approved.  Each Authorized Officer, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Successor Agency, to exec...
	Section 6. The Escrow Agreement relating to the 2006 Bonds (the “2006 Bonds Escrow Agreement”), in substantially the form submitted at this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby approved.  Each Authorized Officer...
	Section 7. The Authorized Officers, the Finance Director, and all other officers of the Successor Agency, are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments, relating to the 2015 Bon...
	Section 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

	2.2.2 Preliminary Official Statement (Hughson Successor Agency 2015 Refunding TABs) (2)
	INTRODUCTION
	Authority and Purpose
	The City and the Agency
	Project Area
	Tax Allocation Financing
	Security for the Bonds
	Reserve Account
	Further Information

	PLAN OF REFUNDING
	SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
	THE BONDS
	Authority for Issuance
	Description of the Bonds
	Book-Entry System
	Redemption and Purchase of Bonds
	Notice of Redemption
	The Agency will give the Trustee written notice of its intention to redeem Bonds pursuant to the Indenture at least 40 days prior to the date fixed for redemption, and will transfer to the Trustee for deposit in the Redemption Account all amounts requ...


	SECURITY FOR THE BONDS
	Tax Increment Financing
	Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule
	Statutory Limitations on Review of Bonds on ROPS by DOF
	Covenant to Include Debt Service on ROPS

	Reserve Account
	Additional Parity Bonds
	(i) For the current and each future Bond Year the debt service for each such Bond Year with respect to all Bonds and any Parity Bonds reasonably expected to be outstanding following the issuance of the Parity Bonds;
	(ii) For the then current Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues to be received by the Agency based upon the most recently certified assessed valuation of taxable property in the Project Area provided by the appropriate officer of the County;
	(iii) For each future Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item (ii) together with (a) the amount determined in accordance with Section 51(a) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code and (b) the amount of Pledged Tax Revenues to be ...
	(iv) That for the then current Fiscal Year, the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item (ii) and for each future Fiscal Year the Pledged Tax Revenues referred to in item (iii) are at least equal to the sum of 125% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service w...

	Bonds Not a Debt of the City of Hughson or the State of California

	THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  HUGHSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
	Members and Officers
	Agency Powers

	RISK FACTORS
	Reduction in Taxable Value
	Risks to Real Estate Market
	Reduction in Inflationary Rate
	Development Risks
	Levy and Collection of Taxes
	State Budget Issues
	Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule
	AB 1484 Penalty for Failure to Remit Unencumbered Funds
	Bankruptcy and Foreclosure
	Estimated Revenues
	Hazardous Substances
	Seismic Factors
	Risk of Floods
	Urban Fire Hazards
	Changes in the Law
	Investment Risk
	Additional Obligations
	Secondary Market
	No Validation Proceeding Undertaken
	Loss of Tax-Exemption

	PROPERTY TAXATION IN CALIFORNIA
	Property Tax Collection Procedures
	Unitary Property
	Article XIIIA of the State Constitution
	Appropriations Limitation - Article XIIIB
	Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State Constitution
	Proposition 87
	Appeals of Assessed Values
	Proposition 8
	Propositions 218 and 26
	Future Initiatives

	PROJECT AREA
	Limitations and Requirements of the Redevelopment Plan
	Statutory Pass-Throughs
	Land Uses
	(1)  Based on Fiscal Year 2014-15 secured assessed valuation of $111,605,599.

	Largest Taxpayers
	(1)  Based on Fiscal Year 2014-15 secured assessed valuation of $111,605,599. Source:  Urban Futures, Inc. based on Stanislaus County Assessor 2014-15 Secured Property Tax Roll.

	Appeals

	PLEDGED REVENUES
	Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues
	Projected Taxable Valuation and Pledged Tax Revenues
	Annual Debt Service
	Debt Service Coverage

	CONCLUDING INFORMATION
	Underwriting
	Legal Opinions
	Tax Exemption
	Verification
	No Litigation
	Legality for Investment in California
	Rating
	Continuing Disclosure
	Miscellaneous


	2.2.3 Bond Purchase Agreement (Hughson Successor Agency) (2)
	Section 1. Purchase and Sale of the Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations and agreements herein set forth, the Agency hereby agrees to sell and the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from the Agency for off...
	Section 2. Official Statement.  The Agency shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Underwriter two (2) executed copies of the Official Statement prepared in connection with the Bonds, in such form as shall be approved by the Agency and the Und...
	Section 3. Delivery of the Bonds.  At approximately 8:00 a.m., California time, on __, 2015, or at such earlier or later time or date, as shall be agreed upon by the Agency, and the Underwriter (such time and date herein referred to as the “Closing Da...
	Section 4. Representations and Agreements of the Agency.  The Agency represents and agrees that:
	(a) The Agency is a public entity, duly organized and existing, and authorized to transact business and exercise powers, under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, including the Dissolution Act, and has, and at the date of the Closi...
	(b) The Preliminary Official Statement, as of its date, was true, correct and complete in all material respects and did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements co...
	(c) The Official Statement is, and will be, as of the Closing Date, true, correct and complete in all material respects and does not, and will not, as of the Closing Date, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material f...
	(d) The Agency to the best of its knowledge has complied, and will at the Closing Date be in compliance, with the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, and any other applicable laws of the State in all respects material to the transaction contemplated by thi...
	(e) By all necessary official action of the Agency prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the Agency has duly authorized and approved the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and has duly authorized and approved the ...
	(f) As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the time of the Closing, except as otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Agency to the best of its knowledge is not and will not be, in any material respect, in breach of or in default und...
	(g) To the best of its knowledge all approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction which would constitute a condition precedent to adoption of the Resolution approving the Indenture, exec...
	(h) The Bonds when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Indenture will be validly issued, and will be valid and binding, obligations of the Agency;
	(i) To the best of its knowledge the terms and provisions of the Indenture comply in all respects with the requirements of the Bond Law, the Dissolution Act, and the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement and this Purchase Agreement...
	(j) Except as disclosed in the Official Statement, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, government agency, public board or body, pending against the Agency and notice of which has...
	(k) Any certificate signed by an authorized officer or official of the Agency and delivered to the Underwriter shall be deemed a representation of the Agency to the Underwriter as to the statements made therein;
	(l) Each of the Bonds shall be secured in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Indenture under which each such Bond is to be issued;
	(m) The Agency will furnish such information, execute such instruments and take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter as the Underwriter may reasonably request to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the “blue sky” or other secur...
	(n) The Agency will apply the proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with the Indenture and all other applicable documents and as described in the Official Statement;
	(o) Except for the Statutory Pass-Through Amounts, there are no outstanding bonds, notes or other obligations of the Prior Agency, as succeeded by the Agency, or of the Agency, which are payable out of the funds and revenues pledged to the payment of ...
	(p) [The Agency has received a “finding of completion” issued by the State Department of Finance pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 34179.7;]
	(q) Except as disclosed in the Official Statement and based on a review of its previous undertakings, during the past five years neither the Agency nor the Prior Agency have defaulted under any prior continuing disclosure undertaking;
	(r) The Prior Agency and the Agency have been in compliance, and will comply, with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to maintain the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; and
	(s) The Agency shall provide to the Underwriter, not later than seven (7) business days after the date of this Purchase Agreement, but in any event in sufficient time to accompany any confirmation sent by the Underwriter to a purchaser of the Bonds, n...

	Section 5. Representations of the Underwriter.  The Underwriter represents that it has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Purchase Agreement.
	Section 6. Covenants re Official Statement.  The Agency covenants with the Underwriter that so long as the Underwriter, or dealers, if any, are participating in the distribution of the Bonds which constitute the whole or a part of their unsold partici...
	Section 7. Conditions to Obligations of Underwriter.  The Underwriter has entered into this Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations and agreements of the Agency contained herein and upon the accuracy of the statements to be contained i...
	(a) At the time of the Closing, (i) the representations of the Agency contained herein to the best of its knowledge shall be true, complete and correct in all material respects; and (ii) the Indenture shall be in full force and effect and shall not ha...
	(b) The Underwriter shall have the right to cancel its obligation to purchase the Bonds if between the date hereof and the Closing, (i) legislation shall have been enacted (or indenture or resolution passed) by or introduced or pending legislation ame...
	(c) At or prior to the Closing, the Underwriter and the Agency shall receive the following:
	1) The unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and substance substantially in the form attached to the Official Statement, addressed to the Agency, dated the date of the Closing, together with a letter from such counsel, dated the date ...
	2) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Underwriter and the Agency, in form and substance acceptable to each of them, dated the date of Closing, to the following effect:
	(i) The Agency has duly authorized, executed and delivered the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement and the Purchase Agreement.  Assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties to such contracts, the Indent...
	(ii) The statements and information contained or summarized in the Official Statement on the cover page and under the headings “THE BONDS,” “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS,” “CONCLUDING INFORMATION –  Tax Exemption,” “APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE,”  ...
	(iii) The Bonds are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; and
	(iv) The Indenture is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

	3) The opinion of counsel to the Agency, addressed to the Underwriter and the Agency, in form and substance acceptable to each of them, dated the date of the Closing, to the following effect:
	(i) The Agency is a public entity, duly organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and the laws of the State;
	(ii) The Resolution has been duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Agency adopted at a regular meeting duly called and held in accordance pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a quorum of the members of Board ...
	(iii) The Oversight Board Resolution has been duly approved by the Oversight Board adopted at a special meeting duly called and held in accordance pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a quorum of the members of the O...
	(iv) Except as described in the Official Statement, there is no litigation pending against the Agency and notice of which has been served on the Agency, or to the best of such counsel’s knowledge after due inquiry, threatened against the Agency, which...
	(v) The execution and delivery by the Agency of, and the performance by the Agency of its obligations under, the Bonds, the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, and the Purchase Agreement, do not in any material respect conflict ...

	4) A certificate dated the date of the Closing, signed by the Executive Director or appropriate officer of the Agency, to the effect that to the best of such officer’s knowledge:  (i) the representations and covenants of the Agency contained herein ar...
	5) A certificate of the Trustee dated the date of the Closing, to the effect that:  (i) the Trustee is organized and existing as a national banking association under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America, having full power and bein...
	6) An opinion of counsel to the Trustee dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Agency and the Underwriter, in form and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter, to the effect that: (i) the Trustee has been duly organized and is validly existing ...
	7) Two (2) copies of this Purchase Agreement duly executed and delivered by the parties thereto;
	8) Two (2) copies of the Official Statement, executed on behalf of the Agency by the Executive Director of the Agency;
	9) One (1) certified copy of the Indenture, the Escrow Agreement, the Disclosure Agreement, and all resolutions of the Agency and the Oversight Board relating to the issuance of the Bonds (including without limitation the Resolution and the Oversight ...
	10) A letter, dated the date of the Closing and addressed to the Agency, of Richards, Watson & Gershon, A Professional Corporation, as disclosure counsel (“Disclosure Counsel”), to the effect that based upon its participation in the preparation of the...
	11) A defeasance opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that the lien of the 2003 Bonds with respect to the Tax Revenues has been discharged;
	12) An opinion from Underwriter’s Counsel;
	13) A certificate of Urban Futures, Inc., Orange, California (“Urban Futures”), in form and substance satisfactory to the Agency and the Underwriter, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that:
	(i) Urban Futures is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Disclosure Agreement and to perform as Dissemination Agent thereunder, and has duly executed and delivered the Disclosure Agreement; and
	(ii) Urban Futures’ execution and delivery of the Disclosure Agreement and performance as Dissemination Agent thereunder do not and will not conflict in any way with any law, judgment, agreement or other instrument to which the Financial Advisor is a ...
	(iii) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, Urban Futures, as financial advisor (the “Financial Advisor”), has provided the Issuer certain projections and estimates (the “Projections”) and a Financial  Advisor Report (the “Financial Advisor’s ...
	(iv) the Financial Advisor has reviewed the Official Statement and, in particular, information presented in the tables set forth in the Official Statement under the captions “PROJECT AREA,” “PLEDGED TAX REVENUES” and in “APPENDIX G – Financial Advisor...
	(v) Nothing has come to the attention of the Financial Advisor which would cause the Financial Advisor to believe that the statements and information contained in the Official Statement that are attributable to the Financial Advisor, including but not...
	(vi) the Financial Advisor affirms its consent to the inclusion of such Projections in the Official Statement and the reproduction of the Financial Advisor’s Report in the appendices of the Official Statement; and

	14) A rating letter from Standard & Poor’s Rating Services confirming the rating on the Bonds set forth in the Official Statement.
	15) [A municipal bond insurance policy insuring the payment of principal and interest with respect to the  Bonds (the “Policy”), issued by ___ (the “Bond Insurer”);
	16) An opinion of counsel to the Bond Insurer, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the Agency, the Trustee and the Underwriter, regarding the Bond Insurer’s valid existence, power and authority, the Bond Insurer’s due authorization and issuance of th...
	17)  A certificate of the Bond Insurer or an opinion of counsel to the Bond Insurer, dated the Closing Date, regarding the accuracy of the information in the Official Statement describing the Bond Insurer and the Policy and the Surety Bonds;
	18) The Reserve Policy issued by the Bond Insuer for credit to the Reserve Account with respect to the Bonds;]
	19) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments and other documents as the Underwriter, Bond Counsel or Disclosure Counsel may reasonably request to evidence compliance by the Agency with this Purchase Agreement, legal requi...


	Section 8. Expenses.
	Section 9. Notice.  Any notice or other communication to be given to the Agency under this Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing at the address set forth above.  Any such notice or communication to be given to the Underwrit...
	Section 10. Governing Law.  This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  This Purchase Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall b...
	Section 11. Parties in Interest.  This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the signatories hereto (including the successors or assigns of the Underwriter) and no other person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue here...

	2.2.4 Continuing Disclosure Agreement (Hughson Successor Agency) (2)
	Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is being executed and delivered by the Successor Agency and the Dissemination Agent for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the...
	Section 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement, unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the followi...
	Section 3. Provisions of Annual Reports.
	(a) The Successor Agency shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine (9) months after the end of the Successor Agency’s Fiscal Year (which Fiscal Year currently commences on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year), ...
	(b) Not later than fifteen (15) business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) above for providing the Annual Report to the MSRB, the Successor Agency shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the Successor...
	(c) If the Dissemination Agent is unable to verify that an Annual Report has been provided to the MSRB by the date required in subsection (a), the Dissemination Agent shall send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, or ...
	(d) The Dissemination Agent (if other than the Successor Agency) shall, if and to the extent, the Successor Agency has provided an Annual Report in final form to the Dissemination Agent for dissemination, file a report with the Successor Agency certif...

	Section 4. Content of Annual Reports.  The Successor Agency’s Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by reference the following:
	(a) A postaudit of the financial transactions and records of the Successor Agency for the Fiscal Year to be made by an Independent Certified Public Accountant appointed by the Successor Agency prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting ...
	(b) To the extent not contained in the postaudit filed pursuant to the preceding subsection (a) by the date required by Section 3 hereof, other financial information and operating data relating to the Project Areas, contained in the Official Statement...
	1) An update to the tabular information in the table entitled “Top Ten Taxpayers” under the caption “PROJECT AREAS – Largest Taxpayers” for the most recent Fiscal Year for which information is available; and
	2) An update to the tabular information in the tables entitled “Assessed Valuation and Incremental Revenues” under the caption “PLEDGED REVENUES – Schedule of Historical Incremental Revenues” including the most recent Fiscal Year for which information...


	Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.
	(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Successor Agency shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to the Bonds, which notice shall be given in a timely manner, not in e...
	1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	2) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the se...
	7) Modifications to rights of security holders, if material;
	8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
	9) Defeasances;
	10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material;
	11) Rating changes;
	12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Obligated Person;
	13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an Obligated Person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Obligated Person, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agr...
	14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

	(b) The Dissemination Agent shall, within one (1) business day after obtaining knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events listed in Section 5(a) (1), (3), (4), (5), (6), (9), (11) or (12), inform the Successor Agency of the occurrence of such ev...
	(c) The Dissemination Agent shall, within one (1) business day after obtaining knowledge of the occurrence of any of any of the events listed in Section 5(a) (2), (7), (8), (10), (13) or (14), inform the Successor Agency of the occurrence of such even...
	(d) Whenever the Successor Agency obtains knowledge of the occurrence of any event specified in Section 5(a) (2), (7), (8), (10), (13) or (14), the Successor Agency shall as soon as possible, in order to meet the ten (10) business day deadline to file...

	Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Successor Agency’s obligations under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all the Bonds.  If such termination occurs prior to t...
	Section 7. Dissemination Agent.
	(a) The Successor Agency hereby appoints and engages Urban Futures, Inc. as the Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the c...
	(b) The Dissemination Agent shall be paid compensation by the Successor Agency for its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees agreed to between the Dissemination Agent and the Successor Agency from time to time and for all...

	Section 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Successor Agency may amend this Disclosure Agreement), and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided that the following condi...
	(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, o...
	(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account ...
	(c) the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in the manner provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of holders of the Bonds, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recogn...

	Section 9. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed to prevent the Successor Agency from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other mea...
	Section 10. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Successor Agency or the Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, any Participating Underwriter or any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may take such ac...
	Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the Successor Agency agrees to indemnify and save the Disseminat...
	Section 12. Notices.  Any notices or communications to or among any of the parties to this Disclosure Agreement may be given as follows:
	Section 13. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the Successor Agency, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create ...
	Section 14. Counterparts.  This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

	2.2.5 Escrow Agreement (2)
	Section 1. Definitions.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the introductory paragraph and the Recitals hereof.  In addition, as used herein, the followin...
	Section 2. Escrow Agent’s Acceptance of Duties.  The Escrow Agent hereby accepts the duties and obligations expressly provided in this Agreement and agrees that the irrevocable instructions to the Escrow Agent contained herein are in a form satisfacto...
	Section 3. Incorporation of Indenture.  The applicable and necessary provisions of the 2006 Indenture are incorporated herein by reference.  Reference herein to, or citation herein of, any provisions of the 2006 Indenture shall be deemed to incorporat...
	Section 4. 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund; Deposits.  There is hereby created and established with the Escrow Agent a special and irrevocable fund designated the “2006 Bonds Escrow Fund,” to be held by the Escrow Agent separate and apart from all other funds ...
	Section 5. Maintenance of 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund.  The Escrow Agent, upon receipt of the moneys described in Section 4, shall deposit the entire amount (being $____________) in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund to hold [uninvested. ] Monies remaining in the ...
	The Escrow Agent shall furnish the Agency periodic cash transaction statements which include detail for all investment transactions effected by the Escrow Agent or brokers selected by the Agency. Upon the Agency’s election, such statements will be del...

	Section 6. Payment of Refunding Requirements.  On the Redemption Date, the Escrow Agent shall disburse from the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund an amount sufficient to pay the Refunding Requirement and apply such moneys to redeem the Refunded Bonds for the equ...
	Section 7. Verification.  The Agency has caused schedules to be prepared relating to the sufficiency of the moneys deposited in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund to pay the Refunding Requirement.  The Agency shall furnish the Escrow Agent with the report of ...
	Section 8. Compliance with 2006 Indenture.  Pursuant to Section 10.1 of the 2006 Indenture, the Agency has delivered a Written Request of the Agency (as defined in the 2006 Indenture), which is dated, and shall not be effective until, the Closing Date...
	Section 9. Tax Covenant.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Agency hereby covenants that no part of the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds or of the moneys or funds held by the Escrow Agent hereunder shall be used, and that the...
	Section 10. Notices.  As soon as practicable upon the Escrow Agent’s receipt of moneys for deposit in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund pursuant to Section 4 (but in no event later than 30 days before the Redemption Date), the Escrow Agent shall send a notic...
	Section 11. Discharge of Indenture Concurrently with the Defeasance of Refunded Bonds.  Upon the initial deposit of the moneys in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund pursuant to Sections 4 and 5, the 2006 Indenture will be discharged and terminated with respec...
	Section 12. Nature of Lien.  The trust hereby created shall be irrevocable.  The holders of the Refunded Bonds shall have an express lien on all of the moneys in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, including the interest earnings thereon, until paid out, used...
	Section 13. Amendments.  This Agreement shall not be repealed, revoked, altered, amended or supplemented without the written consent of all such holders and the written consent of the Escrow Agent and the Agency; provided, however, that the Agency and...
	(a) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Agreement;
	(b) To grant to, or confer upon, the Escrow Agent for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to, or conferred upon, such holders or the Escrow Agent;
	(c) To transfer to the Escrow Agent and make subject to this Agreement additional funds, securities or properties;
	(d) To conform the Agreement to the provisions of any law or regulations governing the tax-exempt status of the Refunded Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds in order to maintain their tax-exempt status; and
	(e) To make any other change determined by the Agency to be not materially adverse to the holders of the Refunded Bonds.

	Section 14. Compensation of Escrow Agent.  In consideration of the services rendered by the Escrow Agent under this Agreement, the Agency agrees to and shall pay to the Escrow Agent its proper fees and expenses in accordance with the agreement therefo...
	Section 15. Resignation or Removal of Escrow Agent; Appointment of Successor.  The Escrow Agent at the time acting hereunder may at any time resign and be discharged from the trusts hereby created by giving written notice to the Agency specifying the ...
	Section 16. Limitation of Powers and Duties.  The Escrow Agent shall have no power or duty to invest any funds held under this Agreement.  The Escrow Agent shall have no power or duty to transfer or otherwise dispose of the moneys held hereunder excep...
	Section 17. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, the Agency hereby assumes liability for, and hereby agrees (whether or not any of the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated) to indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless the Esc...
	Section 18. Limitation of Liability.  The Escrow Agent and its respective successors, assigns, agents and servants shall not be held to any personal liability whatsoever, in tort, contract, or otherwise, in connection with the execution and delivery o...
	Section 19. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate when moneys have been applied to redeem and pay the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Section 6.  Upon such termination, all moneys remaining in the 2006 Bonds Escrow Fund, if any, after payment of any...
	Section 20. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of California.
	Section 21. Severability.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this Agreement on the part of the Agency or the Escrow Agent to be performed should be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such...
	Section 22. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but one and the same instrument.

	2.1 Minutes 3-23-2015 Successor Special.pdf
	MINUTES
	1. PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR (No Action Can Be Taken)
	2. NEW BUSINESS:
	2.1: Approval of the Minutes of the Successor Agency Special Meeting     held on Febuary 25, 2015.


	City of Hughson
	Successor Agency To The
	Hughson Redevelopment Agency
	Special Meeting



